
 

 

 

 

 

Date: 03rd September, 2025 
 

To, 

Manager - Listing Compliance 

National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited ‘Exchange Plaza’. C-1, Block 

G, 

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),  

Mumbai - 400 051 

SYMBOL: JSLL 

To, 

Head of the Department, 

Department of Listing Operation, 

BSE Limited  

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai 400001 

SCRIP Code: 544476 

 

SUB: Notice of the 8th Annual General Meeting and Integrated Annual Report for Financial Year 

2024-25 – Regulations 30, 34 and 36 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations"). 

 

Dear Sir/Ma’am  

 

This is to inform that the 8th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited will be 

held on Monday, September 29, 2025 at 12.00 Noon at First Floor, Parle G Godown, City Enclave, 

Back Side JP Hospital, Near Anand Complex, Zirakpur, Main Road, SAS Nagar, Punjab 140603. In 

this regard following is submitted: 

 

1. Notice of the 8th AGM of the Company scheduled to be held on Monday, September 29, 2025 at 

12:00 Noon (IST) at First Floor, Parle G Godown, City Enclave, Back Side JP Hospital, Near 

Anand Complex, Zirakpur, Main Road, SAS Nagar, Punjab – 140603. The brief details of the 

agenda items proposed to be transacted at the 8th AGM are given as Annexure A. 

 

2. Integrated Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2024-25; 

 

The aforesaid documents are being dispatched electronically (through e-mail) to all the Members whose 

e-mail addresses are registered with the Company / Skyline Financial Services Private Limited (the 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent) / the Depository Participant(s). Physical copies of the same will be 

provided to the Members on request.  

 

Further, in compliance with Regulation 36(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, a physical communication 

is being sent to Members whose e-mail ids are not registered with the Company/the Registrar & Share 

Transfer Agent/the Depository Participant(s) providing the weblink where the Integrated Annual Report 

for the Financial Year 2024-25 and the Notice of the 8th Annual General Meeting can be accessed on 

the Company’s website. 

 

The PDF version of the above mentioned documents are available on the website of the Company at 

https://www.jeenasikho.com/investors and website of National Securities Depository Limited 

(“NSDL”), e-voting agency at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/. 

 

 

 

https://www.jeenasikho.com/investors
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

Detailed instructions for remote e-voting and for voting at the AGM are provided in the Notice of the 

8th AGM. 

 

The intimation is also being uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 

https://www.jeenasikho.com/investors. 

 

 

You are requested to take the same in your kind record.  

 

Thanks & Regards 

For and on behalf of 

JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED 

 

 

 

Manish Grover 

Managing Director 

DIN: 07557886 

Place: Zirakpur, Punjab 
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       ANNEXURE A 

Resolution 

No. Resolution Type ( 

Ordinary / Special ) 
Details of Business 

Ordinary Business 

1 Ordinary Resolution 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone 

Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

period ended on 31st March 2025 together with the reports 

of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2 Ordinary Resolution 

To declare a final dividend of ₹1.10/- per equity share of 

face value of ₹2/- each for the financial year ended March 

31, 2025. 

3 Ordinary Resolution 

To re-appoint Ms. Shreya Grover as a Director who retires 

by rotation & being eligible offers herself for re-

appointment. 

4 Ordinary Resolution 
Appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, 

Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditor 

                                                                    Special Business 

5 Ordinary Resolution 

Appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, 

Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditor to fill casual 

vacancy 

6 Ordinary Resolution 
Appointment of Ankur Singh & Associates as Secretarial 

Auditor 

7 Special Resolution 
Approval of Jeena Sikho Employees Stock Option Scheme, 

2025 for Eligible Employee of the Company 

8 Special Resolution 

Extension of the Jeena Sikho Employee Stock Option 

Scheme 2025, to the Eligible Employees of the Group 

Companies 

9 Special Resolution 

Re-designation of Ms. Shreya Grover (DIN: 09199495) as 

Whole-time Director and a Key Managerial Personnel of 

the Company from the position of Non-Executive Director. 

 



Healing India  
holistically

JEENA SIKHO 
LIFECARE LIMITED
Annual Report 2024-25



Forward Looking Statement
In this Annual Report, we present forward-looking information to assist investors in understanding our future prospects and making informed decisions. This report, 
along with our periodic written and oral statements, contains forward-looking statements based on management’s plans and assumptions. These statements are 
indicated by terms such as ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, ‘expect’, ‘project’, ‘intend’, ‘plan’, ‘believe’, and other similar expressions regarding future performance.
Although we consider our assumptions to be reasonable, we cannot assure that these forward-looking statements will materialize. Actual results may differ 
significantly due to various risks, uncertainties, and potential inaccuracies in assumptions. If known or unknown risks or uncertainties arise, or if our assumptions 
prove to be incorrect, actual outcomes could vary substantially from the anticipated, estimated, or projected results. Readers should be mindful of this uncertainty. 
We do not commit to publicly updating any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.

Inside  
this report

Our journey is anchored in a profound belief: true healing 
begins when the body, mind, and spirit are treated as one. 
In a world increasingly leaning towards instant fixes, we are 
championing a return to balance, where the time-honoured 
wisdom of Ayurveda meets the needs of modern lives.

FY25 was a year of transformation and purpose. We continued 
to scale our reach, expand our offerings, and strengthen our 
engagement with individuals seeking sustainable, side-effect-
free wellness solutions. With every clinic we open, every 
product we formulate, and every patient we serve brings us 
one step closer to a healthier India, an India that embraces the 
power of nature and the depth of tradition.

Our model, deeply rooted in Ayurvedic science, is designed 
not just to treat symptoms, but to address the root cause of 
illness. This preventive and integrative approach allows us 
to offer personalised healing pathways, giving our patients 
renewed energy, improved immunity, and long-term vitality. 

The heart of our success lies in the thousands of lives we 
have touched - people who have rediscovered hope and health 
through our therapies, Panchakarma treatments, formulations, 
and compassionate guidance. Our teams, comprising 
skilled doctors, trained therapists, and passionate wellness 
professionals, are united by a shared mission to promote 
holistic well-being with care, credibility, and conviction.

As we look ahead, our strategy 
is not merely about growth, it 
is about purpose-driven impact. 
We are strengthening our sales 
funnel, enhancing unit economics, 
and deepening our distribution 
ecosystem. But more importantly, we 
are building a trusted brand that 
stands for more than profit:
it stands for transformation, 
healing, and the return to our 
roots.
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Review
.................................. 02
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.................................. 32
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Empowering lives 
through Ayurveda
At the heart of our existence lies a 
powerful purpose: to make the world 
a healthier place. We believe true 
wellness goes beyond the absence of 
illness. It is about balance - of body, 
mind, and lifestyle. Through authentic 
Ayurvedic therapies, formulations, and 
personalised treatment plans, we offer 
more than care; we offer transformation.

Guided by the vision of our founder 
Acharya Manish Ji (Mr. Manish Grover) 
and our leadership team, we have 
built a strong foundation of trust and 
outcomes-driven care. Under their 
leadership, we offer over 330 natural 
and Ayurvedic products, each crafted 
to support preventive and curative 
health, with the goal of restoring internal 
balance and long-term vitality.

Rooted in science. 
Relevant for today.
We are firm believers in the 
transformative power of Ayurveda, not as 
a relic of the past but as a living science 
that continues to evolve. Our healthcare 
model blends time-tested Ayurvedic 
wisdom with modern delivery systems, 
making it accessible, understandable, and 
relatable for today’s generation.

Ayurveda is seeing a strong resurgence, 
particularly among the youth who are 
increasingly inclined towards natural and 
sustainable alternatives. Government 
support and rising awareness have 
further created tailwinds for growth. At 
JSLL, we have aligned our capabilities to 
harness this momentum and become a 
trusted healthcare partner for thousands 
of individuals each day.

From cure to care 
to conscious living
We do not stop at treatment. Our role 
extends into awareness creation, lifestyle 
education, and prevention. Through 
health camps, outreach programmes, 
and strong presence across digital 
and traditional media, we consistently 
advocate for Ayurvedic principles and 
healthy living.

Our approach to wellness is 
comprehensive; from identifying root 
causes of illness to offering long-term 
lifestyle solutions. We envision a future 
where Ayurveda is seamlessly integrated 
with mainstream healthcare, offering 
individuals choice, clarity, and confidence 
in their pursuit of well-being.

Over the years, we have expanded our footprint  
across the nation, empowering individuals to live 
healthier, stress-free lives. Our commitment to 
this cause is visible across our pan-India presence 
through a network of over 115 healthcare centres, 
including hospitals, clinics, and day-cares. 

We operate under the rapidly growing brand 
‘Shuddhi’, which reflects our philosophy of 
natural purification and holistic healing. As a 
publicly listed Company on the NSE & BSE, we 
continue our journey with greater accountability, 
transparency, and growth orientation.

A name that stands 
for purity and 
purpose
‘Shuddhi’, meaning purification in Sanskrit, 
is not just a name, it is a promise. A 
promise to detoxify, to heal, and to renew. At 
our Shuddhi clinics and hospitals, treatment 
is not limited to herbal remedies. It is a 
complete lifestyle intervention, encouraging 
individuals to adopt routines that are more 
disciplined, more natural, and more aligned 
with the body’s innate rhythm.

Through Shuddhi therapies and counselling, 
we help individuals reconnect with nature, 
reduce dependency on synthetic medicines, 
and embrace a preventive, long-term 
approach to health.

Our vision
To make the world healthy.

To create awareness about the causes 
and prevention of disease.

To use the benefits of Ayurveda and 
alternative treatments for recovery 
from disease.

Our mission
Our mission centres on providing 
enhanced Ayurvedic healthcare 
services, spreading vital awareness 
about healthy lifestyles, and revitalising 
India’s rich medical heritage through 
innovative approaches. 

Our values
With values rooted in integrity, 
authenticity, and efficacy, Jeena Sikho 
places a paramount focus on creating 
genuine products, offering ethical 
services, and delivering effective 
solutions.

Jeena Sikho at a glance

Ancient  
wisdom for  
a healthier today
At Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited (JSLL), 
we are more than a healthcare 
provider, we are a movement. A 
movement to restore balance, revive 
traditions, and redefine wellness. 
Founded in 2009 and incorporated 
in 2017, we are one of India’s leading 
Ayurvedic healthcare companies, 
delivering affordable, authentic, 
and effective holistic care. 

Company Profile

65
Operational 
clinics & day 
care centres

1,218+
Beds in 
pipeline

23
States 
covered 

330+
SKUS in Ayurveda 
medicine 
& product 
portfolio

71%
ROCE*:  
Capital-light 
business model

47%
3Y Top line 
CAGR**: as one 
of the fastest 
growing 
healthcare 
enterprises  

~481 
certified 
Ayurveda 
doctors

~659 
supporting 
healthcare 
personnel

NSE  
& BSE 
listed 

*3Y Average ROCE | **3Y Top line CAGR (FY22-25)

50
Operational 
hospitals

1,600
Beds 
operational

100+
Cities & towns 
covered 
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The man who 
gave Ayurveda 
a modern avatar

Our founder & leadership team 

At the heart of Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited is Acharya Manish Ji, 
a visionary leader, healer, and educator whose life’s mission is to 
realise a disease-free, drug-free Bharat. What began as a personal 
quest for healing during his own childhood illness, eventually 
transformed into a nationwide movement - one that repositions 
Ayurveda not just as an alternative, but as a primary path to wellness.

From vision to  
nationwide impact
Through JSLL, Acharya Ji has laid the foundation 
for a robust, structured, and accessible Ayurvedic 
care network, with over 115 clinics and hospitals 
across India. His expertise, accumulated over 
more than 15 years, extends across product 
formulation, treatment protocols, patient care, and 
public education.

He is not just a practitioner but a catalyst for 
change, using digital platforms like YouTube, 
Facebook, and Instagram to share knowledge; 
delivering informative sessions on major news 
channels such as NDTV and India TV; and leading 
community wellness initiatives through yoga 
sessions and health camps.

His reach extends far beyond cities and towns, 
as he speaks to millions of households each 
day, raising awareness and offering alternative 
solutions to modern-day health problems.

Making Ayurveda  
mainstream again
From his roots as a motivational speaker 
promoting preventive health to becoming a 
national voice in Ayurveda, Acharya Manish Ji 
has brought pragmatism, authenticity, and scale 
to an ancient science. He is widely regarded for 
demystifying Ayurveda and making it relevant for 
today’s generation, especially among the youth 
who increasingly seek natural and sustainable 
solutions.

His contribution extends beyond treatments. 
He has created educational content, led public 
engagement campaigns, and initiated grassroots-
level healthcare awareness, ensuring that Ayurveda 
is seen not as a last resort, but a first step.

A symbol of hope  
and healing
For us at Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited, Acharya 
Manish Ji is more than a founder; he is our guiding 
force. His resolute commitment to wellness, his 
deep faith in Ayurveda, and his drive to serve society 
have shaped every decision and direction we take.

He envisions a future where holistic health is not a 
privilege, but a right. His dream is not limited to India 
as he aspires to take India’s Ayurvedic heritage to 
the global stage. And with every new patient healed, 
every clinic opened, and every product created, we 
move one step closer to that dream.

youtube.com/@Chikitsaguru 

1.06M subscribers | 3.9K videos

youtube.com/@haveshuddhi 

519K subscribers | 2.8K videos

youtube.com/@HIIMSOfficial 

623K subscribers | 3.1K videos

facebook.com/GuruManishAyurveda/ 

328K Likes | 1.1M Followers

facebook.com/HaveShuddhi/ 

257K Likes | 777K Followers

facebook.com/hiimsofficial 

390K likes | 1.6M followers

facebook.com/shuddhiclinic

102K likes | 269K followers

instagram.com/haveshuddhi

294K followers 

instagram.com/shuddhiclinics

282K followers  

instagram.com/hiimsofficial

788K followers  

instagram.com/chikitsaguru

764K followers 

Social Media Channels

Dr. Abhishek
FOUNDER (AFI)

Prof. Ish Sharma 
MD, PH.D AYURVEDA

Acharya Manish Ji
NATUROPATHY & DIET 
EXPERT

Dr. BRC
PH.D, DIABETES

Dr. Neha Sharma
BAMS/ACLS, AUTISM

A visionary with a mission
Driven by a singular mantra - ‘अपना डॉक्टर खुद बनो’ (‘Be 
your own doctor’), Acharya Manish Ji has redefined how 
we view healthcare in modern India. His philosophy is 
based on self-awareness, preventive health, and nature-
aligned living. He firmly believes that the key to good 
health lies not in chemicals but in a harmonious balance 
of the body, mind, and lifestyle, guided by ancient 
Ayurvedic wisdom.

Through years of rigorous study in Ayurveda and 
Naturopathy, Acharya Ji developed the golden therapy; a 
proprietary, holistic treatment approach that addresses 
chronic and lifestyle diseases without harmful side 
effects. This revolutionary therapy now brings renewed 
hope to thousands across the country.

Media Presence

National &  
Regional TV Presence:

Acharya Ji’s journey started when 
conventional medicine failed to address his 
childhood health challenges. It was only after 
being introduced to Ayurveda by his uncle that 
his condition began to improve. That turning 
point ignited in him a purpose far greater 
than personal healing: to revive Ayurveda 
as a mainstream, science-backed, lifestyle-
oriented healthcare system accessible to all.

Today, along with the vision of  
Acharya Manish Ji, the Company is being 
driven forward by an equally strong and 
dedicated management team. This leadership 
brings deep expertise across diverse domains 
of healthcare. 
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From a  
vision to a 
Movement

Our journey

Our journey began in 2009, 
a single step towards a 
healthier, more balanced 
future, guided by the visionary 
ideals of Acharya Manish Ji. 

What started as a humble effort to 
offer Ayurvedic solutions has today 
grown into a respected healthcare 
institution impacting lives across 
India and beyond. Over the years,  
our focus has remained clear: to 
bring Ayurveda to the centre of 
modern healthcare, and to make 
holistic wellness accessible to all. The birth of a vision

The seeds of our story were planted in 2009, 
when Acharya Manish Ji envisioned a Bharat 
free from disease and drug dependency. That 
same year, we commenced the sale of Ayurvedic 
medicines, initiating our mission to offer natural, 
root-cause-based health solutions.

Expanding  
with new 
models and 
new markets
We surpassed 1,600 
operational bed 
capacity with newly 
added 573 beds across 
a total of 77 units.

Towards  
integrated care
We expanded from products to 
personalised healthcare services, 
establishing our first Ayurvedic 
centre in Chandigarh. This 
marked our entry into community-
based healing, offering patients 
the benefit of in-person diagnosis 
and lifestyle guidance.

Advanced 
care through 
Panchakarma
We reached a significant 
milestone in 2020 with the 
inauguration of the Shuddhi 
Ayurveda Panchakarma Hospital 
in Derabassi. This facility elevated 
our capacity to deliver deep 
detoxification and rejuvenation 
therapies, enhancing treatment 
outcomes and reinforcing our 
expertise in Panchakarma.

A milestone  
year
We crossed a remarkable 
revenue threshold, 
registering ₹324 crore in 
FY24, reflecting both the 
efficacy of our model and 
the growing relevance of 
Ayurveda in today’s health-
conscious environment.

Scaling  
with purpose
Our community’s trust fuelled 
our growth. By 2021, we had 
established over 50 operational 
centres across India, a tribute 
to the increasing demand for 
authentic, holistic healthcare and 
the credibility we had earned.

Public support
We successfully completed 
our IPO in 2022, raising  
₹55.5 crore. This capital 
infusion allowed us to 
accelerate our growth, 
strengthen our infrastructure, 
and expand our reach, 
reinforcing our commitment 
to wellness at scale.

Expanding reach. 
Deepening impact.
We widened our national  
footprint by opening large 
hospitals in Lucknow, Jaipur, 
and Navi Mumbai, while also 
launching 20 mid- and small-
sized centres across other cities.

Our brand  
of care
With our brand ‘Shuddhi 
Ayurveda’ officially launched 
in 2018, we began building a 
network of dedicated Ayurvedic 
healthcare centres across India. 

2013

2017

2018

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2009

Official 
incorporation
As our work and impact 
deepened, Jeena Sikho Lifecare 
was formally incorporated in 
2017, bringing structure and 
scale to our operations.
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Comprehensive care.   
Natural solutions. 

Our offerings

Our offerings reflect our commitment to 
holistic, accessible, and personalised care 
rooted in the ancient science of Ayurveda. 
We cater to every stage of the health 
continuum - preventive, curative, corrective, 
and maintenance - through a broad range 
of clinically guided, patient-focused services 
and products. By integrating tradition with 
innovation, and personalisation with scale, 
we continue to build a robust ecosystem for 
alternative and natural healthcare.

Complete 
healthcare 
services 
Our service delivery 
model is designed 
to ensure that care 
reaches people where 
they are and when 
they need it, through 
multiple formats.

01

05

03

07

02

06

04

Video-call Consultations 
(#)

FY25

1,02,556

FY24

53,292

FY23

11,959

In-patient services
Our hospitals offer round-the-clock medical 
supervision, with state-of-the-art infrastructure 
designed to provide a healing environment. 
Facilities include:
•	 Comfortable and hygienic rooms
•	 Customised Ayurvedic diet menus
•	 Specialised therapy units for Panchakarma, 

Reflexology, Yoga/Meditation, and Hot Water 
Immersion / Head Down Tilt (HWI/HDT)

Every aspect of in-patient care is curated to 
promote recovery, detoxification, and long-term 
health transformation.

Panchakarma therapies
A centrepiece of our care model, our 
Panchakarma therapies are delivered by trained 
Ayurvedic therapists using authentic procedures 
and herbal formulations. These treatments offer:
•	 Deep detoxification
•	 Physical rejuvenation
•	 Restoration of internal balance
By cleansing the body and balancing the 
‘doshas’, Panchakarma strengthens immunity 
and resets overall well-being.

72-hour health camps
We organise regular 72-hour health camps 
across multiple locations to:
•	 Raise awareness about Ayurvedic solutions
•	 Offer basic consultations and check-ups
•	 Encourage preventive care
Approximately 30% of attendees transition to in-
patient care, emphasising the trust we’ve earned 
and the relevance of our offerings. We organise 
regular health care camps each month.

Home-based 
healthcare services
Recognising the need for care beyond the 
clinic, we also provide:
•	 At-home consultations and therapies
•	 Medical kits for self-use
•	 Ongoing remote support for  

chronic care management
This ensures that our patients continue 
receiving the benefits of Ayurveda in the 
comfort and privacy of their homes.

Out-patient services 
and day care
Our network of Ayurvedic clinics across India 
is staffed with experienced doctors offering 
personalised consultations that cover:
•	 Diagnosis and root-cause analysis
•	 Prescriptions for herbal medication
•	 Individualised diet and lifestyle guidance
•	 Follow-up care and monitoring
For patients requiring therapeutic care without 
overnight admission, our day care facilities 
offer structured interventions and same-day 
discharge, balancing efficiency with efficacy.

Dietary support and 
nutrition guidance
We believe food is the first medicine. Our 
expert dieticians provide individualised 
counselling to help patients adopt sustainable 
dietary habits aligned with Ayurvedic 
principles. This service plays a critical role in 
both treatment and prevention.

Comprehensive Patient 
Support, Anytime, 
Anywhere
At Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited, patient care 
goes beyond physical clinics. Through our 
dedicated healthcare support centre, we make 
Ayurvedic guidance easily accessible to people 
across India. Patients can connect with our 
qualified doctors not only via phone but also 
through live video-call consultations, bringing 
expert advice right into their homes.
In addition, our support team assists with:
•	 Order placement, follow-up, and fulfilment
•	 Patient support and grievance redressal
•	 Insurance guidance
•	 Consumer support & grievance redressal 
This combination of compassionate human 
interaction and modern communication channels 
ensures that Ayurvedic care with JSLL remains 
connected, convenient, and truly patient-focused.
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Our offerings (Contd.)

Ayurvedic products 
backed by efficacy 
and trust
Our core strength lies in our broad-
based and fast-growing Ayurvedic 
product portfolio. We currently offer 
~330 SKUs of herbal and Ayurvedic 
products, targeting a wide spectrum 
of health concerns, from lifestyle 
disorders to chronic ailments. These 
formulations are designed to detoxify, 
rejuvenate, and revitalise, staying true 
to the principles of traditional Ayurveda 
while meeting the expectations of 
the modern consumer. Backed by 
high patient satisfaction and growing 
market acceptance, our product line 
has proven its ability to transform 
health outcomes naturally. 

Omni-channel reach. 
Expanding distribution.
To ensure our products are readily available  
and supported, we have adopted a multi-
channel sales approach:

Integrated 
healthcare 
infrastructure
Beyond products, Jeena Sikho 
has built a solid foundation of 
healthcare delivery through 
Shuddhi Ayurveda Hospitals, 
Shuddhi Clinics, and Shuddhi day 
care centres. Together, they reflect 
our integrated care philosophy 
rooted in natural healing and 
guided by certified experts.

Our Top selling 
products

Newly launched
In December 2024

Upcoming Products 

Existing channels  
Our in-house call centres and thriving 
e-commerce platforms provide nationwide 
access, while our growing network of 
healthcare centres ensures face-to-face 
engagement and guidance.

Planned expansion Looking 
ahead, we are preparing to unlock the 
over-the-counter (OTC) retail opportunity by 
launching selected product lines through 
pharmacies, a move aimed at significantly 
increasing visibility and reach across urban 
and semi-urban markets.

1. 	Shuddhi Ayurveda 
Panchakarma 
Hospitals
These hospitals provide full-
fledged Ayurvedic therapies rooted 
in the Panchakarma tradition, 
known for their deep detoxification 
and rejuvenation effects. With 
certified doctors and trained 
personnel on-site, patients receive 
not just treatments but complete 
care including accommodation, 
balanced meals, and round-the-
clock medical attention.

2.	Shuddhi 
Panchakarma Day-
Care Clinics
Designed for outpatient therapies 
that do not require overnight 
stays, our day-care clinics offer 
focused interventions with 
full medical oversight, making 
Ayurvedic treatment accessible to 
the working population and those 
seeking short-term care.

3.	Shuddhi Clinics
Our Shuddhi Clinics have 
been instrumental in bringing 
Ayurveda closer to communities. 
These are located across 
multiple cities and operated 
under our SOPs, ensuring 
consistency in care delivery 
whether the clinic is Company-
owned or franchisee-run. 

Key features of Shuddhi 
Clinics
•	 Reliable, addiction-free  

Ayurvedic remedies
•	 World-class facilities with 

hygienic, spacious environments
•	 Affordable or free counselling 

services
•	 Experienced and certified  

Ayurvedic doctors
•	 Painless diagnostic approaches  

with no surgical intervention

Through these clinics, we are 
not only expanding access but 
also enhancing awareness 
and acceptance of Ayurveda 
as a mainstream solution to 
today’s lifestyle-driven health 
challenges.

01 		  Dr. LVR (60 Tablet) 

02 		  Dr. Kidney Care (90 Tablets) 

03 		  Dr. Madhu Care (60 Tablets) 

04		  Dr. Sukoon (60 Tablets) 

05 		  Dr. BP Care (60 Tablets) 

06 		  NutriRoz 32 Herbs 

07 		  NutriRoz 42 Herbs 

08 		  Gyno Xpert Syrup (500 ml)

09 		  Jod Xpert Oil (120 ml) 

10 		  Rakt Shuddhi Syrup (500 ml)
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Our offerings (Contd.)

Flagship health care facilities
We have established premier Ayurvedic facilities across strategic locations, 
reflecting our adherence to clinical and operational excellence.

Meerut,  
Uttar Pradesh  
Operational  
since Dec 2022 

471 Beds

NABH-accredited

Lucknow, 
Uttar Pradesh 
Operational  
since Jun 2022  

115 Beds

NABH-accredited

Derabassi, 
Punjab   
Operational  
since Oct 2020  

113 Beds

NABH-accredited

Navi Mumbai, 
Maharashtra   
Operational  
since Nov 2022  

163 Beds

NABH-accredited

As of FY25, 41 of our hospitals 
and clinics have been accredited 
by the National Accreditation 
Board for Hospitals & Healthcare 
Providers (NABH) - a strong 
evidence of our commitment to 
delivering the highest standards 
of ethical, quality-centric, and 
patient-focused Ayurvedic care. 
An additional 6 facilities are in the 
pipeline for NABH accreditation, 
further reinforcing our emphasis 
on continuous improvement and 
institutional credibility.

We take pride in being a leading 
organised player in the Ayurveda 
healthcare space, with:

•	 ~8% share in NABH-accredited 
Panchakarma clinics across 
India (124 in total)

•	 ~9% share in NABH-accredited 
AYUSH hospitals across India 
(340 in total)

•	 A growing network of NABH-
compliant facilities that set 
benchmarks for excellence in 
alternative healthcare

Through these accreditations, 
we continue to strengthen 
our position as a trusted and 
compliant healthcare institution 
within the AYUSH ecosystem.

Note: NABH accredited data as  
on 6th May 2025

Insurance acceptance &  
government empanelment
We are empanelled with a broad spectrum of insurance providers and 
numerous state government health schemes, making our services more 
accessible, affordable, and inclusive. These affiliations reflect the credibility, 
quality, and ethical standards we uphold in delivering Ayurvedic care, and 
reaffirm our commitment to making holistic healthcare available to all 
sections of society.

Government Panel 
Delhi- CGHS, CAPF, DDA, CBSE, CWC, 
CSIR, BIS, MMTC, Navodaya

Rajasthan- CGHS, RGHS, ECHS, CAPF 

Haryana- CGHS, CAPF, DDA, CBSE, 
CSIR, CWC, BIS, RGHS

Karnataka- CGHS

Uttar Pradesh- CGHS, CAPF, DDA, 
CBSE, CWC, CSIR, BIS, MMTC, DGHS

Maharashtra- CGHS, CAPF, AIR INDIA

Punjab- CAPF, CGHS

The seven central  
armed police forces

Fintech-Financing

AR- Assam Rifles 
BSF- Border Security Force

CISF- Central Industrial Security Force

CRPF- Central Reserve Police Force 

ITBP- Indo-Tibetan Border Police 

NSG- National Security Guard

SSB- Sashastra Seema Bal

Commitment 
to quality and 
ethics

Panchkula, 
Haryana   
Operational  
since Aug 2024  

50 Beds

NABH-accredited
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Ease of access to   
holistic wellness

Our footprint

Accessibility of the healing power of Ayurveda is a key element of our 
mission. Through strategic expansion and focus on patient-centric 
care, we have built one of the most extensive networks of Ayurvedic 
hospitals and clinics in the country.

Pan-India presence 
Our corporate headquarters in Zirakpur, 
Punjab, along with a key business 
execution centre in Delhi, serve as 
strategic anchors in our mission 
to extend the reach and impact of 
Ayurveda across the nation.

Hub-and-spoke model
We operate on a robust hub-and-
spoke geographical expansion 
model, which enables us to deliver 
consistent, high-quality care while 
scaling efficiently. This strategic 
model anchors large, well-equipped 
Ayurvedic hospitals as hubs, 

supported by a growing constellation 
of spoke clinics, ensuring wide access 
to preventive, curative, and lifestyle-
based therapies. By decentralising 
care and streamlining delivery through 
this model, we not only optimise 
resource utilisation but also enhance 
reach across urban and rural India.

International 
expansion
We have taken our first step towards 
global growth with plans for a centre 
in UAE, which will mark our foray into 
the international markets. 

Bringing Ayurvedic 
healthcare closer to 
communities

50
Operational 
hospitals

20
facilities in pipeline

100+
cities and towns 
covered 

65
operational clinics and 
day care centres

1,600
operational beds

1,218
beds in pipeline

23
states covered

Assam
1 franchise 
Bihar 
1 hospital | 10 franchises
Chandigarh
1 hospital 
Chhattisgarh
1 hospital | 1 clinic | 1 franchise
Delhi 
3 hospitals | 7 clinics | 1 franchise 
Goa
1 hospital 
Gujarat
3 hospitals | 1 clinic | 1 franchise 
Haryana
4 hospitals | 1 clinic | 6 franchises
Himachal Pradesh
2 clinics 
Jammu & Kashmir
1 franchise 
Jharkhand
1 hospital | 1 clinic | 1 franchise 
Karnataka
1 hospital 
Maharashtra
4 hospitals | 1 clinic | 4 franchises
Madhya Pradesh
2 hospitals | 1 clinic | 1 franchise 
Odisha
2 franchises 
Punjab
3 hospitals | 5 clinics | 1 franchise 
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Rajasthan
10 hospitals
Tamil Nadu
1 hospital 
Telangana
1 hospital 
Tripura
1 franchise 
Uttar Pradesh
11 hospitals | 5 clinics | 5 
franchises
Uttarakhand
1 hospital | 1 franchise 
West Bengal
1 hospital | 2 clinics | 1 franchise
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Note - Map only for illustration purposes, not to scale.
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Synergistic. 
Scalable.    
Sustainable.

Business model positioning

We operate a well-integrated, 
dual-vertical business model 
that combines high-margin 
Ayurvedic products with scalable 
healthcare services. This unique 
convergence reinforced by a light 
capital model, robust franchise 
network, and synergistic 
cross-sell structure, enables 
us to deliver holistic wellness 
solutions while maintaining 
operational flexibility, optimising 
capital deployment, and achieving 
sustained financial growth.

As we expand our footprint 
across India and venture globally, 
we remain focused on delivering 
value to all stakeholders - 
patients, partners, franchisees, and 
shareholders alike.

85%. Sales are driven through multiple 
channels, including in-house healthcare 
centres, franchise partners, tele-calling 
operations, e-commerce, and now via 
OTC channel. By working with a trusted 
network of third-party manufacturers, 
we ensure uncompromised quality and 
uninterrupted supply. This vertical not 
only strengthens our service ecosystem 
but also generates healthy cash flows 
that reinforce the Company’s financial 
stability.

Strong Synergy 
Between Products 
and Services
A key differentiator of our model 
is the natural synergy between the 
services and product businesses. 
Patients who initially purchase our 
Ayurvedic products often engage with 
our healthcare centres for deeper 
wellness interventions, while patients 
receiving treatments at our centres are 
introduced to our product portfolio for 

Integrated  
Hub-and-Spoke 
Healthcare Network
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited delivers 
Ayurveda-based healthcare through a 
wide network of hospitals and clinics, 
strategically structured using a hub-
and-spoke model. This design ensures 
maximum accessibility for patients 
while maintaining operational efficiency. 
The model is both CAPEX and OPEX-
efficient, enabling optimal utilisation 
of resources and minimisation of fixed 
costs. By leveraging economies of 
scale, we gain substantial operating 
leverage once occupancy breakeven 
levels are surpassed, allowing for 
sustainable and scalable expansion.

High-Margin 
Ayurvedic Product 
Portfolio
Our Ayurvedic product vertical serves 
as a strong financial backbone, 
delivering gross margins of nearly 

Bundled  
sale of services + 

products

Bundled  
sale of services + 

products

ProductsServices

Hospitals Clinics & Day 
Care

OTC B2C: Tele-calling  
& e-com

B2B: Sales to 
Franchise Centers

JSLL’s business verticals

sustained, long-term health support. 
This symbiotic relationship strengthens 
patient loyalty, enhances lifetime value, 
and drives incremental revenue growth 
across both verticals.

Robust and 
Balanced Financial 
Performance
In FY25, Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited 
recorded revenues of INR 254 Crores 
from Ayurveda healthcare services, 
contributing 54% of total revenue. The 
Ayurvedic product vertical generated 
INR 215 Crores, accounting for the 
remaining 46%. This balanced split 
highlights the strength and resilience 
of our dual-vertical model. By deriving 
income from both services and 
products, we have positioned ourselves 
for sustainable, profitable growth while 
mitigating business risk.
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Turning interest    
into impact 

Robust Care Funnel

Our robust care funnel lies at the heart of our mission to make 
holistic, Ayurvedic healthcare accessible and effective for all. 
Built on the pillars of education, engagement and empathy, our 
care funnel transforms first-time interactions into lasting 
relationships. It enables us to reach out, inform, inspire and 
ultimately convert interest into action, spanning the entire patient 
journey from awareness to inpatient care.

Our funnel is a meticulously structured system that integrates online engagement, 
multimedia outreach, offline initiatives, and personalised patient support. Through 
this, we not only expand our reach but also reinforce our commitment to quality 
care, enhancing our revenue streams and operational growth in the process.

Omni-channel visibility
Building trust and awareness at scale
Our care funnel begins with omnipresent visibility, 
leveraging the vast reach of social media, national and 
regional television, radio, print, and even cinema to 
spread awareness about holistic wellness and Ayurvedic 
care. These platforms help us position ourselves not just 
as healthcare providers, but as health educators.

Our media presence includes:
•	 National & regional television, newspapers, radio, and 

cinema - These traditional media channels enable 
us to access a diverse and expansive demographic, 
driving both brand credibility and patient inflow

•	 Social media channels - We maintain one of the most 
formidable digital footprints in the Indian alternative 
medicine space, fostering awareness and patient 
education

Our digital impact includes

Call centre 
outreach
Converting queries into 
consultations
Beyond visibility, our Client Support 
Centre ensures that every enquiry 
is nurtured into meaningful 
engagement. Through continuous 
and proactive interaction, our trained 
executives reach out to potential and 
existing patients, resolve queries, and 
schedule appointments. This touch 
point forms the connective tissue 
between awareness and action, 
ensuring timely medical guidance and 
fostering patient trust.

Healthcare camps
Direct outreach.  
Direct impact.
Our 72-hour healthcare camps play a 
pivotal role in identifying and guiding 
patients who require more intensive 
care. These camps not only serve as 
revenue-generating events but also 
create a structured referral system for 
our clinics and hospitals. 

During FY25, we conducted 18 
healthcare camps, attended by  
1,244 cumulative visitors, each of 
whom entered our ecosystem through  
real-time, on-ground engagement.

Outpatient growth
From walk-in to wellness
Our outpatient, COD, and VC model 
have collectively helped us serve 
millions of patients, year after year. 
This steady rise in OPD and allied 
volumes reflects the trust we have 
built, and our ability to cater to diverse 
patient needs across geographies.

Cumulative OPD,  
COD & VC patients served 
(In Lakh)

Inpatient  
Department (IPD): 
The final destination of the 
care funnel
The hallmark of our funnel’s 
effectiveness is visible in the 
exponential growth of our Inpatient 
Department (IPD) volumes. Each patient 
entering IPD reflects a successful 
journey through the funnel, from initial 
awareness to advanced care.

Total IPD Patients served:
(#)

FY25

5.46
FY24

4.61

FY23

3.85

FY22 FY25FY24FY23FY22

3.75 24,57813,1595,7281,418

@Chikitsaguru - 

1.01M subscribers 
3.3K videos

@HIIMSOfficial - 

598K subscribers 
2.6K videos

@haveshuddhi - 

494K subscribers 
2.3K videos

Guru Manish 
Ayurveda 

3.1 lakh likes 
8.7 lakh 
followers

HIIMS Official 

3.7 lakh likes 
14 lakh 
followers

@chikitsaguru   

794K 
followers

Youtube Facebook Instagram

Have Shuddhi  

2.6 lakh likes 
7.5 lakh 
followers

@shuddhiclinics  

286K  
followers

Shuddhi Clinic  

1 lakh likes 
2.7 lakh 
followers

@haveshuddhi   

284K  
followers

@hiimsofficial   

794K 
followers

Together, these channels serve as vital touch points, offering curated content that educates, inspires and influences 
healthcare choices across age groups and geographies.

National & Regional TV Presence:

THESE FIGURES REAFFIRM 
OUR ABILITY TO TRANSFORM 
FIRST CONTACT INTO 
LONG-TERM CARE, DRIVING 
BOTH SOCIAL IMPACT AND 
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE.
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A year of  
Purposeful  
Progress

Letter to shareholders

Dear Shareholders,
It gives me immense pride to 
address you at the close of yet 
another transformative year at 
Jeena Sikho Lifecare. 

FY25 was a period of focused 
execution, disciplined expansion, 
and deep commitment to our 
mission of healing India through 
authentic Ayurvedic and 
alternative medicine practices.

Staying true to our purpose
Our journey is rooted in a simple yet powerful 
belief that nature has the power to heal, and that 
holistic care can change lives. We continue to 
lead the resurgence of Ayurveda and alternative 
therapies as trusted and effective solutions for 
chronic, lifestyle and critical ailments.

As India grapples with rising healthcare costs 
and accessibility challenges, especially in 
non-urban geographies, our approach stands 
out. We offer a complete continuum of 
care - from prevention and wellness to cure 
and maintenance - by integrating Ayurveda, 
Panchakarma, Homeopathy, and Naturopathy. 
Our focus is not only on treating symptoms but 
also on addressing the root cause and restoring 
harmony in body, mind, and spirit.

Strengthening our 
foundations
We now have 1,600 operational beds (with 
1,218 in pipeline) across our facilities - a 
significant increase from the previous year. Our 
focus on expanding access through a capital-
light model has proven to be a game-changer. 
This strategy allows us to add capacity with 
minimal upfront investment, faster break-even, 
and greater operational leverage.

Additionally, our average occupancy rate for 
the entire portfolio averaged 53%, with several 
mature hospitals like Dera Bassi, Lucknow, and 
Mumbai achieving 70-90% occupancy. We’re 
now aiming for an overall occupancy level of 
60-70% in FY26.

Our hospitals are known for delivering 
consistent and high-quality care. With 41 
NABH-certified facilities and 6 more on the 
way, we remain committed to the highest 
standards of quality & clinical excellence. We 
are also proud to have developed scientific 
rigour, with 370 research papers contributed, of 
which 70 have been accepted and 17 published.

Scaling with purpose
Our mission to make Ayurveda more accessible 
is being realised through the strategic rollout 
of new centres, capacity additions in existing 
hospitals, and aggressive brand building 
across underpenetrated regions. We are also 
scaling high-margin verticals such as liver 
health, infertility (especially IVF failure cases), 
depression, and sexual wellness. Liver check-
up camps are now driving significant patient 
flow across seven hospitals, and we are seeing 
tangible outcomes, including 16 cases of 
conception in IVF failure patients using our 
integrative approach.

We are also enabling cashless insurance 
options to increase volumes, supported by tie-
ups with 12 private insurers and multiple public 
insurance players. The recent inclusion of 
Ayurveda under Ayushman Bharat will further 
democratise access to our services.

On the product side, we are exploring OTC 
channels and e-commerce for our Ayurvedic 
kits and formulations. We are preparing 
for a more focused push into this space. 
Accordingly, we are also constantly expanding 
our product offerings in this segment. 

Strong growth. 
Strengthened belief.
FY25 was a landmark year in many ways.  
We crossed a significant threshold with 
revenues reaching ₹469 crore, growing 
45% over the previous year. This was driven 
primarily by an 84% surge in our services 
revenue to ₹254 crore, as patient confidence 
in our hospitals, clinics, and day-care centres 
deepened. Simultaneously, our products 
business grew to ₹215 crore, supported by a 
strong portfolio and the successful launch 
of innovations like the Water INJK Technique 
Device and most recently Pet Liver Shuddhi 
Kit. We have over 10 more innovative product 
launches planned this year, which will further 
boost our overall product portfolio. 

Notably, we achieved this while navigating 
inflationary pressures and the costs of 
expansion. Our EBITDA stood at ₹125 crore with 
a margin of 27%, and PAT at ₹91 crore. These 
numbers reflect not just financial prudence, but 
the scalability and resilience of our model.

Investing in people and 
processes
Behind every milestone lies the dedication of our 
people. Our team strength rose to 3,700 in FY25, 
including 481 Ayurvedic doctors. We continue to 
invest in hiring, training, and onboarding talent 
from top Ayurvedic institutions, which will be 
strengthened especially through our Ayurveda 
college hospital tie-ups. These partnerships not 
only support our growth but also enhance the 
clinical experience and quality of care.

We’ve also expanded our call centre to 800 seats 
to improve outreach, patient education, and 
follow-up services. With this infrastructure in 
place, we are better equipped to serve patients 
at scale with personalised care.

Looking ahead with 
confidence
As we look to FY26, we are optimistic about 
achieving another record year in revenue and 
crossing 3,000 operational beds. Over the next 
five years, we aim to scale up to 8,000-10,000 
beds, mostly via our asset-light model. With 
increasing traction in insurance, new product 
launches, and higher utilisation of our existing 
assets, we expect profitability to improve further.

Our migration to the main board has marked 
another step in our journey of transparency, 
governance, and shareholder value creation. We 
remain deeply committed to creating long-term 
value through operational excellence, disciplined 
expansion, and the transformative power of 
Ayurveda.

Thank you for your 
continued trust and belief 
in our vision. Together, 
we are not just building a 
Company, we are nurturing 
a movement for a healthier, 
more balanced India.

Warm regards,

Manish Grover
MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Delivering growth.  
Scaling impact.

Key Performance Indicators

Revenue from 
operations

EBITDA

FY25FY24FY23FY22FY21

FY25FY24FY23FY22FY21

FY25FY24FY23FY22FY21 FY25FY24FY23FY22FY21 FY25FY24FY23FY22FY21

FY25FY24FY23FY22FY21

FY25FY24FY23FY22FY21

(In H Crore)
(In H Crore)

`469 Cr `125 Cr
469 125324 93204 46146 18136 17

PAT Margin
(In %)

19%21%16%8%8%

ROE
(In %)

39%44%42%37%55%

ROCE
(In %)

63% 63%80%70%64%99%

IPD patient 
volumes 

OPD  
patient 
volumes 

Medicine 
order 
volumes (In #)

(In # Lakh) (In H Crore)

24,578 3.37 4.43 4.432.0924,57813,1595,728 3.372.521.57 2.27

Active 
operational 
centres 
(In H)

115 115111124

PAT
(In H Crore)

`91 Cr
9169341110

EBITDA Margin
(In %)

27%29%23%12%12%

Financial indicators

Operational indicators

Revenue-mix 
(In ₹ Crore) 

253.8 | 215.3
Services Products

215.3253.8 185.9138.7 
FY25FY24FY23

FY25FY24FY23

141.362.6

(In ₹ Crore & %) 

117.8 | 25% 117.8

25%

52.0

16%

23.9

12%

(In #)

1,600 FY25FY24FY23

FY25FY24FY23

FY25FY24FY23

FY25FY24FY23

FY25FY24FY23

FY25FY24FY23

FY25FY24FY23

1,6001,277460

Operational 
beds 

(In H)

8,200 8,2007,9006,100

Average 
revenue  
per bed* (In #)

850 850490280

Beds 
occupied

*rounded off

Government panel 
revenue
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Champions  
of Ayurveda

Our leadership

Board of Directors
Our Board of Directors brings together decades of diverse 
experience and sectoral insight, united by a singular purpose 
- to lead the resurgence of Ayurveda and holistic wellness in 
India and beyond. They provide clear vision, governance, and 
strategic foresight that strengthens our credibility and 
drives long-term value creation.

Management team
Our management team translates vision into execution, 
blending discipline, agility, and a deep commitment to 
customer well-being. Each member leads a critical function 
within the organisation, from clinic operations to marketing, 
from people management to finance. Together, they ensure 
seamless functioning, quality care, and sustained innovation.

Mr. Manish Grover
MANAGING DIRECTOR
The driving force behind Jeena Sikho 
Lifecare and the founder of Shuddhi 
Ayurveda, Mr. Manish Grover is a visionary 
entrepreneur with nearly 16 years of 
experience in the Ayurvedic healthcare 
space. Since beginning his journey in 2009, 
he has tirelessly championed the cause 
of natural healing and established Jeena 
Sikho as a trusted name in Ayurveda. 

With his leadership, the Company was 
incorporated in 2017 and has expanded 
rapidly. He actively promotes the Shuddhi 
brand across television and digital media, 
advocating for holistic wellness. Mr. Grover 
holds a B. Com degree from Chaudhary 
Charan Singh University, Meerut.

Mrs. Bhavna Grover
WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR
An integral part of the leadership since 
inception, Mrs. Bhavna Grover brings over 
six years of experience in HR and legal 
administration. Her attention to internal 
systems and compliance has helped 
institutionalise governance and operational 
integrity at Jeena Sikho. She is a graduate 
in Arts from Punjab University.

Ms. Shreya Grover
DIRECTOR
With a fresh perspective and keen insight 
into evolving market trends, Ms. Shreya 
Grover represents the next generation 
of leadership. Her focus is on modern 
marketing strategies and innovation, 
enabling Jeena Sikho to connect with newer 
audiences and build a future-ready brand.

Ms. Priyanka Bansal
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
Priyanka Bansal, holds a B.Com (Hons), 
Chartered Accountant qualification, and 
Diploma in Web & Software Engineering. 
With 14+ years in finance, taxation, and 
auditing, she brings specialized expertise 
to her newly appointed role as Additional 
Director (Non-Executive, Independent).

Mr. Karan Vir Bindra
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
Mr. Bindra brings rich experience in 
corporate governance and compliance. 
Having served in senior positions 
such as Company Secretary at Ind-
Swift and Marble Finvest, he currently 
offers consulting services in Corporate 
Compliance and GST. He is an associate 
member of the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India, and holds degrees in 
Law and Commerce.

Mr. Chandan Kumar 
Kaushal
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
With over 36 years of service in Ayurveda 
and Unani medicine, Mr. Kaushal brings 
clinical depth and public health insights to 
our Board. A seasoned professional who 
began his journey as an Ayurveda Medical 
Officer, he retired as the District Ayurveda 
Unani Officer cum Drug Inspector in Moga, 
Mohali. His extensive knowledge enriches 
our therapeutic offerings and medical 
standards.

Mr. Nanak Chand 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

Dr. Neha Sharma 
DOCTOR & VOPD HEAD

Ms. Smita 
Chaturvedi  
COMPANY SECRETARY 

Mr. Gaurav 
Mohan Garg 
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 
HEAD 

Mr. Sahil Jain 
CHIEF OPERATING 
OFFICER 

Dr. Ish Sharma 
HEAD TRAINING DOCTOR 

Ms. Akansha Jain 
HR HEAD 

Mr. Mukesh 
Grover 
ADMINISTRATOR HEAD 

Mr. Pardeep 
Kumar Thakur 
MANAGER  
OPERATIONS - CLINIC 

Ms. Namrta 
Chaudhary 
CLIENT SUPPORT  
CENTRE HEAD 

Dr. Avira Gautam 
DOCTOR
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A robust 
framework for a   
responsible future

Corporate Governance

Corporate governance is 
more than a regulatory 
requirement, it is a 
reflection of our 
commitment to long-
term value creation and 
our mission of advancing 
holistic healthcare 
through Ayurveda. Our 
governance framework is 
anchored in ethics, driven 
by transparency, and 
guided by accountability. 
It ensures that we 
remain steadfast in our 
responsibilities to our 
shareholders, our patients, 
our employees, and the 
communities we serve.

Over the years, we have steadily 
enhanced our governance 
standards to align with the 
scale and ambition of our 
growing organisation. In FY25, 
we took several meaningful 
strides to reinforce the 
governance backbone that 
supports our operations and 
drives stakeholder confidence.

Trust through transparency
We believe that informed investors are confident 
investors. That is why we prioritise proactive, 
two-way communication. Through detailed 
investor presentations and regular conference 
calls, we provide timely updates on our financial 
performance, strategic direction, and operational 
developments. These interactions reflect our 
openness and foster a strong foundation of trust 
with the investor community.

Three years of consistent 
dividend for our 
shareholders
FY25 marked the third consecutive year of dividend 
payouts since our listing in 2022. Our continued 
payouts in FY23, FY24, and FY25 highlight 
our ability to generate consistent profits while 
reinvesting in our core mission: delivering high-
quality, affordable Ayurvedic healthcare at scale.

01 02

Upholding ethical leadership
We have instituted a robust Code of Conduct 
applicable to our Board of Directors and senior 
management. This code lays down the principles 
of professional behaviour and ethical decision-
making, encouraging our leadership to uphold 
the highest standards of integrity. We ensure 
compliance with all laws and regulations, not just 
in form, but in spirit, across every geography in 
which we operate. The code reinforces our values 
of honesty, responsibility, and purpose-driven 
leadership.

Migration to NSE & BSE 
mainboard in August 2025
With consistent financial performance and 
strengthened governance practices, Jeena Sikho 
Lifecare has successfully migrated from the NSE 
SME Emerge Platform to the NSE & BSE Mainboard 
in August 2025. This milestone has elevated our 
visibility, improved access to capital markets, and 
opened us to a much wider investor base. 

03 04

Governance in the public eye
Transparency is embedded in our governance 
architecture. Our Code of Conduct, and any 
subsequent amendments, are published on our 
corporate website (please visit www.jeenasikho.
com for details) for all stakeholders to access. This 
public availability reflects our belief in openness 
and our willingness to be held accountable by those 
we serve.

Audit oversight with 
independence
Our Audit Committee is chaired by an Independent 
Director, ensuring objectivity, independent 
judgment, and a culture of oversight in financial 
reporting and internal controls. This structure 
enhances checks and balances, fortifies our risk 
management efforts, and ensures that decisions 
are made in the best interests of all stakeholders.

05 05
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Strategically scaling 
alternative medicine 

Outlook

Our journey is guided by a single, clear vision: to make holistic, 
affordable and evidence-based Ayurvedic healthcare accessible 
to all. We are building a robust and scalable ecosystem that 
combines the wisdom of Ayurveda with strategic operational 
expansion and clinical excellence.

Our growth is rooted in our commitment to integrated, evidence-based 
alternative healthcare. Our unique strengths position us well to scale 
responsibly, serve more patients, and lead the way in Ayurvedic and  
holistic healing.

An integrated and 
holistic model
Our model is built around an integrated 
approach that combines Ayurveda, 
Panchakarma, Homeopathy, and 
Naturopathy. This enables us to deliver 
complete healthcare - prevention, 
diagnosis, treatment, and wellness 
management - under one roof. Through 
this synergy, we address a broad range 
of chronic and lifestyle diseases with 
safe, natural, and time-tested solutions.

Founder-led vision 
and deep expertise
Our journey is guided by the profound 
vision of our founder, Acharya Manish 
Ji, whose expertise and commitment to 
Ayurveda have laid the groundwork for 
JSLL’s mission. Backed by a qualified 
and passionate professional team, we 
deliver consistent, compassionate care 
to all patients.

Optimising existing 
assets
We are working to increase the 
utilisation of our existing hospitals 
and clinics by improving patient flow 
and service delivery. This will help us 
extract greater value from our current 
network and achieve better operating 
leverage.

Capacity expansion
To meet rising demand, we plan to open 
new centres and expand bed capacity 
in our existing ones. This expansion will 
not only increase our service coverage 
but also help us cater to a broader 
demographic more effectively.

Skilled medical talent
Our team of highly qualified Ayurvedic 
doctors has extensive experience in 
managing complex and chronic health 
conditions. Their clinical expertise 
ensures superior patient outcomes 
through holistic therapies, fostering 
trust and credibility in our offerings.

Proven track record
Over the years, we have treated several 
lakh patients, enabling them to live 
healthier lives without side effects. Our 
products and therapies have repeatedly 
demonstrated clinical effectiveness, 
building strong validation for our 
approach.

Capital-light, scalable 
business model
Our unique capital-light model, 
comprising a mix of Company-operated 
and franchised centres, enables 
fast-paced expansion with high 
operating leverage. By keeping per-bed 
investment minimal and focusing on 
swift breakeven, we generate robust 
ROCE and strong profitability, making 
our growth highly scalable.

Widening medicine 
reach via OTC 
channel
We are entering the OTC (over-the-
counter) sales segment for Ayurvedic 
medicines, making our products easily 
accessible via pharmacies, retail 
outlets, and online platforms. This 
will boost product visibility, consumer 
access, and revenue.

Innovative product 
kits
We will continue to introduce new 
Ayurvedic kits catering to specific 
health conditions and lifestyle needs, 
strengthening our product portfolio and 
consumer engagement.

Insurance enablement 
to drive volumes
We are collaborating with insurance 
providers to facilitate cashless 
insurance at our facilities. This will 
reduce the financial burden on patients 
and make Ayurvedic care more 
accessible to a wider audience.

Rigorous quality 
and accreditation
We maintain high-quality standards 
across our network. As of FY25, 41 
of our facilities are NABH-certified, 
with 6 more under accreditation. 
This reinforces our credibility and 
adherence to best practices in 
Ayurvedic healthcare.

Scientific validation 
and evidence-based 
care
We remain committed to backing 
Ayurveda with science. We have 
developed and submitted 370 
research papers, of which 70 have 
been accepted and 17 published. This 
drive for empirical validation sets 
us apart in the alternative medicine 
space.

Increased coverage 
under government 
schemes
We anticipate greater inclusion of 
our centres under government health 
panels and the Ministry of AYUSH 
programmes. This will help us serve 
government employees and their 
families with affordable Ayurvedic 
treatment.

Accelerating brand 
building
To support our expansion, we are 
investing in focused brand-building 
campaigns to enhance awareness 
and recall, especially in untapped 
and underpenetrated geographies. A 
strong brand will be critical in capturing 
consumer trust and market share.

Strengths driving holistic growth

Strengths driving holistic growth
As Ayurveda gains mainstream acceptance across India and 
globally, we are building on our strengths to scale sustainably, 
deepen our presence, and enhance our offerings. Our strategic 
roadmap focuses on multiple growth levers.

28 29Annual Report 2024-25 Annual Report 2024-25JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED

C
O

R
PO

R
ATE O

VER
VIEW



Voices of trust 
Testimonials

We believe the true measure of our impact lies not just in 
numbers, but in the lives we transform. The voices of our 
patients, drawn from cities, towns, and villages across India, 
speak with sincerity and conviction about their journeys 
toward better health and well-being through Ayurveda.

Their stories echo our 
commitment to holistic 
healing, our empathy in 
care delivery, and the 
tangible improvements 
they’ve experienced 
under our guidance. 
Whether its relief from 
long-standing chronic 
conditions or renewed 
vitality in daily life, our 
patients stand as living 
proof of the effectiveness 
and credibility of our 
therapies.

Comedian Bharti 
Singh’s Mother
When Mrs. Singh was admitted to 
our facility, allopathic doctors had 
advised her to take dialysis but 
she avoided this course of action. 
Since she began her treatment, she 
noticed significant improvement 
in her health. She was on insulin 
for 20-25 years before she came 
to Jeena Sikho Lifecare. Within 4 
days, she was off the insulin.

Mr. Vivek Kumar
A Liver Cirrhosis patient for five 
years, taking multiple treatments. 
After getting in touch with 
Acharyaji, he has now stopped his 
allopathy medicines.

Mr. Rajiv Thakur
When our clients’ parents came 
to Jeena Sikho after years of 
declining health, Acharya Manish’s 
personalized Ayurvedic care began 
reversing chronic issues within 
just three months. Half of their 
conditions have already healed, with 
steady progress on the rest. More 
than caregivers, our team fearlessly 
advocates for patients, challenging 
medical doubt with results. 

Mr. Rajesh Narang
He was suffering since 2013 and 
had already taken over seven 
chemo sessions, ultimately having 
to hear that it is not curable. 
After coming to Jeena Sikho and 
undergoing all the treatment for a 
week, he is feeling much better and 
a hope that he will be cured.

Smt. Neeta Kapoor
In 2017 when she came to Jeena 
Sikho, her heart pulse was very low, 
had a fatty liver, high uric acid, and 
a high lipid profile. Other doctors 
had advised her to use a pacemaker, 
otherwise her heart won’t function 
properly. She had consulted doctors 
across India and abroad too. But 
after getting in touch with Jeena 
Sikho, her heart pulse has improved 
and all other problems are in control.

Mr. Akshay Kumar
When he experienced a 14-day 
Ayurvedic retreat, he left behind 
TV, phones, and junk food—
embracing white kurta-pajamas, 
wholesome meals. He felt lighter, 
more peaceful, and renewed—like 
discovering a hidden paradise. 
The experience helped him truly 
understand the value of traditional 
treatments, including Ayurvedic 
medicines and therapies.

Prime Minister 
Narendra Modi’s 
Brother 
When Modi ji’s brother came to us 
he used to undergo dialysis twice 
a week wherein 4.5 litres of water 
was removed from his body. Now 
the water content has reduced to 3 
litres and he is looking forward to 
being free from dialysis soon.

Mr. Vivek Oberoi
He came to Jeena Sikho seeking 
true wellness through balance of 
mind and body. Guided by Acharya 
Manish, he began daily Shatayu 
Tea and learned meditation for 
lasting peace and mental stability. 
Now, he meets challenges with 
self-awareness and clarity. Grateful 
to Acharya Manish and our team, 
he proudly supports our mission to 
uplift the health and happiness of 
every Indian.

Mr. Ashwini 
Upadhyay  
When top hospitals 
recommended knee surgery for 
his father, he came to our HIMS 
Chandigarh centre - just ten days 
of Ayurvedic and rehab care had 
his father walking pain-free, no 
surgery needed. These recoveries 
show our commitment to 
effective, affordable healing.

Dr. Suresh 
Chavhanke  
A respected journalist brought 
his father - told he needed 
surgery - to Jeena Sikho. 
Just two and a half weeks of 
Ayurvedic and Panchakarma 
care, his father’s reports 
came back clear. A powerful 
example of our compassionate, 
evidence-based healing.

Each testimonial is not merely a 
statement of satisfaction, it is an 
affirmation of trust. These grateful 
words reflect our ability to deliver 
time-tested Ayurvedic solutions with 
compassion, consistency, and results.

We consider it our privilege to walk 
alongside our patients on their path to 
healing, and their gratitude strengthens 
our resolve to make authentic 
Ayurvedic care more accessible and 
impactful across geographies.
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https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9JNsoJzKBOA
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=AdcU1xVRvlc
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=v8R2ZlvSAKY
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6nrqY4o-OPk
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=XyX0FMOG3jI
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TX2twYUtyEo
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xk2J6eDYK00
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Pu4Vzt3DQ4o
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=LMaeJgxn0_E
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Economic overview
Indian economy
FY25 marked another year of 
resilience and strong economic 
fundamentals for India, despite 
prevailing global uncertainties. 
The Indian economy retained its 
position as the fastest-growing 
major economy, driven by strong 
domestic demand, robust investment 
activity, and improved infrastructure 
development. Real GDP growth 
continued above 7%, reinforced by 
private consumption, government 
capital expenditure, and a healthy 
revival in manufacturing and services.

Inflationary pressures witnessed a 
moderation due to effective supply-
side management and a favourable 
global commodity environment. The 
RBI’s monetary policy maintained 
a calibrated balance between 
controlling inflation and supporting 
growth, while financial stability 
remained intact. Bank credit grew 
steadily, supported by strong capital 
adequacy ratios and improved asset 
quality.

The government’s continued thrust 
on infrastructure, health, and digital 

connectivity spurred employment 
generation and enterprise 
development. Initiatives promoting 
ease of doing business, rural 
empowerment, and skill development 
contributed to inclusive growth. Public 
sector capex reached record levels, 
crowding in private investments 
across sectors.

Particularly relevant to our industry, 
the wellness and preventive 
healthcare ecosystem received a 
boost through increased attention 
to AYUSH systems, backed by 
awareness campaigns, research 
support, and insurance linkages under 
Ayushman Bharat. The environment 
remained conducive for traditional 
healthcare players like Jeena Sikho 
Lifecare Limited to build scale and 
deepen patient engagement across 
urban and rural landscapes.

Outlook 
Looking ahead, India’s economic 
outlook remains optimistic and 
forward-looking. The foundations 
laid over the past years, ranging 
from policy reforms to infrastructure 
investments, are expected to yield 
long-term dividends. Real GDP growth 
is projected to remain strong in FY26, 
with estimates placing it in the range of 
6.5% to 7%, driven by robust domestic 
demand, enhanced formalisation, 
and continued government push on 
public capital expenditure. The revival 
in manufacturing, growth in services, 
and better monsoon forecasts for 
agricultural output are expected to 
further support the momentum.

However, certain external headwinds 
could introduce an element of volatility. 
Among them, the recent imposition 
of tariffs by the United States on key 
sectors such as steel, aluminium, and 
certain pharmaceutical ingredients 
could create ripple effects across 

global trade channels. While India’s 
direct exposure remains moderate, 
any prolonged disruption in trade flows 
or weakening of global demand may 
have indirect implications on exports 
and investor sentiment. Policymakers 
are expected to remain agile, closely 
monitoring the evolving geo-economic 
environment.

Rural and semi-urban consumption is 
likely to improve with better agricultural 
output, while service sector expansion 
and export opportunities are expected 
to strengthen. With inflation expected 
to stay within manageable bounds, 
monetary policy may offer additional 
headroom for stimulating growth 
where needed.

For the healthcare sector in particular, 
the outlook is promising. Continued 
promotion of traditional systems of 
medicine under the Ministry of AYUSH, 
wider insurance coverage including 
Ayurveda under Ayushman Bharat, and 
empanelment of Day Care Therapy 
Centres are likely to deepen access to 
holistic healthcare. The government’s 
‘Heal in India’ medical tourism push 
further enhances the export potential 
of Ayurvedic treatments.

At Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited, 
we see these macroeconomic 
tailwinds as aligned with our growth 
strategy. The growing demand for 
alternative medicine, coupled with 
digital health initiatives, increased 
affordability through insurance, and a 
rising preference for preventive care, 
presents a compelling opportunity. 
As we expand our hospital footprint, 
strengthen our product portfolio, 
and enter new geographies including 
international markets, we remain 
confident of sustained growth and 
long-term value creation for all our 
stakeholders.
Source:	� The Economic Survey 2024-25 by 

Department of Economic Affairs
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Industry overview
Indian Ayurvedic 
products market 
The Indian Ayurvedic products market 
is experiencing remarkable momentum 
and expansive growth. In 2024, the 
market reached a substantial size of 
₹875.9 billion. Consumer preference 
is shifting decisively towards natural 
and chemical-free remedies, driven by 
rising awareness of health, wellness, 
and side-effect concerns, all of which 
bolster the demand for Ayurvedic 
offerings.

Looking forward, the market is 
projected to grow at a robust CAGR of 
16.17% from 2025-2033, culminating in 
an anticipated value of ₹3,605.0 billion 
by 2033. This trajectory positions 
the sector as one of the fastest-
growing in wellness and personal care, 
underpinned by widening distribution 
networks, rising digital adoption, and 
increasing interest in preventive care.

Several core dynamics are driving this 
expansion:

1.	� Organised segment 
leadership

	� The organised market, comprising 
branded, standardised products, 
has emerged as the dominant 
segment, reflecting enhanced 
consumer trust, regulatory 
compliance, and brand visibility.

2.	 North India at the helm
	� North India leads the market in 

both consumption and growth, 
benefiting from rising disposable 
incomes, improved supply chains, 
and high e-commerce penetration.

3.	� Healthcare products  
at scale

	� Within the product mix, healthcare 
categories, such as nutraceuticals 
and therapeutic medicines, occupy 
the largest market share, driven by 
increasing demand for wellness-
oriented supplements and herbal 
formulations.

4.	� Expanding reach and 
government support

	� Widespread availability, across 
urban and rural centres via online 
and offline channels, is increasing 
accessibility. Simultaneously, 
government-led initiatives, 
including trade fairs, exhibitions, 
and R&D incentives, are further 
promoting Ayurveda domestically 
and globally.

5.	� Innovation and consumer 
trust

	� The market is witnessing strong 
growth in consumer interest 
across segments such as 
organic skincare, home remedies, 
and herbal-infused products. 
Meanwhile, the surge in digital 
awareness, due to rising social 
media use, has opened new 
avenues for product discovery and 
brand engagement.
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•	 We remain committed to  
scientific validation, through our 
ongoing research and NABH 
standards, to differentiate and build 
consumer trust in a market where 
organised, quality-backed brands 
are winning out.

Bottom line is, the Indian Ayurvedic 
products market is poised for 
exponential growth. Backed by 
economic tailwinds, institutional 
support, and changing consumer 
preferences, this sets a compelling 
stage for Jeena Sikho to deepen 
its presence, innovate responsibly, 
and generate sustainable value for 
stakeholders across the FY26-27 
horizon and beyond.

Source: Imcar Group 

Indian health & 
wellness industry 
The Indian health and wellness 
sector is evolving into a multifaceted 
ecosystem, embracing both clinical 
and preventive care. According to 
IMARC Group, the overall wellness 
market reached approximately 
USD 156 billion in 2024, with 
projections for it to reach USD 256.9 
billion by 2033 at a healthy CAGR 
of 5.3%. A closely related segment, 
wellness tourism, is already valued at 
USD 19.22 billion, expected to grow to 
USD 38.13 billion by 2033 with a CAGR 
of 7.3%.

Supporting this growth, the Ministry 
of AYUSH, through programmes like 
the National AYUSH Mission (NAM), 
has established over 12,500 AYUSH 
Health & Wellness Centres (AHWCs), 
delivering primary AYUSH-based 
healthcare via initiatives such as 
Yoga, medicinal plants, and lifestyle 
advice. These efforts reflect a 
significant government commitment 
to promoting holistic health across 
urban and rural India.

Strategic alignment
This robust market growth mirrors 
many of Jeena Sikho’s strategic 
priorities:

•	 Our Shuddhi-branded portfolio, 
covering over 330 SKUs, is well-
placed to leverage rising demand 
across healthcare and personal 
care categories.

•	 High gross margins in our product 
business (~85%) and expanding 
access through call centres, 
e-commerce, clinics, and emerging 
OTC channels position us strongly 
against the shifting market 
currents.
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Emerging trends
A.	� Rise of preventive & 

integrative wellness
	� Public inclination is increasingly 

shifting toward preventive health, 
focussing on nutrition, yoga, 
naturopathy, and mind-body 
practices. This marks a move 
from episodic care to continuous 
wellness journeys.

B.	� Wellness tourism as a 
growth engine

	� India’s reputation as a wellness 
hub is on the rise. Wellness 
centres, retreats, yoga hubs, and 
Ayurvedic resorts are attracting 
both domestic and global 
travellers. Wellness tourism, 
growing at 7.3% CAGR, is outpacing 
the broader wellness market.

C.	� Digital enablement and 
Tele-Ayush

	� The Ministry of AYUSH is 
increasingly integrating 
telemedicine through AWHCs, 
e-health services, and digital 
wellness platforms, extending 
reach into remote areas and 
overseas communities.

D.	� Organised & quality-
driven segment

	� Consumers are gravitating 
towards certified, evidence-based 
wellness providers. The NAM’s 
accreditation of AHWCs, along 
with investments in research 
and AYUSH education, is 
professionalising the sector.

E.	� Growing corporate 
wellness

	� A strong corporate wellness 
market (USD 2.5 billion in 2024, 
growing 5.1% CAGR) underlining 
workplace health as a rising 
segment.

Key opportunities
Scale through wellness 
tourism
India’s wellness tourism market, 
already large and mounting, offers 
opportunities for integrative centres 
combining treatments, retreats, 
and digital engagement pathways, 
including Ayush Visa facilitation.

Ayush centre expansion
The rollout of over 12,500 AHWCs 
under Ayushman Bharat provides a 
platform to expand services, conduct 
health camps, and integrate AYUSH 
protocols in underserved areas.

Digital & tele-wellness reach
With telemedicine and mobile health 
platforms, scaling outreach and 
follow-up care into India’s hinterlands 
becomes viable, enabling personalised 
wellness journeys at scale.

Brand differentiation via 
quality accreditation
NAM-supported certification 
frameworks offer trust. Jeena Sikho 
can leverage NABH standards 
alongside NAM endorsements to 
position itself distinctly in quality-
focused care.

Integrated offerings tailored 
to working professionals
Drawing on corporate wellness 
demand (USD 2.5B market), JSLL can 
design preventive programmes, stress 
management retreats, and digital 
wellness campaigns for businesses.

Rising lifestyle disorders 
The escalating incidence of lifestyle-
related ailments such as diabetes, 
hypertension, and cardiovascular 
conditions is significantly contributing 
to the growing demand for alternative 
healthcare solutions.

Ayurveda’s Renewed Relevance
The popularity of Ayurveda and other 
alternative healing systems has 
witnessed a marked rise, both in India 
and globally, particularly in the wake 
of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Inclusion of AYUSH under 
Insurance
In a landmark regulatory development, 
IRDAI has mandated the inclusion 
of AYUSH treatments under health 
insurance coverage.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Contd.)
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Key threats & 
challenges
Regulatory harmonisation
Multiple authorities - AYUSH, NAM, 
NABH, state bodies, govern the sector. 
Keeping compliance aligned across 
geographies is critical.

Quality assurance and 
consumer trust
Standardisation of service and 
safety protocols is essential to 
avoid reputational risks amid rising 
expectations.

Market competition and 
brand proliferation
While certification channels create 
differentiation, competition from 
rapid-scaled organised players and 
overseas resorts is intense.

Economic/cross-border 
volatility
Wellness tourism is sensitive to 
macroeconomic shifts and travel 
disruptions, so international ambitions 
must be hedged accordingly.

Talent and institutional 
capability
Scaling high-quality AYUSH care 
requires skilled practitioners. While 
AHWCs build awareness, training and 
retaining talent remains a challenge.

Limited awareness and 
perception
Ayurveda continues to face a 
credibility gap, primarily due to limited 
public awareness and the perceived 
lack of evidence-based treatment 
protocols.

Insufficient professional 
recognition
Despite its ancient lineage and 
cultural significance, Ayurveda as 
a profession still struggles with 
institutional recognition.

Gaps in research and 
scientific validation
While India is actively promoting Yoga 
and Ayurveda on global platforms, 
the lack of a robust scientific 
research ecosystem remains a key 
impediment.

Need for stronger 
regulatory oversight
The Ayurveda industry, though 
rapidly growing, remains largely 
unregulated, raising concerns around 
standardisation, quality assurance, 
and authenticity.

Conclusion
India’s health and wellness industry 
is undergoing robust transformation, 
fuelled by government policy, rising 
health consciousness, wellness 
travel, and digital enablement. This 
environment offers a fertile platform 
for Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited to 
deepen geographical reach, reinforce 
quality credentials, and integrate 
experiences, from AYUSH centre 
networks to holistic retreats and 
digital wellness.

By focusing on trust, clinical rigour, 
and evidence-based holistic care, 
we aim to build enduring value for 
patients and stakeholders. Well 
positioned at the intersection of 
tradition and modernity, Jeena Sikho 
is poised to emerge as a national 
leader in holistic healthcare, delivering 
wellness with purpose and scale.

Source: Imarc Group, Ministry of AYUSH

Company overview
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited 
(JSLL) is a leading player in India’s 
alternative healthcare ecosystem, 
dedicated to making Ayurveda and 
holistic wellness accessible, credible, 
and impactful. Since inception, we 
have pursued a mission to revive 
ancient healing systems with modern 
delivery and scientific validation. Our 
integrated approach spans in-patient 
services, out-patient consultations, 
and a growing range of Ayurvedic 
products that support preventive 
and curative care. With each passing 
year, we strengthen our resolve to 
become the trusted choice for natural, 
side-effect-free healthcare solutions 
across the country and beyond.
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We operate a network of wellness 
centres, hospitals, and clinics under 
the ‘Shuddhi Ayurveda’ brand. As of 
FY25, we have significantly scaled up 
our healthcare footprint, supported 
by a capital-light business model that 
allows us to maintain operational 
agility while expanding rapidly. Our 
facilities provide a range of treatments 
rooted in Ayurveda, Panchakarma, 
Naturopathy, and Homeopathy, 
delivered by experienced Ayurvedic 
practitioners and supported by robust 
quality protocols. With over 1,600 
operational beds and the largest-ever 
expansion pipeline in our history, we 
are committed to reaching more lives, 
especially in underserved markets.

Our product vertical complements our 
services by offering a wide portfolio 
of proprietary Ayurvedic medicines, 
health kits, and wellness products 
developed in-house. Distributed 
through offline and digital channels, 
including pharmacies, e-commerce, 
and our healthcare centres, this 
segment continues to see strong 
traction. New launches like the 
Water INJK Technique Device and 
Pet Liver Shuddhi Kit underline our 
ability to innovate and respond to 
evolving consumer needs. With 
further expansion into over-the-
counter (OTC) markets and a strong 
pipeline of upcoming launches, we 
are well positioned to capture growing 
demand for natural health solutions.

Our strategic clarity, experienced 
leadership, and deep-rooted brand 
ethos enable us to operate with 
purpose and foresight. FY25 was 
a landmark year that not only 
demonstrated our scalability and 
resilience but also laid the foundation 
for sustainable long-term growth. As 
we move ahead, we remain committed 
to blending tradition with innovation, 
strengthening our operational 
backbone, expanding our national and 
global reach, and continuing to create 
meaningful impact in the lives of our 
patients and stakeholders.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Contd.)
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Operational 
highlights
FY25 marked a significant phase of 
expansion and operational scale-up 
for Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited. 
We achieved a notable increase 
in our inpatient capacity, growing 
from 1,277 operational beds in the 
previous year to 1,600 beds by year-
end, the highest in our history. This 
scale-up is further supported by a 
robust pipeline of 1,218 beds, setting 
the stage for continued growth in 
the years ahead. Our IPD (in-patient 
department) volumes witnessed a 
sharp 87% increase YOY, reaching 
24,578 patients. Outpatient (OPD) 
footfalls also rose to 3.37 lakh during 
the year. This growing trust in our 
services reflects not just patient 
satisfaction, but also our ability 
to deliver integrated, high-touch 
alternative healthcare at scale.

In parallel, we strengthened our 
revenue mix through focused growth 
in both services and products 
verticals. We expanded the availability 
of high-incidence, high-margin 
therapies like liver care, infertility, 
sexual wellness, and musculoskeletal 
conditions, supported by free 
screening campaigns across centres. 
Our operational efficiencies were 
further enhanced through better 
average revenue per bed, which now 
stands at ₹8,200 vs. ₹7,900 in the 
previous year. We also advanced 
our integration with insurance 
providers to offer cashless Ayurvedic 
treatments and increased our 
presence in government healthcare 
panels, including Ayushman Bharat 
and Ministry of AYUSH programmes. 
These operational strides position 
us strongly to meet rising demand, 
expand access, and strengthen our 
leadership in holistic wellness.

Financial highlights

Key financial ratios

Particulars FY25 FY24 Ratio

Revenue (In ₹ crore) 469 324 45%

EBITDA (In ₹ crore) 125 93 34%

EBITDA Margin (In %) 27 29 -

PAT (In ₹ crore) 91 69 32%

PAT Margin (In %) 19 16 -

Net Worth (In ₹ crore) 273 192 41%

Particulars FY25 FY24  % Change 

Current Ratio  2.91  5.27 -45%

Debt-Equity Ratio  0.04  0.00 1252%

Debt Service Coverage Ratio  246.78  226.03 9%

Return on Equity Ratio  0.33  0.36 -8%

Inventory turnover ratio  3.09  3.43 -10%

Trade Receivables turnover ratio  4.80  7.88 -39%

Trade payables turnover ratio  3.75  5.53 -32%

Net capital turnover ratio  4.70  2.77 69%

Net profit ratio 19.34% 21.33% -9%

Return on Capital employed 40.94% 45.59% -10%

Reason for changes in ratio (more than 10%)
1. 	 Debt Equity ratio - Due to debt being taken from director 

for Rs. 10 crores to meet the working capital requirements 
of the Company.

2. 	 Trade Receivables turnover ratio - This has reduced due to 
increase in amount due from the Government Panel Debtor

3. 	 Trade payables turnover ratio - This has reduced due to 
reduction in creditor payment cycle.

4. 	 Net capital turnover ratio - This has increase because of 
reduction in Company net working capital position (Current 
Asset - Current Liability).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Contd.)

Risk and concerns
At Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited 
(JSLL), we have established a robust 
Risk Management framework 
designed to proactively identify, 
evaluate, and mitigate potential 
business risks. This structured 
approach ensures continuity, 
compliance, and competitiveness 
across all aspects of our operations. 
The key risks and our strategic 
responses are outlined below.

Competition risk
As a player in a highly fragmented 
and competitive Ayurvedic healthcare 
market, JSLL operates amidst 
both organised and unorganised 
competitors. The easy availability of 
free information and home remedies 
online further intensifies competition.

Mitigation
We differentiate ourselves through 
our integrated healthcare ecosystem, 
comprising over 330 proprietary 
Shuddhi-branded products, more than 
480 experienced Ayurvedic doctors, 
and a nationwide network of hospitals, 
clinics, and franchises. In addition, 
virtual and telephonic consultations 
help us reach patients across 
geographies, offering convenience 
without compromising care quality.

Regulatory risk
Global scrutiny over the safety, 
efficacy, and standardisation of 
herbal and alternative treatments 
is increasing. Evolving regulatory 
frameworks may result in higher 
compliance costs and more rigorous 
documentation.

Mitigation
JSLL proactively adheres to all 
applicable laws and standards. Our 
emphasis on clinical excellence is 
reflected in 41 NABH-accredited 
clinics, with 6 more in the pipeline. 
We maintain strict quality protocols in 
both product development and patient 
care to ensure compliance and trust.

Reputational risk
Brand equity is central to our 
expansion strategy. Any damage 
to our reputation, whether due to 
quality issues, misinformation, or 
customer dissatisfaction, could 
adversely impact our operations and 
stakeholder trust.

Mitigation
We continue to invest in building 
and protecting the ‘Shuddhi’ brand. 
Under the active leadership of our 
founder, Acharya Manish Ji, we 
maintain visibility through national 
TV campaigns, digital platforms, and 
public awareness initiatives. We also 
focus on service consistency and 
patient satisfaction across all touch 
points.

Third-party dependency 
risk
A portion of our operations, 
including product manufacturing and 
franchisee-driven service delivery, 
relies on third-party partnerships. 
This introduces risks related to quality 
assurance, compliance, and brand 
reputation.

Mitigation
All third-party arrangements are 
governed by stringent contractual 
clauses and regular audits. 
We partner only with reputed 
manufacturers who align with our 
quality standards, and closely monitor 
franchisee performance to ensure 
adherence to JSLL’s protocols.

Litigation and legal risk
Potential consumer complaints or 
treatment-related grievances could 
lead to legal proceedings, adverse 
publicity, and erosion of consumer 
confidence.

Mitigation
We enforce a strict zero-tolerance 
policy towards quality lapses. Only 
qualified, experienced doctors are 
entrusted with patient care. Our 
dedicated contact centres are 
trained to promptly handle inquiries, 
resolve concerns, and maintain high 
customer satisfaction levels, thereby 
minimising potential disputes.
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Human resources
At JSLL, we regard our employees 
as our most valuable assets, 
central to our long-term growth and 
sustainability. As of 31 March 2025, 
we had a committed workforce of 
3,764 full-time employees. Our people 
strategy is focused on continuous 
empowerment, with initiatives aimed 
at enhancing their skills, capabilities, 
and professional development.

The workforce comprises a healthy 
blend of seasoned experts and 
dynamic young talent, creating a 
balanced team that drives both 
stability and innovation. This diversity 
not only reinforces our market 
positioning but also provides a 
distinct competitive advantage. Many 
of our senior leaders have been with 
us for several years, playing a pivotal 
role in shaping our culture, nurturing 
institutional knowledge, and steering 
the organisation through various 
growth phases.

Internal control 
systems
JSLL has instituted robust internal 
control systems that are well-
aligned with the scale, complexity, 
and nature of its operations. These 
systems encompass clearly defined 
policies and procedures, integrated IT 
frameworks, appropriate delegation of 
authority, segregation of duties, and 
a structured internal audit and review 
mechanism.

Our internal controls are designed 
to ensure operational efficiency, 
safeguard assets, and uphold 
compliance with all applicable 
legal and regulatory requirements, 
particularly those related to resource 
protection and accurate financial 
reporting. The Audit Committee 
regularly reviews key audit findings 
and control measures to reinforce 
governance, ensure accountability, 
and drive continuous improvement 
across the organisation.

Disclaimer
The MDA section contains forward-
looking statements that reflect our 
current expectations, intentions, 
and projections regarding future 
performance. These statements 
are subject to both known and 
unknown risks, uncertainties, 
and other factors that may cause 
actual results to differ materially 
from those expressed or implied. 
Changes in the macroeconomic 
environment, regulatory landscape, 
or unforeseen developments may 
significantly impact our operations 
and performance. The assumptions 
underlying these forward-looking 
statements are based on information 
available from internal and external 
sources at the time of reporting. 
However, such assumptions are 
inherently subject to change, and 
outcomes may vary accordingly. 
Readers are advised that these 
statements speak only as of the date 
they are made. We undertake no 
obligation to revise or update them in 
light of new information, future events, 
or changes in circumstances unless 
required by applicable law.
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Notice of 8th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company
Notice Is Hereby Given That The 08th Annual General Meeting of The Members of Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited will be held 
on Monday 29th September 2025 at First Floor, Parle G Godown, City Enclave, Back Side JP Hospital, Near Anand Complex, 
Zirakpur, Main Road, Sas Nagar, Punjab 140603 At 12:00 Noon To Transact The Following Business:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 
1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone 

Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 
period ended on 31st March 2025 together with the 
reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

	 To consider, review and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

	 RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial 
Statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2025 and the reports of the Board 
of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the 
Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.

2.	 To declare a final dividend of ₹ 1.10/- per equity share 
of face value of ₹ 2/- each for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025.

	 To consider, review and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT a final dividend of ₹ 1.10/- (Rupees 
One and Ten Paise only) per equity share of face value 
of ₹ 2/- each, for the financial year ended March 31, 
2025, as recommended by the Board of Directors, be 
and is hereby declared and approved for payment to the 
eligible shareholders of the Company.”

3.	 To re-appoint Ms. Shreya Grover as a Director who 
retires by rotation & being eligible offers herself for re-
appointment.

	 To consider, review and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

	 “RESOLVED THAT Ms. Shreya Grover (DIN: 09199495) 
Director of the Company, who retires by rotation in 
terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment, be and 
is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, 
liable to retire by rotation.”

4.	 Appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, 
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 
001076N/N500013) as Statutory Auditor to hold office 
for the term of 5 (Five) consecutive years from the 
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting up to the 
conclusion of the 13th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held on or before September 30, 2030:

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 139 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, 
if any, (including any statutory modification(s), 
clarifications, exemptions or re-enactments thereof for 
the time being in force) M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co 
LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firms Registration No. 
001076N/N500013), be and are hereby appointed as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for 
a period of five years, from the conclusion of the 08th 
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 13th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 
the year 2030 subject to ratification of the appointment 
by the Members at every Annual General Meeting held 
after the 08th Annual General Meeting of the Company, 
at such remuneration plus applicable taxes and 
out of pocket expenses, as may be determined and 
recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation 
with the Auditors and duly approved by the Managing 
Director of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:
5.	 Appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, 

Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditor to fill 
casual vacancy:

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 
139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and 
other applicable provisions, if any, (including any 
statutory modification(s), clarifications, exemptions 
or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) 
M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, 
(Firms Registration No. 001076N/N500013), be and are 
hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company 
to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation 
of M/s. KRA & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm 
Registration No: 020266N).

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER that M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co 
LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firms Registration No. 
001076N/N500013), be and are hereby appointed as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the office 
from 14th August, 2025, until the conclusion of this 
Annual General Meeting (08th) of the Company, at such 
remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket 
expenses, as may be determined and recommended by 
the Audit Committee in consultation with the Auditors 
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and duly approved by the Managing Director of the 
Company.”

6.	 Appointment of Ankur Singh & Associates (Company 
Secretaries) as Secretarial Auditor:

	 To consider and if thought fit, pass, the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with Rule 
9 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, 
for the time being in force), and Regulation 24A of 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, as amended, and based on the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee and the approval of the Board of 
Directors of the Company, consent of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded for appointment of M/s. Ankur 
Singh & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm 
Registration No. S2022DE845000) as the Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company for a period of five (5) years, 
commencing from Financial Year 2025- 26 till Financial 
Year 2029-30, to conduct a Secretarial Audit of the 
Company and to furnish the Secretarial Audit Report. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company be and are hereby authorized to fix the 
annual remuneration plus applicable taxes and out-of-
pocket expenses payable to them during their tenure as 
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, as determined 
by the Audit Committee in consultation with the said 
Secretarial Auditors. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be 
and are hereby authorized to take such steps and do 
all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be 
considered necessary, proper, and expedient to give 
effect to this Resolution.

7.	 Approval of Jeena Sikho Employees Stock Option 
Scheme, 2025 for Eligible Employee of the Company:

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification, the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
62(1)(b) and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the rules 
framed thereunder, the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021 (the “SEBI Regulations”), 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”), the 
circulars/guidelines/other regulations issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company and all other applicable regulations, rules 
and circulars/guidelines in force, from time to time 
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such 

other approvals, permissions and sanctions, as may be 
necessary and such condition(s) and modification(s) 
as may be prescribed or imposed, while granting such 
approvals, permissions and sanctions and subject to 
acceptance of such condition(s) or modification(s) 
by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Board”, which term shall include 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee duly 
constituted by the Board, which has been designated 
as the Compensation Committee in pursuance of 
Regulation 5 of the SEBI Regulations to exercise 
its powers, including the powers conferred by this 
resolution); the consent and approval of the members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Jeena Sikho Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2025 
(“Scheme”/“ESOS Scheme”/“ESOS 2025”) and to 
authorize the Board to create, offer, grant and issue from 
time to time, in one or more tranches, not exceeding 
2,50,000 (Two Lakh Fifty Thousand) employee stock 
options under Jeena Sikho Employees Stock Option 
Scheme, 2025, exercisable into equal number of equity 
shares of face value of ₹ 2/‐ (Rupees Two) each fully 
paid‐up of the Company, for the benefit of (i) employees 
of the Company, who is exclusively working in India 
or outside India; and/or (ii) directors of the Company, 
whether a whole-time director or not, including a non-
executive director, who is not a promoter or member 
of the promoter group, but excluding an independent 
director (selected on the basis of criteria decided by the 
Board) under the ESOS 2025, but does not include (a) an 
employee who is a promoter or a person belonging to 
the promoter group; or (b) a director who, either himself 
or through his relative or through any body-corporate, 
directly or indirectly, holds more than ten per cent of the 
outstanding equity shares of the company (hereinafter 
referred to as “Eligible Employees”).

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorised to formulate, evolve, decide upon and 
implement the ESOS 2025 on the terms and conditions 
contained therein and stated in the explanatory 
statement annexed hereto including instances, where 
such Stock Options shall lapse and to grant such 
number of Stock Options, to such employees and 
Directors of the Company, at such other price, at such 
time and on such terms and conditions as set out in 
the ESOS 2025 and as the Board may in its absolute 
discretion think fit, subject to SEBI Regulations and 
other applicable laws and to make any modification(s), 
change(s), variation(s), alteration(s) or revision(s) in 
terms and conditions of the ESOS 2025 from time to 
time including but not limited to amendments with 
respect to vesting period, exercise price, eligibility 
criteria, vesting schedule, vesting conditions, withdraw 
or revive the ESOS 2025, as the Board may, in its absolute 
discretion, think fit, subject to SEBI Regulations and 
other applicable laws. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any Corporate 
Action such as bonus issue, rights issue, stock split, 
merger, de-merger, transfer of undertaking, sale of a 
division or any such capital or corporate restructuring, 
subject to the provisions of the ESOS 2025; the number 
of Options (vested as well as unvested) or the Exercise 
Price in respect of the Options or both the number and 
the Exercise Price, may be determined after making 
fair and reasonable adjustments, by the Company in 
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consultation with the Compensation Committee, to be 
such number and/or Exercise price as is appropriate 
in accordance with the SEBI guidelines and other 
applicable provisions provided that (i.) the number and 
price of Options shall be adjusted in a manner such that 
total value to the Participant remains the same after the 
corporate action and (ii.) the Vesting Period and the life 
of the Options shall be left unaltered as far as possible 
to protect the rights of the Participant. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the new Equity Shares to be 
issued and allotted by the Company upon the exercise 
of Stock Options, shall rank pari-passu in all respect 
including dividend with then existing Equity Shares of 
the Company. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorised to make any variation, amendment, 
modification or alteration in the ESOS 2025 as it may 
deem fit, from time to time in its absolute discretion, 
subject to and in conformity with the provisions of the 
Act, the SEBI Regulations and other applicable laws, 
unless such variation, amendment, modification or 
alteration is detrimental to the interest of the Eligible 
Employees, who have been granted Stock Options. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company shall conform 
to the accounting policies prescribed from time to 
time under the SEBI Regulations, Act and any other 
applicable laws and regulations to the extent relevant 
and applicable to ESOS 2025. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things including the appointment of or authorizing or 
directing the appointment of various intermediaries, 
experts, professionals, independent agencies and 
other advisors, merchant bankers, valuers, consultants 
or representatives, being incidental to the effective 
implementation and administration of the ESOS 
2025 as it may, in its absolute discretion deem fit, for 
the aforesaid purpose and also to settle any issues, 
questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this 
regard at any stage, without being required to seek any 
further consent or approval of the shareholders of the 
Company to the end and intent that the shareholders 
shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto 
expressly by the authority of this resolution, and further 
to execute all such deeds, documents, writings and 
to give such directions and/or instructions as may be 
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to any 
modification, alteration, amendment, suspension, 
withdrawal or termination of ESOS 2025 and to take all 
such steps and do all such acts as may be incidental or 
ancillary thereto.”

8.	 Extension of the Jeena Sikho Employee Stock Option 
Scheme 2025, to the Eligible Employees of the Group 
Companies:

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification, the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

	 “Resolved That pursuant to the provisions of Section 
62(1)(b) and all other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the rules 
framed thereunder, the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021 (the “SEBI Regulations”), 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”), the 
circulars/guidelines/other regulations issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company and all other applicable regulations, rules 
and circulars/guidelines in force, from time to time 
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such 
other approvals, permissions and sanctions, as may be 
necessary and such condition(s) and modification(s) 
as may be prescribed or imposed, while granting such 
approvals, permissions and sanctions and subject to 
acceptance of such condition(s) or modification(s) 
by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Board”, which term shall include 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee duly 
constituted by the Board, which has been designated 
as the Compensation Committee in pursuance of 
Regulation 5 of the SEBI Regulations to exercise 
its powers, including the powers conferred by this 
resolution); the consent and approval of the members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Jeena Sikho Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2025 
(“Scheme”/“ESOS Scheme”/“ESOS 2025”) and to 
authorize the Board to create, offer, grant and issue from 
time to time, in one or more tranches, not exceeding 
2,50,000 (Two Lakh Fifty Thousand) employee stock 
options under the overall limit of 2,50,000 employee 
stock options under the Jeena Sikho Employees Stock 
Option Scheme, 2025, exercisable into equal number 
of equity shares of face value of ₹ 2/‐ (Rupees Two) 
each fully paid‐up of the Company, for the benefit of 
(i) employees, who is exclusively working in India or 
outside India; and/or (ii) directors, whether a whole-
time director or not, including a non-executive director, 
who is not a promoter or member of the promoter 
group, but excluding an independent director (selected 
on the basis of criteria decided by the Board) under the 
ESOS 2025, of a group company, including subsidiary 
or its associate company, in India or Outside India, or of 
a holding company of the Company, present or future, 
but does not include (a) an employee who is a promoter 
or a person belonging to the promoter group; or (b) a 
director who, either himself or through his relative or 
through any body-corporate, directly or indirectly, holds 
more than ten per cent of the outstanding equity shares 
of the company (hereinafter referred to as “Eligible 
Employees”).

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorised to formulate, evolve, decide upon and 
implement the ESOS 2025 on the terms and conditions 
contained therein and stated in the explanatory 
statement annexed hereto including instances, where 
such Stock Options shall lapse and to grant such 
number of Stock Options, to such employees and 
Directors of a group company, including subsidiary 
or its associate company, in India or Outside India, or 
of a holding company of the Company, at such other 
price, at such time and on such terms and conditions 
as set out in the ESOS 2025 and as the Board may 
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in its absolute discretion think fit, subject to SEBI 
Regulations and other applicable laws and to make any 
modification(s), change(s), variation(s), alteration(s) 
or revision(s) in terms and conditions of the ESOS 
2025 from time to time including but not limited to 
amendments with respect to vesting period, exercise 
price, eligibility criteria, vesting schedule, vesting 
conditions, withdraw or revive the ESOS 2025, as the 
Board may, in its absolute discretion, think fit, subject 
to SEBI Regulations and other applicable laws. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any Corporate 
Action such as bonus issue, rights issue, stock split, 
merger, de-merger, transfer of undertaking, sale of a 
division or any such capital or corporate restructuring, 
subject to the provisions of the ESOS 2025; the number 
of Options (vested as well as unvested) or the Exercise 
Price in respect of the Options or both the number and 
the Exercise Price, may be determined after making 
fair and reasonable adjustments, by the Company in 
consultation with the Compensation Committee, to be 
such number and/or Exercise price as is appropriate 
in accordance with the SEBI guidelines and other 
applicable provisions provided that (i.) the number and 
price of Options shall be adjusted in a manner such that 
total value to the Participant remains the same after the 
corporate action and (ii.) the Vesting Period and the life 
of the Options shall be left unaltered as far as possible 
to protect the rights of the Participant. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the new Equity Shares to be 
issued and allotted by the Company upon the exercise 
of Stock Options, shall rank pari-passu in all respect 
including dividend with then existing Equity Shares of 
the Company. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorised to make any variation, amendment, 
modification or alteration in the ESOS 2025 as it may 
deem fit, from time to time in its absolute discretion, 
subject to and in conformity with the provisions of the 
Act, the SEBI Regulations and other applicable laws, 
unless such variation, amendment, modification or 
alteration is detrimental to the interest of the Eligible 
Employees, who have been granted Stock Options. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company shall conform 
to the accounting policies prescribed from time to 
time under the SEBI Regulations, Act and any other 
applicable laws and regulations to the extent relevant 
and applicable to ESOS 2025. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things including the appointment of or authorizing or 
directing the appointment of various intermediaries, 
experts, professionals, independent agencies and 
other advisors, merchant bankers, valuers, consultants 
or representatives, being incidental to the effective 
implementation and administration of the ESOS 
2025 as it may, in its absolute discretion deem fit, for 
the aforesaid purpose and also to settle any issues, 
questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this 
regard at any stage, without being required to seek any 
further consent or approval of the shareholders of the 
Company to the end and intent that the shareholders 

shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto 
expressly by the authority of this resolution, and further 
to execute all such deeds, documents, writings and 
to give such directions and/or instructions as may be 
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to any 
modification, alteration, amendment, suspension, 
withdrawal or termination of ESOS 2025 and to take all 
such steps and do all such acts as may be incidental or 
ancillary thereto.”

9.	 Re-designation of Ms. Shreya Grover (DIN: 09199495) 
as Whole-time Director and a Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company from the position of Non-
Executive Director:

	 To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as an Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 2(19), 2(51), 196, 197, 198 and 203 and 
other applicable provision, if any, read with Schedule 
V to the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Rule 8 of 
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
and any other applicable provisions made thereunder 
(including any statutory modifications, enactment, or 
any amendment made thereunder) and in accordance 
with the provisions of Regulation 17 the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, applicable clauses of the Articles of Association 
of the Company and such other approvals, permissions 
and sanctions, as may be required and on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, 
consent of the members of the Company, be and 
is hereby accorded for appointment of Ms. Shreya 
Grover (DIN: 09199495) as a Whole-time Director, for 
a period of 05 (five) years, w.e.f. August 27, 2025 till 
August 26, 2030, designated as Whole-time Director 
and a Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, on the 
terms and conditions with the liberty to the Board of 
Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which 
term shall be deemed to include the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Board) to alter, 
vary and modify the terms and conditions of the said 
appointment and/or remuneration, in such manner as 
may be agreed to between the Board and Ms. Shreya 
Grover within and in accordance with the Act or such 
other applicable provisions or any amendment thereto.

	 Broad particulars of the terms of appointment and 
remuneration payable to Ms. Shreya Grover as a Whole-
time Director are as stated below:

a) 	 Period of appointment as Whole-time Director: 
Ms. Shreya Grover shall hold office as a Whole-
time Director of the Company for a term of five 
years August 27, 2025 till August 26, 2030. 

b) 	 Remuneration: ₹ 12,00,000 per annum. 

c) 	 General: 

i. 	 The Whole-time Director shall perform the 
duties as such with regard to all work of the 
Company and he will manage and attend to 
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such business and carry out the orders and 
directions given by the Board, from time to 
time in all respect and confirm to and comply 
with all such directions and regulations as 
may from time to time, be given and made by 
the Board. 

ii. 	 The Whole-time Director shall act in 
accordance with the Articles of Association 
of the Company and shall abide by the 
provisions contained in Section 166 of the 
Act with regard to the duties of directors. 

iii. 	 The Whole-time Director shall adhere to the 
Company’s Code of Conduct. 

iv. 	 The office of the Whole-time Director may 
be terminated by the Company by giving 03 
(three) months’ prior notice in writing, by 
either party. 

v. 	 Ms. Shreya Grover is liable to retire by 
rotation.

vi. 	 No sitting fee will be paid for attending any 
meetings of the Board of Directors or any 
committee(s) thereof. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the above may be treated 
as a written memorandum setting out the terms of 
appointment of Ms. Shreya Grover, Whole-time Director, 
in terms of Section 190 of the Act.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the 
Company be and is hereby authorised and to further 
delegate to any of the officer(s) or employee(s) of 
the Company as it may consider appropriate to do all 
such acts, deeds and things, as may be required to 
give effect to the above resolution and making other 
statutory and/or regulatory filings, if any, on behalf of 
the Company.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT a copy of the above 
resolution be furnished as a certified true copy by any 
of the Directors or Company Secretary of the Company.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited

Date: 27.08.2025
Place: Zirakpur, Punjab

Sd/-
Smita Chaturvedi

Company Secretary
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Notes:
1)	 The respective Explanatory Statements, pursuant to 

Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013, in respect 
of the business under item no 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 of 
accompanying notice is annexed hereto. 

2)	 The Notice of the 08th AGM along with the Annual 
Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 is being 
sent by electronic mode to those Members whose 
e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/
Depositories as on 29.08.2025.

3)	 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE 
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 
THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY IS 
ANNEXED HEREWITH AS Annexure-A.

4)	 Proxy forms, in order to be effective, must be deposited 
at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 
48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting, duly 
completed and signed. A proxy does not have the right 
to speak at the meeting and cast votes only on a poll. A 
proxy form is annexed to this report. Proxies submitted 
on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc. must be 
supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as 
applicable.

5)	 Pursuant to Section 105 of the Act read with Rule 19 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of 
members not exceeding 50 (Fifty) and holding in the 
aggregate not more than 10% (Ten Percent) of the 
total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed 
by a member holding more than 10% (Ten Percent) of 
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any 
other member.

6)	 Institutional/Corporate Members are required to 
send a scanned copy of their Board or Governing 
Body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its 
representative to attend the AGM on its behalf and 
to vote through e-Voting/remote e-Voting. The said 
Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to Scrutinizer by 
email at vivekrawal89@gmail.com with a copy marked 
to investors@jeenasikho.com and evoting@nsdl.co.in.

7)	 In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the 
Member whose name appears as the first holder in the 
order of names as per the Register of Members/List of 
Beneficial Owners of the Company will be entitled to 
vote at the AGM.

8)	 Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying 
Notice and the statement pursuant to Section 102(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be available for 
inspection through electronic mode, basis the request 
being sent at investors@jeenasikho.com.

9)	 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of 

the Act and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements 
in which Directors are interested maintained under 
Section 189 of the Act, and all the documents referred 
to in the accompanying Notice, are open for inspection 
in electronic form by the members during the AGM. All 
documents referred to in the Notice will also be available 
for inspection by the members at the registered office 
of the Company during office hours on all working days 
between 11.00 a.m. and 4.00 p.m. on all days except 
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, from the date 
hereof up to the date of the Meeting and at the venue of 
the Meeting for the duration of the Meeting. Members 
seeking to inspect such documents can send an email 
to investors@jeenasikho.com 

10)	 Members who have not registered their e-mail IDs 
are requested to register/update the same with their 
Depository Participants to promote the green initiative 
and thus, help preserve the environment.

11)	 In continued compliance of Rule 18(3)(i) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, the Company is pleased to provide another 
opportunity to the members to register/update 
their email IDs by providing the requisite details in 
the proforma annexed hereto with the Notice as 
Annexure-C.

12)	 Members are requested to notify change, if any, in their 
email ID and/or mailing address, quoting their Folio 
No. to the Company at its Registered Office or through 
email at investors@jeenasikho.com.

13)	 Members holding shares in electronic form should 
notify any change, if any, in their email ID and/or mailing 
address including PIN Code, bank details etc. directly to 
their respective Depository Participants.

14)	 Members/proxies should bring duly filled Attendance 
Slip to attend the annual general meeting. Attendance 
slip is annexed herewith as Annexure-D.

15)	 Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 
2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s 
website at www.jeenasikho.com, websites of the 
Stock Exchanges i.e National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited at www.nseindia.com and BSE Limited at www.
bseindia.com 

16)	 The Final Dividend of ₹ 1.10/- on Equity Shares 
having face value of ₹ 2/- each of the Company as 
recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, if declared 
at the AGM, will be paid within 30 days of the AGM to 
those members whose names appear in the Register of 
Members as on 22.09.2025 (“the Record Date”). 

17)	 Members holding shares in dematerialized mode are 
requested to register/update their bank details with their 
Depository Participants, to enable expeditious credit of 
the dividend to their bank accounts electronically. For 
Members who have not updated their bank account 
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details, dividend warrants/demand drafts/cheques will 
be sent out to their registered addresses.

18)	 Members are requested to note that, dividends if not 
encashed for a consecutive period of 7 consecutive 
years from the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend 
Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”). 
The shares in respect of such unclaimed dividends are 
also liable to be transferred to the demat account of the 
IEPF Authority. 

19)	 Pursuant to Finance Act, 2020, dividend income is 
taxable in the hands of Members w.e.f. April 1, 2020. 
Accordingly, the Final Dividend, as recommended by 
the Board of Directors, and if approved at the 08th AGM, 
shall be paid after deducting tax at source (‘TDS’) at the 
prescribed rates in accordance with the provisions of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961, within 10 days from the date 
of declaration:

	 to the Members in respect of equity shares held by them 
in physical form, whose name appears as Member in 
the Company’s Register of Members as on close of 
business hours on Monday, September 22, 2025; and

	 to the beneficial owners in respect of equity shares held 
by them in dematerialized form, whose name appears 
in the list of beneficial owners furnished by National 
Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”), on close 
of business hours on Monday, September 22, 2025.

20)	 With effect from April 1, 2024, dividend to security 
holders (holding securities in physical form), shall be 
paid only through electronic mode. Such payment shall 
be made upon folio being KYC compliant i.e. the PAN, 
contact details including mobile no., bank account 
details and specimen signature are registered with the 
RTA/Company. [SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/
MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/37 dated May 7, 2024, 
read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/
CIR/2024/81 dated June 10, 2024]

21)	 Tax Deducted at Source (“TDS”) on dividend:

	 For the prescribed rates for various categories, please refer to the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Finance Acts of the 
respective years. The shareholders are requested to update their PAN with the Depository Participants (DPs) (if shares 
held in dematerialized form) and the Company/RTA (if shares are held in physical mode).

	 To avail exemption of TDS, shareholders are requested to submit required documents/declaration by e-mail to 
compliances@skylinerta.com by 11.59 p.m. (IST) on Friday, September 26, 2025. Members may also refer the e-mail 
sent to their registered e-mail ID for more details on submission of exemption documents.

Category of Shareholder Document(s) to be submitted/uploaded
Resident individual shareholders with PAN* and 
whose income does not exceed maximum amount not 
chargeable to tax or who is not liable to pay income tax

i.	 Form No. 15G

ii.	 Form No. 15H

Non-resident shareholders [including Foreign Portfolio 
Investors (FPIs)] who can avail beneficial rates under tax 
treaty between India and their country of tax residence.

•	 No Permanent Establishment

•	 Declaration Beneficial Ownership Declaration

•	 Tax Residency Certificate

•	  Copy of electronically filed Form 10F

•	 Any other document which may be required

*If PAN is not correct/invalid/inoperative then tax will be deducted at higher rates and credit of TDS will not be available. [Section 206AA of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961]

22)	 Additional information(s), pursuant to Regulation 36(3) 
of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard 
for General Meetings (SS-2) in respect of Director(s) 
recommended for appointment/reappointment are 
annexed with this AGM Notice as Annexure A.

23)	 Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and 
becomes a member of the Company after dispatch 
of the Notice and holding shares as on cut-off date, 
may cast vote as provided in the Notice convening 
the Meeting, which is available on the website of the 
Company.

24)	 Members seeking clarifications on the Annual Report 
are requested to send in writing through email at 
investors@jeenasikho.com at least 7 days before 
the date of meeting. This would enable the company 

to compile the information and give replies to all the 
clarifications sought by the members, in the meeting.

25)	 In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014 as amended and Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the Members are provided with the facility 
of voting through electronic means (“remote e-Voting” 
or “e-Voting during AGM”) on all the resolutions set out 
in this AGM Notice, through remote e-Voting services 
provided by National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL).

26)	 The facility for e-Voting will also be made available 
during the AGM and the Members attending the AGM 
who have not cast their vote by remote e-Voting shall be 
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eligible to vote through the e-Voting system during the 
AGM. The Members who have cast their vote by remote 
e-Voting may also attend the AGM but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote again. In case the members 
cast their votes through remote e-voting as well as at 
the AGM, votes cast through remote e-voting shall only 
be considered valid.

27)	 The remote e-voting period commences on Friday 
26.09.2025 at 9.00 A.M. and ends on Sunday 
28.09.2025 at 5.00 P.M. Thereafter, the remote e-voting 
module shall be disabled for e-voting. E-vote once cast 
cannot be altered subsequently.

28)	 The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to 
their shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company as on cut-off date. A person, whose name is 
recorded in the register of members or in the register 
of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as 
on cut-off date i.e., 22.09.2025 shall be entitled to vote 
on the proposed resolutions; and their shareholding 
on such date shall only be reckoned for the purpose of 
arriving at the results of the remote e-voting and voting 
at the AGM. Any person who is not the member of the 
Company as on the cut-off date should treat this notice 
for information purpose only.

29)	 The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed 
Mr. Vivek Rawal Proprietor of M/s Rawal & Co., Company 
Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting 
through remote e- voting and e-voting process, in a fair 
and transparent manner. 

30)	 Dividend, if approved at the AGM, will be paid within 30 
days from the date of the AGM.

31)	 The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion 
of the Meeting, will count the e-voting cast at the 
Meeting and the vote cast through remote e-voting 
in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the 
employment of the Company and shall make, within 
the time permissible under the applicable laws, a 
consolidated Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast 
in favor or against, if any, and submit the same to the 
Chairman or a person authorized by him, who shall 
counter sign the same.

32)	 The results declared along with the report of the 
Scrutinizer shall be placed in the website of the 
Company www.jeenasikho.com and on the website of 
NSDL immediately after the declaration of results by 
the Chairman or a person authorized by him and the 
results shall also be communicated to National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.

33)	 Route-map to the venue of the Meeting is provided in 
this Notice.

34)	 Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books 

of the Company will be closed from 23.09.2025 to 
29.09.2025 (both days inclusive).

35)	 THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR 
REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

i.	 The voting period begins on Friday 26.09.2025 
at 9.00 A.M. and ends on Sunday 28.09.2025 at 
5.00 P.M. During this period, shareholders of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form 
or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 
i.e. 22.09.2025 may cast their vote electronically. 
The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for 
voting thereafter.

ii.	 Shareholders who have already voted prior to the 
meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 
meeting venue.

iii.	 Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities 
are required to provide remote e-voting facility to 
its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ 
resolutions. However, it has been observed that 
the participation by the public non-institutional 
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible 
level.

	 Currently, there are multiple e-voting service 
providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 
entities in India. This necessitates registration on 
various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user 
IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

	 In order to increase the efficiency of the voting 
process, pursuant to a public consultation, it 
has been decided to enable e-voting to all the 
demat account holders, by way of a single 
login credential, through their demat accounts/
websites of Depositories/Depository Participants. 
Demat account holders would be able to cast 
their vote without having to register again with 
the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 
authentication but also enhancing ease and 
convenience of participating in e-voting process.

iv.	 In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on 
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode are allowed to vote through their 
demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised 
to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting 
facility.
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Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in 
order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL

1.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://
eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the 
e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your 
existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 
able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to 
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register 
is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS 
Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

2.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected 
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e- Voting 
period.

3.	 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting 
experience.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Pu4Vzt3DQ4o
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL

1.	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi/Easiest facility, can login through their 
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 
page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi/Easiest are 
requested to visit CDSL websitwww.cdslindia.com and click on login icon 
& New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & 
password.

2.	 After successful login the Easi/Easiest user will be able to see the e- Voting 
option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will 
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided 
to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab 
and then click on registration option.

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.
com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to see the e- Voting option where the evoting is 
in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers.

Individual Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat mode) login 
through their Depository Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 
will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password 
option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 
022 -2499 7000.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
free no. 1800 22 55 33.

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
1. 	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com either 

on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen.

	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com with your 
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can 
proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Pu4Vzt3DQ4o
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=LMaeJgxn0_E
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4.	 Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat  
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) 	 For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID For example if your 
DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******.

b) 	 For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user 
ID is 12**************

c) 	 For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user 
ID is 101456001***

5.	 Password details for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders are given below:

a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you 
can user your existing password to login and cast 
your vote.

b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first 
time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ 
which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter 
the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you 
to change your password.

c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

•	 If your email ID is registered in your demat 
account or with the company, your ‘initial 
password’ is communicated to you on your 
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and 
open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the 
.pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file 
is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or 
folio number for shares held in physical form. 
The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your 
‘initial password’

•	 If your email ID is not registered, please 
follow steps mentioned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered.

6.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the 
“Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

•	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you 
are holding shares in your demat account with 
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.
nsdl.com.

•	 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding 
shares in physical mode) option available on www.
evoting.nsdl.com.

•	 If you are still unable to get the password by 
aforesaid two options, you can send a request 
at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat 
account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc.

•	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time 
Password) based login for casting the votes on 
the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms 
and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of 
e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL 
e-Voting system.
How to cast your vote electronically on 
NSDL e-Voting system?
•	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to 

see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 
shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

•	 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

•	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page 
opens.

•	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. 
assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 
for which you wish to cast your vote and click on 
“Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

•	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast 
successfully” will be displayed.

•	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you 
by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

•	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will 
not be allowed to modify your vote.
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General Guidelines for shareholders
1.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, 

HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/
JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/Authority 
letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 
the Scrutinizer by e-mail to vivekrawal89@gmail.com 
with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional 
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI 
etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution/Power of 
Attorney/Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload 
Board Resolution/Authority Letter” displayed under 
“e-Voting” tab in their login.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password 
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website 
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key 
in the correct password. In such an event, you will need 
to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 
user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 
1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice:
1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide 

Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investors@
jeenasikho.com.

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide 
DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 
Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy 
of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to investors@jeenasikho.com. If you are 
an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat 
mode, you are requested to refer to the login method 
explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting 
for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode.

3.	 Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a 
request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned 
documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, on 
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed 
to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders 
are required to update their mobile number and email ID 
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting 
facility.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited

Date: 27.08.2025
Place: Zirakpur, Punjab

Sd/-
Smita Chaturvedi

Company Secretary
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Explanatory Statements Pursuant to Section 102(1) 
of The Companies Act, 2013
ITEM NO. 5
The Members of the Company at its 04th AGM held on 
Monday, 15th November, 2021 had appointed M/s. KRA & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No: 020266N) as 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from 
the conclusion of 04th AGM till the conclusion of 09th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company respectively subject to 
ratification of the appointment by the Members at every 
AGM held after the 04th AGM of the Company.

M/s. KRA & Co, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration 
No: 020266N) vide their letter both dated 14th August, 2025 
have resigned from the position of Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, resulting into a casual vacancy in the office of 
Statutory Auditors of the Company as envisaged by section 
139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 14th August, 
2015, as per the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
and pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(8) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, have appointed M/s. Walker Chandiok 
& Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firms Registration No. 
001076N/N500013), to hold office as the Statutory Auditors 
of the Company till the conclusion of 08th AGM and to fill the 
casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. KRA & Co, 
Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No: 020266N) 
subject to the approval by the members at the 08th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company, at such remuneration 
plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may 
be determined and recommended by the Audit Committee 
in consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by the 
Managing Director of the Company.

The Company has received consent letter and eligibility 
certificate from M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, (Firms Registration No. 001076N/N500013), 
to act as Statutory Auditors of the Company in place of 
M/s. KRA & Co, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration 
No: 020266N), and along with a confirmation that, their 
appointment, if made, would be within the limits prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing 
an Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 5 of the 
Notice for appointment and payment of remuneration to the 
Statutory Auditors.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their 
relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially 
or otherwise, in the aforesaid Ordinary Resolution.

The Board recommends an Ordinary Resolution set out in 
the Notice for approval by the Members.

ITEM NO. 6
In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force) (“the Act”), every listed company and certain 
other prescribed categories of companies are required to 
annex a Secretarial Audit Report, issued by a Practicing 
Company Secretary, to their Board’s report, prepared under 
Section 134(3) of the Act.

Furthermore, pursuant to recent amendments to Regulation 
24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, every listed entity 
is required to conduct a Secretarial Audit and annex the 
Secretarial Audit Report to its annual report. Additionally, 
a listed entity must appoint a Secretarial Audit firm for 
a maximum of two terms of five consecutive years, with 
shareholder approval to be obtained at the Annual General 
Meeting. 

Accordingly, based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, the Board of Directors has approved the 
appointment of M/s. Ankur Singh & Associates, Company 
Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for 
a period of five years, commencing from April 1, 2025, to 
March 31, 2030. The appointment is subject to shareholders’ 
approval at the Annual General Meeting.

While recommending Ankur Singh & Associates for 
appointment, the Board and the Audit Committee evaluated 
various factors, including the firm’s capability to handle a 
diverse and complex business environment, its existing 
experience in the Company’s business segments, its industry 
standing, the clientele it serves, and its technical expertise. 
Ankur Singh & Associates was found to be well-equipped to 
manage the scale, diversity, and complexity associated with 
the Secretarial Audit of the Company. 

Ankur Singh & Associates is a peer-reviewed and well-
established firm of Practicing Company Secretaries, 
registered with the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India, Delhi. The firm is led by its proprietor, Mr. Ankur 
Singh, a distinguished professional in the field of corporate 
governance and compliance. His expertise spans corporate 
advisory, transactional services, litigation, advocacy, and 
legal due diligence. The firm also engages professionals 
associated with strong credentials who align with its core 
values of character, competence, and commitment. Ankur 
Singh & Associates specializes in compliance audit and 
assurance services, advisory and representation services, 
and transactional services.

Ankur Singh & Associates has provided its consent to 
act as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company and has 
confirmed that the proposed appointment, if made, will 
be in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the 
SEBI Listing Regulations. Accordingly, the consent of the 
shareholders is sought for the appointment of Ankur Singh & 
Associates as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution at Item No. 6 of the 
Notice for the approval of the shareholders as an Ordinary 
Resolution. 
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None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), 
or their relatives have any financial or other interest in the 
proposed resolution. 

ITEM NO. 7 & 8
Stock Options have long been recognized internationally as 
an effective instrument to align the interest of employees 
with those of the Company and its Shareholders, providing 
an opportunity to employees to share the growth of the 
Company, and to create long term wealth in the hands of 
the employees. It creates a sense of ownership between the 
Company and its employees, paving the way for a unified 
approach to the common objective of enhancing overall 
Shareholder’s value. 

Your Company is proposing to introduce an Employee 
Stock Option Scheme for the employees and the directors 
of the Company (including of the group company, including 
subsidiary, holding or its associate company), to remunerate 
them for their service and the expertise they bring to the 
organization. The proposed Scheme is proposed to be titled 
as “Jeena Sikho Employees Stock Option Scheme 2025” 
(“Scheme”/“ESOS Scheme”/“ESOS 2025”).

Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company upon the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee in its meeting held on 27.08.2025 approved 
introduction of Jeena Sikho Employees Stock Option Scheme 
2025, subject to the approval of the Members and concerned 
regulatory authorities and subject to the provisions of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (the 
“SEBI Regulations”) and authorized the Compensation 
Committee/Nomination & Remuneration Committee (“the 
Committee”), to formulate the detailed terms and conditions 
of ESOS 2025 and to administer and implement the same 
in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI Regulations. 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors 
of the Company shall act as the Compensation Committee 
under Regulation 5 of the SEBI Regulations, which has been 
authorised to inter alia formulate, administer and supervise 
ESOS 2025 including framing of its terms and conditions in 
terms of the SEBI Regulations.

The Company seeks Members’ approval in respect of the 
aforesaid scheme and grant of stock options to the following 
employees (selected on the basis of criteria decided by 
the Board), to the extent and in the manner as may be 
permissible under the relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, rules made there under and the SEBI Regulations 
and other applicable provisions: 

i.	 an employee, who is exclusively working in India or 
outside India; 

ii.	 a director of the company, whether a whole-time 
director or not, including a non-executive director who 
is not a promoter or member of the promoter group, but 
excluding an independent director; and

iii.	 an employee as defined in sub-clauses (i) or (ii), of a 
group company including subsidiary or its associate 
company, in India or Outside India, or of a holding 
company of the company, but does not include:

(a)	 an employee who is a promoter or a person 
belonging to the promoter group; or

(b)	 a director who, either himself or through his 
relative or through any body-corporate, directly 
or indirectly, holds more than ten per cent of the 
outstanding equity shares of the company; 

The broad terms and conditions of ESOS 2025 and other 
particulars as per Part-C of Schedule-I of the SEBI (Share 
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 
2021 are as below:

a) Brief description of the Scheme:
Jeena Sikho Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2025 
is intended to reward the Eligible Employees for their 
contribution to the success of the Company and to provide 
an incentive to continue contributing to the success of the 
Company. It is envisaged that the Scheme is to attract, 
reward, motivate and retain its employees for high levels of 
individual performance which will ultimately contribute to 
the success of the Company.

Subject to applicable law and terms and conditions of the 
Scheme, the Eligible Employees, who has been granted 
stock options (“Grantee”) shall be entitled to subscribe to the 
equity shares within certain time period (“Exercise Period”) 
upon fulfilment of such conditions (“Vesting”) and payment 
of an exercise price (“Exercise Price”). 

b) Total number of Options to be offered 
and granted:
The maximum number of Shares that may be issued 
pursuant to exercise of Options granted to the Participants 
under the ESOS Scheme shall not exceed 2,50,000 (Two 
Lakh Fifty Thousand only) Equity Shares of the Company 
of ₹ 2 each. The Company reserves the right to increase or 
reduce such number of Shares as it deems fit. Provided that 
all Options that have lapsed (including those having lapsed 
by way of forfeiture) shall be added back to the number of 
Options that are pending to be granted.

It is clarified that as the Scheme is not proposed to be 
implemented through Trust; there won’t be any secondary 
market acquisition for the purpose of implementation of the 
Scheme.

It is clarified that, in the event of any Corporate Action such 
as bonus issue, rights issue, stock split, merger, de-merger, 
transfer of undertaking, sale of a division or any such capital 
or corporate restructuring, subject to the provisions of 
the ESOS 2025; the number of Options (vested as well as 
unvested) or the Exercise Price in respect of the Options or 
both the number and the Exercise Price, may be determined 
after making fair and reasonable adjustments, by the 
Company in consultation with the Compensation Committee, 
to be such number and/or Exercise price as is appropriate in 
accordance with the SEBI guidelines and other applicable 
provisions provided that (i.) the number and price of Options 
shall be adjusted in a manner such that total value to the 
Participant remains the same after the corporate action and 
(ii.) the Vesting Period and the life of the Options shall be 
left unaltered as far as possible to protect the rights of the 
Participant.
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c) Identification of classes of employees 
entitled to participate in ESOS 2025:
An Employee shall be eligible to participate in the Scheme, 
as determined by the Compensation Committee. Only 
Eligible Employees as defined herein are eligible under this 
Scheme. Subject to this, the Compensation Committee shall, 
at its sole discretion, determine, which Employee or category 
of Employees shall be eligible for Grant of Options and the 
terms of Grant thereof and accordingly, the Company would 
offer the Options to the identified Eligible Employees based 
on the performance, experience, loyalty, etc. 

Where any Employee is a director nominated by an 
institution as its representative on the Board of Directors of 
the company:

(i) 	 the contract or agreement entered into between the 
institution nominating its employee as the director of a 
company and the director so appointed shall, inter alia, 
specify the following:

a. 	 whether the grants by the company under its 
scheme(s) can be accepted by the said employee 
in his capacity as director of the company; 

b. 	 that grant if made to the director, shall not be 
renounced in favour of the nominating institution; 
and 

c. 	 the conditions subject to which fees, commissions, 
other incentives, etc. can be accepted by the 
director from the company. 

(ii) 	 the institution nominating its employee as a director 
of the company shall file a copy of the contract or 
agreement with the said company, which shall, in turn 
file the copy with all the recognized stock exchanges on 
which its shares are listed. 

(iii) 	 the director so appointed shall furnish a copy of the 
contract or agreement at the first board meeting of the 
company attended by him after his nomination. 

It is clarified that the benefit of ESOS 2025 is extended to 
the Eligible Employee and Directors of a group company, 
including subsidiary or its associate company, in India or 
Outside India, or of a holding company of the Company, 
present or future.

The Grant of the Options by the Committee to the Grantee 
shall be made in writing and communicated to the Grantee. 
Such a Grant shall state the number of Options offered, the 
Exercise price and the closing date of accepting the offer. 

The definition of Employees for the purpose of ESOS 2025 
shall mean: 

i. 	 an employee, who is exclusively working in India or 
outside India; or

ii. 	 a director of the company, whether a whole-time 
director or not, including a non-executive director who 
is not a promoter or member of the promoter group, but 
excluding an independent director; and

iii. 	 an employee as defined in sub-clauses (i) or (ii), of a 
group company including subsidiary or its associate 
company, in India or Outside India, or of a holding 
company of the company, but does not include:

(a) 	 an employee who is a promoter or a person 
belonging to the promoter group; or

(b) 	 a director who, either himself or through his 
relative or through any body-corporate, directly 
or indirectly, holds more than ten per cent of the 
outstanding equity shares of the company; 

d) Requirements of vesting and period of 
vesting:
Any Grantee who wishes to accept an offer made, must 
deliver an Acceptance Form, prescribed by the Compensation 
Committee from time to time, duly completed as required 
therein to the Committee on or before the Closing date 
stated in the Grant letter. 

Any Grantee who fails to return the Acceptance Form on 
or before the Closing date shall, unless the Committee 
determines otherwise, be deemed to have rejected the offer. 
Any Acceptance Form received after the Closing date shall 
not be valid. 

Upon receipt of a duly completed Acceptance Form from the 
Grantee in respect of the Grant, the Grantee will become a 
Participant. The Committee may then issue to the Participant 
a statement, in such form as it deems appropriate, showing 
the number of Options, to which the Participant is entitled 
pursuant to the acceptance of such offer and the number of 
Shares for which the Participant will be entitled to subscribe 
pursuant to such Options. 

Subject to the terms contained herein, the acceptance of a 
Grant made to a Grantee, shall conclude a contract between 
the Grantee and the Company, pursuant to which each 
Option shall, on such acceptance, be an Unvested Option.  
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As per SEBI ESOS Regulations, there shall be a minimum period of one year between the grant of options and vesting of 
options. Subject to Participant’s continues employment with the Company and further subject to other clauses of the ESOS 
2025; the Unvested Options shall vest with the Participant on the following dates as per the graded vesting plan:

Tranche Vesting Date Option to be Vested (as a % 
of total Granted Options

1 Date being the date immediately after the date of expiry of One (1) year from the 
date of acceptance of the Options Granted to such Participant

20%

2 Date being the date immediately after the date of expiry of Two (2) years from the 
date of acceptance of the Options Granted to such Participant

30%

3 Date being the date immediately after the date of expiry of Three (3) years from 
the date of acceptance of the Options Granted to such Participant

50%

The date of Vesting would be determined in respect of 
different Options depending upon the different Grant Dates 
and difference dates of acceptance of such Grant of Options 
by the Participants.

e) Maximum period within which the 
Options shall be vested:
Please refer sub-clause (d) above. As detailed above, the 
maximum period within which the Options shall be vested 
will be three years from the date of acceptance of the 
Options Granted. 

f) Exercise price or pricing formula:
The Exercise Price of the Option shall be ₹ 2/- (Rupees Two 
Only) each. 

The total Exercise Price shall be paid to the Company in cash 
(through banking channel) upon Exercise of the Options. No 
amount is payable by the Grantee at the time of acceptance 
of Grant of Option.

g) Exercise period and the process of 
Exercise: 
Subject to special provisions relating to the case of death 
of an employee before exercise of options, the Participant 
alone can exercise the Vested Option. The Participant can 
exercise the Vested Options within the Exercise Period. Such 
exercise may be of all Vested Options or part of the Vested 
Options in one or more tranches. 

The Exercise Period shall commence from the date of 
Vesting and close on expiry of One Year from the last Vesting 
Date (i.e., Vesting Date of the 3rd Tranche of Vesting, as per 
sub-clause (d) above) for the respective Grant of Option. 
The Exercise Period can be extended only under special 
circumstances at the discretion of the Committee upon a 
specific request made by the Participant concerned to this 
effect.

No fraction of a Vested Option shall be exercisable in its 
fractional form. 

Exercise of the Options shall take place at the time and 
place designated by the Committee or the Company and by 
executing such documents as may be required under the 
Applicable Laws to pass a valid title to the relevant Shares 
to the Participant, free and clear of any liens, encumbrances 
and transfer restrictions save for those set out therein. 

An Option shall be deemed to be exercised only when the 
Committee receives notice of exercise and the Exercise 
Price in accordance of the Scheme from the person entitled 
to exercise the Option.

On Exercise, the Participant can subscribe to the Shares 
on the full payment of the Exercise price and taxes, if any, 
required to be deducted by the Company/reimbursed by 
the employee, in respect of exercise of the Option, and the 
Company shall allot the Shares to the Participants after 
completing the necessary formalities in this regard, or, if 
requested in writing by the Participant, to the Participant 
jointly with another person, provided the Committee/
Company finds the Exercise form complete and conditions 
of the Scheme are complied with. Subsequent to allotment, 
no Participant should seek to sell or otherwise transfer the 
Shares until there is a confirmation from the Company that 
the listing procedures with respect to the allotted Shares 
have been completed.

There would not be any lock-in period for the shares issued 
consequent upon exercising the options under the ESOS 
2025.

If the Participant does not Exercise his Vested Options 
within the time specified for the same, such unexercised, the 
Options shall lapse. 

There shall be no cashless exercise of the Options. Further 
there shall not be any funding of financing by the Company 
for Exercise of Options.

Exercise in certain special cases: 
On death of a Participant: In the event of death of the 
employee while in employment, all the Unvested Options/
Options Granted to him/her till his/her death shall vest, with 
effect from the date of his/her death, in the legal heirs or 
nominees of such deceased employee, as the case may be. 
All the Vested Options (including Options Vested upon death 
of the employee) shall be permitted to be exercised within 1 
(one) year from the date of his/her death. However, under no 
circumstances, Options can be exercised by the legal heirs 
or nominees beyond this Exercise Period.

On disability of Participant: In case the employee suffers 
any permanent incapacity, while in employment, all the 
Unvested Options to him/her under ESOS 2025 as on the 
date of permanent incapacitation, shall vest in him/her on 
that day. All the vested Options (including Options Vested 
upon permanent incapitation) shall be permitted to be 
exercised within 1 (one) year from the date of termination 
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of employment due to permanent incapacitation. However, 
under no circumstances option can be exercised beyond the 
Exercise period. 

On attainment of Superannuation age: In case the service of 
the employee Participants with the Company is terminated 
due to retirement on superannuation, all the Unvested 
Options shall continue to vest as per normal schedule 
of Vesting even after the retirement or superannuation. 
Exercise of Options shall also be as per the normal schedule 
as per this ESOS 2025.

Termination with cause: In case the termination of 
employment of a Participant with the Company is with cause 
(i.e., negligence, fraud, professional misconduct, moral 
turpitude etc), his/her Options (Vested as well as Unvested) 
shall lapse on the Termination Date. 

Other termination: In case the service of the Participant 
with the Company is terminated due to resignation of the 
Participant from the Company or otherwise, all the Vested 
Options as on that date shall be permitted to be exercised 
within the normal Exercise Period, as mentioned in this 
Scheme. All Unvested Options on the date of termination 
shall lapse. It is clarified that re-appointment of Directors 
upon retirement by rotation shall be deemed to be continuity 
in tenure for the purpose of this Scheme.

Long Leave: Long leave of the Participant shall not have 
any effect on the Scheme as applicable to the Participant. 
However, in case the employee goes on long leave of over 
three months during the vesting period, then the Committee 
reserves the right to extend the vesting period by a period 
not exceeding the leave period. Notwithstanding above, 
approved earned leave and sick leave as per the Company 
policy shall be included to calculate the Vesting Period.

Transfer of Employee: In the event that an Employee, who 
has been Granted benefits under the Scheme, is transferred 
or deputed to an associate company prior to vesting or 
exercise, the vesting and exercise as per the terms of 
grant shall continue in case of such transferred or deputed 
employee even after the transfer or deputation. In the event 
that an Employee who has been granted benefits under the 
Scheme, is transferred pursuant to scheme of arrangement, 
amalgamation, merger or demerger or continued in the 
existing company, prior to the vesting or exercise, the 
treatment of options in such case shall be specified in such 
scheme of arrangement, amalgamation, merger or demerger 
provided that such treatment shall not be prejudicial to the 
interest of the employee.

h) Appraisal process for determining the 
eligibility of employees for the Scheme: 
The Committee may, on such dates as it shall determine, 
Grant to such Eligible Employees as it selects, Options of 
the Company in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of the Scheme for the time being in force. The Committee 
shall follow the following broad guidelines in selection of the 
eligible employees and the quantum of option to be granted 
to them:

a.	 present grade and compensation structure of the 
employee.

b.	 performance of the employee.

c.	 length of service of the employee.

d.	 exceptional contribution made by the employee.

e.	 integrity and behaviour of the employee.

f.	 such other parameters as it may decide.

i) Maximum number of Options to be issued 
per employee and in aggregate: 
The maximum number of Shares that may be issued 
pursuant to exercise of Options granted under the ESOS 
Scheme shall not exceed 2,50,000 (Two Lakh Fifty Thousand 
only) Equity Shares of the Company of ₹ 2 each. 

The maximum number of the Shares that may be issued 
pursuant to the grant of the Options to each Grantee under 
ESOS 2025 shall be 25,000 (Twenty Five Thousand only) 
provided that maximum number of shares with respect to 
which Options may be granted to a single Employee shall 
not exceed 1% of the issued capital of the Company at any 
point of time.

j) Maximum quantum of benefits to be 
provided per employee under Jeena Sikho 
Employee Stock Option Scheme 2025:
The maximum quantum of benefits underlying the Options 
granted to an Eligible Employee shall be equal to the 
appreciation in the value of the Company’s equity shares 
determined on exercise of Options, on the basis of difference 
between the Option Exercise Price and the Market Price of 
the Equity Shares on the exercise date.

k) Whether the Scheme is to be implemented 
and administered directly by the Company 
or through a Trust:
It is clarified that ESOS 2025 is not proposed to be 
implemented through Trust. The Scheme shall be 
administered by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, as designated as the Compensation Committee 
for the purpose of implementation of ESOS 2025, and as may 
be reconstituted by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
There won’t be any secondary market acquisition for the 
purpose of implementation of the Scheme. The Scheme will 
be implemented directly by the Company.

l) Whether the Scheme involves new issue 
of shares by the Company or secondary 
acquisition by the Trust or both:
Implementation of the Scheme would involve new issue 
of equity shares.There won’t be any secondary market 
acquisition for the purpose of implementation of the 
Scheme.

m) The amount of loan to be provided 
for implementation of the Scheme by 
the Company to the Trust, its tenure, 
utilization, repayment terms, etc.:
There shall not be any funding of financing by the Company 
for Exercise of Options. The ESOS 2025 shall not be 
implemented through Trust and accordingly, no amount 
of loan to be provided to any Trust for implementation of  
ESOS 2025. 
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n) Maximum percentage of secondary 
acquisition (subject to limits specified 
under the regulations) that can be made 
by the Trust for the purposes of the 
Scheme:
There won’t be any secondary market acquisition for the 
purpose of implementation of the Scheme. 

o) A statement to the effect that 
the company shall conform to the 
accounting policies specified in 
regulation 15 of the SEBI Regulations: 
The Company shall conform to the accounting policies 
specified in Regulation 15 of the SEBI (Share Based Employee 
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021. 

The Company shall follow the requirements including the 
disclosure requirements of the Accounting Standards 
prescribed by the Central Government in terms of section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) including any 
‘Guidance Note on Accounting for employee share-based 
Payments’ issued in that regard from time to time and other 
applicable laws.

p) Method of valuing the Options:
Unless otherwise prescribed under any applicable law, the 
Company shall use “Fair Value Method” to value its options 
under the ESOS 2025.

The Company shall follow the Guidance Note on Accounting 
for Employee Share Based Payments’ and/or any relevant 
Accounting Standards as may be prescribed by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time, 
including the disclosure requirements prescribed therein.

q) Statement with regard to Disclosure in 
Directors’ Report: 
In case the Company opts for expensing of share-based 
employee benefits using the intrinsic value, the difference 
between the employee compensation cost so computed 
and the employee compensation cost that shall have been 
recognized if it had used the fair value of the Options and 
the impact of this difference on profits and on Earning Per 
Share (EPS) of the Company, shall also be disclosed in the 
Board’s Report. 

The said Statement is not applicable to the Company when 
the Company is opting for the Fair Value Method.

r) Lock-in period and transferability:
As per SEBI Regulations, there shall be a minimum vesting 
period of one year between grant and vesting. The vesting 
period under ESOS 2025 had be mentioned at sub-clause 
(d) above. Options Granted to an Employee shall not be 
transferable to any person. Subject to special provisions 
relating to the case of death of an employee before exercise 
of options (as mentioned above), no person, other than the 
employee, shall be entitled to the benefit arising out of under 
ESOS 2025. It is also clarified that the stock options granted 
to eligible employee under the ESOS 2025 shall not be 
pledged, hypothecated, mortgaged or otherwise alienated in 
any manner. 

There would not be any lock-in period for the shares issued 
consequent upon exercising the options under the ESOS 
2025. 

s) Terms & conditions for buyback, if any, 
of specified securities covered under these 
regulations. 
There is no buyback arrangement or commitment by the 
Company in respect of any Shares or Securities issued/
allotted under ESOS 2025.

t) Other Terms
The Board of Directors shall have the absolute authority to 
vary or modify the terms of the ESOS 2025, subject to the 
SEBI Regulations and other applicable laws, from time to 
time. The Options to be granted under the ESOS 2025 shall 
not be treated as an offer or invitation made to public for 
subscription of securities of the Company. 

Consent of the shareholders is required by way of a special 
resolution pursuant to Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the SEBI Regulations. As per Regulation 6 of 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, 
separate special resolution is required to be passed if the 
benefits of an employee stock option scheme are to be 
extended to employees of the group companies, holding and 
subsidiary companies. 

Accordingly, the Special Resolutions set out as item no. 7 and 
8 in this notice is proposed for approval by the shareholders.

Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their 
relatives who may be granted Options under ESOS 2025 
may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the Special 
Resolutions at Item Nos. 10 and 11 of this Notice. Save as 
aforesaid, none of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company/their relatives are in any way, concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Special 
Resolutions.

ITEM NO. 9
The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, at its meeting 
held on 27th August, 2025, approved the appointment 
of Ms. Shreya Grover (DIN: 09199495), who was earlier 
serving as a Non-Executive Director since 21st June, 2021, 
as a Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of 5 
(five) years commencing from 27th August, 2025, subject to 
approval of the Members at this Annual General Meeting.

Ms. Shreya Grover has been associated with the Company 
since her appointment as Director and has significantly 
contributed to the growth and operations of the Company 
in her role. Considering her experience, leadership 
capabilities and contribution, the Board is of the view that 
her appointment as Whole-time Director would be in the best 
interest of the Company.

Ms. Shreya Grover fulfils all the conditions given under 
Section 196 and Schedule V of the Act to be eligible for 
her appointment. She is neither disqualified under Section 
164 of the Act nor debarred by virtue of any order of the 
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Securities and Exchange Board of India or any other such 
authority from holding office as a Director.

The terms and conditions of her appointment and 
remuneration are detailed in the resolution at Item No. 9.

Pursuant to Regulation 17(6)(e) of Listing Regulations, 
shareholders approval is being sought by way of Special 
Resolution for her remuneration, as Ms. Shreya Grover is a 
member of the promoter group of the Company.

The resolution is proposed as Special Resolution, since the 
remuneration as approved by the Board, within the maximum 
limit as approved by the shareholders, shall be paid as 
minimum remuneration, in the event of the inadequacy 
of profits during the term of her appointment, which may 
exceed the amount calculated under Schedule V of the Act.

Brief profile of Ms. Grover, as required under Regulation 
36 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial 
Standard-2 on General Meetings, is annexed to this Notice.

Confirmations/Declarations:
Ms. Shreya Grover has given a declaration as per Section 
196(3) read with Part I of Schedule V to the Act that he fulfils 
the conditions for the appointment as a Whole-time Director 
of the Company. She has also given a declaration in form 
DIR-8 that he is not dis-qualified from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(1) & (2) of the Act.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends the 
resolution as set out at Item No. 9, for approval of the 
shareholders as a Special Resolution. Ms. Shreya Grover is 
the daughter of Mr. Manish Grover, Managing Director and 
Mrs. Bhavna Grover, Whole-time Director of the Company.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 
the company/and their relatives, except Mrs. Bhavna 
Grover, Mr. Manish Grover and her relatives, are in any way 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
Special Resolution.
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Annexure-A
DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING SHAREHOLDERS APPROVAL FOR APPOINTMENT PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 (3) OF 
THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 READ WITH CLAUSE 1.2.5 OF 
SECRETARIAL STANDARD SS- 2 ON GENERAL MEETINGS

Name of Director Ms. Shreya Grover
DIN 09199495
Date Of Birth July 02, 2001
Age 24 Years
Date of Appointment on Board of company Appointed on the Board of the Company since June 12, 2021.
Education Qualification BA Hons and LLB
Experience (in years) 2 yrs
Area of Expertise Legal and Marketing
Terms  and conditions of appointment/re-appointment Not Applicable
Remuneration sought and last drawn Not Applicable
Relationship with KMP and Directors inter-se Daughter of Mr. Manish Grover and Mrs. Bhavna Grover
Shareholding in company 8,190
Nos. of Board Meetings attended during the financial year 
2024-25

23

Directorships held in other Public Limited Companies 
including other Listed Companies

NIL

Chairmanships/Memberships of the Committee of the 
Board of Directors of the Company

Nomination And Remuneration Committee

Chairmanships/Memberships of the Committee of the 
Board of Directors of other Public Limited Companies 
including Listed Companies

NIL

Listed Entities from which the director has resigned in the 
past 3 years.

NIL

the Skills and capabilities required for the role and the 
manner in which the proposed person meets such 
requirements

Not Applicable being Non-Independent Director

BRIEF PROFILE
Ms. Shreya Grover – Whole-Time Director, Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited
Ms. Shreya Grover, aged 24 years, has been associated with Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited since June 12, 2021, when she was 
inducted into the Board as a Non-Executive Director. Recognizing her outstanding contribution, innovative approach and deep 
involvement in the Company’s growth, she has now been elevated to the position of Executive Director.

Young and enthusiastic, Ms. Grover has been instrumental in guiding the Company with creative marketing strategies, 
innovative sales ideas and out-of-the-box thinking. With her transition into an executive role, she is now actively engaged in 
shaping the future roadmap of Jeena Sikho.

Under her leadership and vision, the Company is witnessing rapid growth through:

•	 Establishment and expansion of a chain of Ayurveda hospitals across India.

•	 Launch of an OTC (Over-the-Counter) Ayurveda product range, ensuring Ayurveda reaches every household.

•	 Strengthening of a large-scale Media & Digital team, giving the Company a strong national presence.

•	 Ensuring robust governance and compliance, drawing upon her legal expertise.

Her combination of legal acumen, media-driven approach, and passion for Ayurveda uniquely positions her to lead Jeena 
Sikho Lifecare Limited into its next phase of expansion, making holistic wellness accessible to millions.
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Annexure-B
Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014]

CIN: L52601PB2017PLC046545

NAME OF THE COMPANY:  JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED

REGISTERED OFFICE: SCO 11 First Floor, Kalgidhar Enclave, Zirakpur, Mohali, Punjab-140604

VENUE FOR MEETING: 

Name of the members (s):		  ………………………………………………………

Registered address:		  ………………………………………………………

E-Mail Id:			   ………………………………………………………

Folio No/Client Id:			  ………………………………………………………

DP ID:				    ………………………………………………………

I/We, being the member (s) of ……………... shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint

1.	 Name: 	 ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………...

Address:	 ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………...

E-mail Id:	 ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………...

Signature: 	 …………………………………..., or failing him. 

2.	 Name: 	 ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………...

Address:	 ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………...

E-mail Id:	 ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………...

Signature: 	 …………………………………., or failing him

3.	 Name: 	 ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………...

Address:	 ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………...

E-mail Id:	 ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………...

Signature: 	 …………………………………... 

as my proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me and on my behalf at the 08th Annual General Meeting of the company to 
be held on Monday 29th September, 2025 at 12:00 Noon at First Floor, Parle G Godown, City Enclave, Back Side JP Hospital, 
Near Anand Complex, Zirakpur, Main Road, SAS Nagar, Punjab 140603 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated below:
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S.  
No.

Resolution(s) Vote
For Against

1 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statement 
of the Company for the financial period ended on 31st March 2025 together 
with the reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2 To declare a final dividend of ₹1.10/- per equity share of face value of ₹2/- 
each for the financial year ended March 31, 2025

3 To re-appoint Ms. Shreya Grover as a Director who retires by rotation & 
being eligible offers herself for re-appointment

4 Appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants  as 
Statutory Auditor

5 Appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants as 
Statutory Auditor to fill casual vacancy

6 Appointment of M/s Ankur Singh & Associates as Secretarial Auditor
7 Approval of Jeena Sikho Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2025 for Eligible 

Employee of the Company
8 Extension of the Jeena Sikho Employee Stock Option Scheme 2025, to the 

Eligible Employees of the Group Companies
9 Re-designation of Ms. Shreya Grover (DIN: 09199495) as Whole-time 

Director and a Key Managerial Personnel of the Company from the position 
of Non-Executive Director

Signed this ______________day of __________2025

Signature of shareholder: _____________________ 

Signature of Proxy holder(s)____________________

Signature of the shareholder across the Revenue Stamp



64 Annual Report 2024-25JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED

Annexure-C
PROFORMA FOR REGISTRATION/UP-DATION OF E-MAIL IDs

Date:

JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED

SCO 11 First Floor, Kalgidhar Enclave, Zirakpur, Mohali, Punjab-140604

Folio No. ___________

Dear Sirs,

Please register/up-date my/our e-mail ID for forwarding all official communications including the general meeting notices/
postal ballot notices/annual reports etc. of the Company through electronic mail. 

My/our e-mail ID is as follows:

Email ID: ______________________________________________________________________

Name of the shareholder:

Address:

__________________________

Signature of the sole/first holder 
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08th Annual General Meeting of “JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED” 

Place of meeting: First Floor, Parle G Godown, City Enclave, Back Side JP Hospital, Near Anand Complex, Zirakpur, Main Road, 
SAS Nagar, Punjab 140603

Reg. Folio: 	 ....................................                        No. of Shares Held: 	 ......................

Full Name of Shareholder: .....................................................................................................

Full Name of Proxy/Authorised Representative:  ...................................................................................... 

Regd. Folio No.: .....................................................................................................

DP Id: .....................................................................................................

No. of Shares Held: .....................................................................................................

Client Id: .....................................................................................................

I hereby record my presence at the 08th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Monday 29th September, 2025 at 
12:00 Noon at First Floor, Parle G Godown, City Enclave, Back Side JP Hospital, Near Anand Complex, Zirakpur, Main Road, 
SAS Nagar, Punjab 140603.

……………………………………………..
Name of the member/Proxy/Authorised Representative

(In BLOCK LETTERS)

……………………………………………..
Signature of member/Proxy/Authorised Representative

Note: Please fill in this attendance slip and hand it over at the venue.
* Strike out whichever is not applicable.

Annexure-D
ATTENDANCE SLIP
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ROUTE MAP TO THE AGM VENUE

https://maps.app.goo.gl/sxNJRNXp7cgQZScm9

JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED
First Floor, Parle G Godown, City Enclave, 
Back Side JP Hospital, 
Near Anand Complex, Zirakpur, 
Main Road, SAS Nagar, Punjab 140603

8th Annual General Meeting
29th Day, September, 2025, at 12:00 NOON.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xk2J6eDYK00
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Board Report
To,
The Members,
Your Director’s have pleasure in presenting the 8th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company, together 
with the audited standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 (“FY 2024-25”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS
A summary of standalone financial results of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 and Financial Year 2023-24 is as 
follows:

(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)
Particulars FY 2024-2025 FY 2023-2024

Standalone Standalone
Revenue from Operations including other Income 47,548.08 33,084.87
Less: Expenses
Cost of material consumed - -
Purchase of Stock in Trade 3,561.90 2,464.89
Changes in Inventories of Stock in Trade (435.71) (308.41)
Employee Benefit Expenses 10,048.87 6,591.11
Finance Cost 50.60 41.14
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 870.80 509.90
Other Expenses 21,224.91 14,394.53
Total Expenses 35,341.37 23,693.16
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 12,206.71 9,391.71
Exceptional and Extraordinary items -
Profit Before Tax 12,206.71 9,391.71
Tax Expenses 3,133.82 2,471.08
Net Profit for the Year 9,072.89 6,920.63

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Standalone
During the current period, your company has shown an 
increase in total revenue of ₹ 47,548.08 Lakhs as against ₹ 
33,084.87 Lakhs in the previous year on standalone basis. 
The Company has earned a net profit of ₹ 9,072.89 Lakhs as 
compared to a profit of ₹ 6,920.63 Lakhs in the previous year 
on standalone basis. The company will continue to pursue 
expansion in the domestic market, to achieve sustained and 
profitable growth.

Any member intending to have a copy of Balance Sheet 
and other Financial Statement of these Companies shall 
be made available on the website of the Company at www.
jeenasikho.com 

It shall also be kept for inspection during business hours by 
any shareholder in the registered office of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Share Capital
As on March 31, 2025, the Authorised Share Capital of the 
Company stood at ₹ 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five 
Crore Only) divided into 12,50,00,000 (Twelve Crore Fifty 
Lakhs) Equity Shares of ₹. 2/- (Rupees Two) each.

Further, the Board of Directors of your Company, with the 
approval of the Members through Postal Ballot on 23rd May, 
2025, approved the sub-division/split of the equity shares 
of the Company from 1 (One) equity share having a face 
value of ₹ 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, fully paid-up, into 
5 (Five) equity shares having a face value of ₹ 2/- (Rupees 
Two only) each, fully paid-up.

The Record Date for the purpose of determining the eligibility 
of shareholders for the said sub-division/split was fixed as 
Thursday, 12th June 2025.

Consequent to the sub-division/split, the number of equity 
shares of the Company has increased proportionately, while 
the aggregate shareholding of the Members and the paid-up 
share capital of the Company remains unchanged.

Paid Up Share Capital
As on March 31, 2025, the Paid-up Share Capital of the 
Company stood at ₹ 24,86,01,460/- (Rupees Twenty-Four 
Crore Eighty-Six Lakh One Thousand Four Hundred and Sixty) 
divided into 12,43,00,730 (Twelve Crores Forty-Three Lakhs 
Seven Hundred and Thirty) of ₹ 2/- (Rupees Two) each.

The Company has not issued any shares with differential 
voting rights or sweat equity shares during the FY 2024-25.
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MIGRATION FROM SME PLATFORM TO 
MAIN BOARD
Your Company was initially listed on the SME Emerge 
Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) 
on 19th April, 2022. During the year under review, with the 
continued trust and confidence of our valued shareholders 
and stakeholders, your Company successfully migrated 
to the Main Board of both NSE and BSE Limited w.e.f. 11th 
August, 2025.

The migration marks a significant milestone in the Company’s 
growth journey, reflecting its consistent performance, strong 
corporate governance practices, and enhanced credibility in 
the capital markets. Listing on the Main Board will provide 
wider visibility, increased participation from institutional 
investors, enhanced liquidity for the Company’s equity shares, 
and create greater long-term value for all stakeholders.

The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the 
continuous support extended by shareholders, regulators, 
employees, and business partners in achieving this 
important step in the Company’s growth trajectory.

DEMATERIALISATION OF EQUITY SHARES
All the Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized 
form with either of the depositories viz NSDL and CDSL. The 
ISIN No. allotted to the company is INE0J5801029.

DIVIDEND
Based on the Company’s performance during the financial 
year 2024-25 and in line with the Dividend Distribution Policy 
of the Company, your directors are pleased to recommend 
a Dividend of ₹ 5.47/- per equity share on the face value of  
₹ 10/- each, fully paid-up, for the financial year ended March 
31, 2025. The payment of dividend is subject to the approval 
of the Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) and shall be subject to deduction of tax at source, 
as applicable.

Further, the Board wishes to inform that pursuant to the 
sub-division/split of equity shares of the Company, whereby 
every 1 (One) equity share of face value ₹ 10/- each was 
subdivided into 5 (Five) equity shares of face value ₹ 2/- 
each, with effect from June 12, 2025, the final dividend as 
aforesaid will accordingly be Re. 1.10/- (Rupee One and Ten 
Paise Only) per equity share of face value ₹ 2/- each, fully 
paid-up.

The dividend distribution policy in terms of regulation 43A 
of SEBI( Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements 
Regulations),2015 is available on the company website: 
www.jeenasikho.com

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE
The Company has not transferred any amount to General 
Reserve during the year. The dividend payment is subject to 
approval of the members at the 8th Annual General Meeting, 
which will be paid, if declared, to the shareholders within 30 
days from the date of declaration.

DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company has not 
accepted or renewed any deposit from the public/members 
falling within the ambit of section 73 or section 74 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company is listed on SME Emerge Platform of NSE, by 
virtue of Regulation 15 of Listing Regulation the compliance 
with the corporate governance provisions as specified in 
Regulation 17, 17A, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 
clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub regulation 2 of Regulation 46 
and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the listing regulation 
are not applicable to the Company. Hence, the Corporate 
Governance Report does not form part of this Annual Report.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEMES
Your Company believes in rewarding its employees and 
aligning their interests with the long-term objectives of the 
organization. Employee Stock Option Schemes form an 
integral part of the Company’s retention and compensation 
strategy, enabling wealth creation opportunities for 
employees while ensuring their commitment towards 
sustained growth. In line with this philosophy, the 
shareholders of the Company approved the “Jeena Sikho 
Employees Stock Option Scheme 2024” at the Extraordinary 
General Meeting held on 27th February, 2024.

Under the said Scheme, the Company grants stock options 
on an equity-settled basis, which entitle eligible employees 
to purchase one equity share of the Company for each option 
granted, at a pre-determined exercise price, upon completion 
of the vesting period. The ESOPs thus represent a call option 
providing a right, but not an obligation, to the employees to 
exercise such options by paying the exercise price.

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company granted 
61,275 options to its employees. Pursuant to the corporate 
action of share split, these options stand adjusted to 
3,06,375 options. No fresh options were granted during the 
year under review. 

The applicable disclosures pursuant to Regulation 14 of the 
SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021 and Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share 
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, for the year ended 
31st March, 2025 are available on the Company’s website at 
www.jeenasikho.com.

There has been no material change in the Jeena Sikho 
Employees Stock Option Scheme 2024 during the year and 
the Scheme continues to be in compliance with the aforesaid 
SEBI Regulations.

A certificate from the Secretarial Auditors of the Company 
confirming that the Scheme has been implemented in 
accordance with SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and 
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 and the resolutions passed 
by the Members, is also available on the Company’s website 
at www.jeenasikho.com.

SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES/JOINT 
VENTURE
During the year under review, the Company did not have any 
Subsidiary, Associate, or Joint Venture Company.

However, the Company incorporated a subsidiary in the name 
of Jeena Green Resources Private Limited on 10th March 
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2025 but the subscription to the shares of the said subsidiary 
was completed on 10th April 2025. Accordingly, the said 
entity shall be considered as a Subsidiary of the Company 
for the financial year 2025-26 and necessary disclosures as 
required under Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
shall be made in the subsequent year.

Accordingly, Form AOC-1 is not applicable for FY 2024-25 
as the Company did not have any Subsidiary/Associate/
Joint Venture during the year under review.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF 
ANY
There was no change in the nature of the business of the 
Company during the financial year ended 31 March 2025.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Management Discussion and Analysis for the year, 
as stipulated under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as the “SEBI 
Listing Regulations”), is presented in a separate section, 
forms part of the Annual Report.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE 
APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING 
THE YEAR
Your Company beliefs that a strong Board is imperative to 
create a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision 
and policy approach to improve the quality of governance. As 
on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company 
consist of optimum combination of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Director, Independent Directors of the Company. 

Director Retiring by Rotation
Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the 
Articles of Association of the Company, Ms. Shreya Grover 
(DIN: 09199495), Non-Executive Director, retires by rotation 
at the ensuing AGM of the Company and, being eligible, 
offers herself for re-appointment.

Accordingly, a resolution is included in the Notice of the 08th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company, seeking approval 
of members for her re-appointment as a Director of the 
Company.

Changes in the Board During the 
Financial Year 2024–25, the following 
changes took place in the composition of 
the Board of Directors of the Company:
•	 Mr. Chandan Kumar Kaushal (DIN: 10515819) were 

appointed as Additional Directors under the category 
of Independent Non-Executive, of the Company by 
the Board of Directors on 29 April 2024, for a first 
term commencing from 29 April, 2024 up to 28 April, 
2029. (both days inclusive). His appointment was 
subsequently approved by the Shareholders in AGM 
resolution dated 28 August 2024.

•	 Further after F.Y. 2024-25 Ms. Priyanka Bansal (DIN: 
09051665) were appointed as Additional Directors 
under the category of Independent Non-Executive, of 
the Company by the Board of Directors on 21 April 2025, 
for a first term commencing from 21 April 2025 up to 20 
April, 2030. (both days inclusive). Her appointment was 
subsequently approved by the Shareholders through 
postal ballot resolution dated 23 May 2025.

During the Financial Year 2024–25, the 
following changes took place in the 
Key Managerial Personnels (KMPs) of the 
Company:
During the period under review there was no change in 
KMP. However, Ms. Anshika Garg has resigned from the 
post Company Secretary & Compliance Officer w.e.f. 01 
August 2025 & Ms. Smita Chaturvedi has been appointed as 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer w.e.f. 04 August 
2025.

Board Composition
As on date the Company’s Board has a strength of 6 (Six) 
Directors, including 3 (Three) Woman Directors. The 
composition of the Board is as below:

Category Number of Directors
Executive Director 2 (Two)
Independent Non-Executive 
Directors

3 (Three)

Non-Independent  
Non-Executive Director

1 (One)

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME OF 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
In compliance with the requirements of the Listing 
Regulations, the Company has put in place a familiarization 
programme for the Independent Directors to familiarize 
them with their roles, rights and responsibilities as Directors, 
the working of the Company, nature of the industry in which 
the Company operates, business model etc. At the time of 
appointment/re-appointment of Independent Directors, a 
formal letter of appointment is given to him/her, which, inter-
alia, explains the role, functions, duties and responsibilities 
expected from him/her as an Independent Director of 
the Company. The Independent Director is also explained 
in detail the nature, business model of the industry and 
compliances under the Act, the Listing Regulations and 
other relevant rules & regulation.

Details of the familiarization programme for Independent 
Directors are uploaded on the website of the company at 
www.jeenasikho.com.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 
POLICY
On the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board has framed a policy for 
selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management 
including Key Managerial Personnel and their remuneration. 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy includes the 
criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes, 
independence, etc. is placed on the website of the Company 
at www.jeenasikho.com/policies.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=v8R2ZlvSAKY
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The salient features of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Policy are mentioned 
below: 
• 	 The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the 

Company is designed to attract, motivate, improve 
productivity and retain manpower by creating a 
congenial work environment, encouraging initiatives, 
personal growth, team work and inculcating a 
sense of belongingness and involvement, besides 
offering appropriate remuneration packages and 
superannuation benefits.

• 	 The Committee shall comprise at least three (3) 
Directors, all of whom shall be non-executive Directors 
and at least two-third shall be Independent.

• 	 Quorum of the meeting shall be either two members or 
one-third of the members of the committee, whichever 
is greater, including at least one independent director in 
attendance.

• 	 The Role of the Committee includes: Periodically 
reviewing the size and composition of the Board to 
have an appropriate mix of executive and independent 
Directors to maintain its independence and separate 
its functions of governance and management and 
to ensure that it is structured to make appropriate 
decisions, with a variety of perspectives and skills, in 
the best interests of the Company;

• 	 Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a Director and 
recommend to the Board, relating to the remuneration 
for the Director, key managerial personnel and other 
employees.

• 	 Establishing and reviewing Board, KMP and Senior 
Management succession plans in order to ensure and 
maintain an appropriate balance of skills, experience 
and expertise on the Board and Senior Management.

• 	 The Board as per the criteria approved by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall 
carry out evaluation of performance of its own, its 
committees, and individual Directors and the Chairman.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER 
POLICY:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower 
Policy for directors and employees to report their genuine 
concerns has been established. The Vigil Mechanism/
Whistle Blower Policy has been uploaded on the website of 
the Company at https://www.jeenasikho.com/policies under 
‘Investor Section’.

The Policy is an extension of the Code of Conduct for 
Directors & Senior Management Personnel and covers any 
unethical and improper actions or malpractices and events 
which have taken place/suspected to take place.

As per the policy all Protected Disclosures should be 
addressed to the Vigilance Officer/Company Secretary or to 
the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, 
assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business 

objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and 
functions are systematically addressed through mitigating 
actions on a continuing basis. Major elements of risk/threats 
for Ayurveda Industry are regulatory concerns, consumer 
perceptions and competition. These are discussed at the 
meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors 
of the Company. The Board of Directors has adopted a 
risk management policy for the company outlining the 
parameters of identification, assessment, monitoring and 
mitigation of various risks which is available on the website 
of the company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Committees of the Board focus on certain specific areas 
and make an informed decisions in line with the delegated 
authority. 

The following Committees constituted by the Board function 
according to their respective roles and defined scope:

1.	 Audit Committee
2.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3.	 Stakeholder relationship Committee
4.	 Corporate Social responsibility Committee
5.	 Risk Management Committee

During the year under review, all recommendations made 
by the various committees of the Board have been duly 
accepted by the Board.

The Composition of the said Committees are as 
under:
Audit Committee:
As on date, the Audit Committee comprises of:

Name of  
Director

Designation of 
Committee

Nature of 
Directorship

Mr. Chandan 
Kumar Kaushal*

Chairperson Independent 
Director

Mr. Karan Vir 
Bindra

Member Independent 
Director

Mr. Manish 
Grover

Member Managing 
Director

*Mr. Chandan Kumar Kaushal was appointed as the chairperson of the 
Committee w.e.f. April 29, 2024.

Our Company Secretary and Compliance officer will act as 
the secretary of the Committee.

Nomination And Remuneration Committee:
As on date the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
comprises of:

Name of  
Director

Designation of 
Committee

Nature of 
Directorship

Mr. Karan Vir 
Bindra

Chairperson Independent 
Director

Mr. Chandan 
Kumar Kaushal *

Member Independent 
Director

Ms. Shreya 
Grover

Member Non - Executive 
Director

* Mr. Chandan Kumar Kaushal was appointed as the member of the Committee 
w.e.f. April 29, 2024.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9JNsoJzKBOA
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Our Company Secretary and Compliance officer will act as 
the secretary of the Committee.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:
As on date the Stakeholders‘ Relationship Committee 
comprises of:

Name of  
Director

Designation of 
Committee

Nature of 
Directorship

Mr. Chandan 
Kumar Kaushal *

Chairperson Independent 
Director

Ms. Bhavna 
Grover

Member Whole Time 
Director

Ms. Manish 
Grover

Member Managing 
Director

* Mr. Chandan Kumar Kaushal was appointed as the chairperson of the 
Committee w.e.f. April 29, 2024.

Our Company Secretary and Compliance officer will act as 
the secretary of the Committee.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
As on date CSR committee comprises of:

Name Designation Nature of 
Directorship

Karan Vir Bindra Chairman Independent 
Director

Manish Grover Member Managing 
Director

Bhavna Grover Member Whole Time 
Director

Risk Management Committee:
As on date Risk Management committee comprises of:

Name Designation Nature of 
Directorship

Manish Grover Chairman Managing 
Director

Bhavna Grover Member Whole Time 
Director

Priyanka Bansal Member Independent 
Director

* Ms. Priyanka Bansal was appointed as the Member of the Committee w.e.f. 
April 21, 2025.

CODE OF CONDUCT
The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board 
members and Senior Management Personnel of the 
Company. The Code is displayed on the website of the 
Company www.jeenasikho.com. All Board members and 
Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance 
with the said Code of Ethics & Conduct.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS/
SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION & 
PROTECTION FUND AUTHORITY
Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with Investors Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, all 

unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred 
by the Company to the Investors Education and Protection 
Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government of India, 
after the completion of seven years. Further, all shares in 
respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for 
seven consecutive years or more shall also be required to 
be transferred by the Company to the Demat Account of the 
IEPF Authority.

There were no unclaimed dividends due for transfer to the 
IEPF during the financial year 2024–25.

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITOR’S 
REPORT
M/s. KRA & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 
No. 020266N), holding a valid certificate issued by the Peer 
Review Board (Certificate No. 012550) of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) were appointed as the 
Statutory Auditor of the Company for a term of 5 years w.e.f. 
conclusion of 4th Annual General Meeting of the Company till 
the conclusion of the 09th Annual General Meeting.

Statutory Auditors’ Report
The Auditors Report on the standalone financial statements 
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 
2025, read with relevant notes thereon, is self-explanatory 
and therefore does not call for any further comments. 
The Auditors Report does not contain any qualifications, 
reservations, or adverse remarks.

Details with respect to frauds reported by 
Auditors
During the year, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any 
matter under the second proviso of Section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and therefore no details are required 
to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND THEIR 
REPORT
In terms of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 
Company has appointed M/s Rawal & Co. (Firm Registration 
no. S2020UP717200), holding a valid certificate issued by 
the Peer Review Board (Certificate No. of the Institute of 
Companies Secretaries of India (ICSI), as the Statutory 
auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25.The 
Secretarial Audit Report as given by the Secretarial Auditors, 
in Form No. MR-3 of Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited is annexed 
to this Report as Annexure - 1. 

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, 
comments, observations or disclaimer made by the 
Secretarial Auditors in their report. There were no frauds 
reported by the Secretarial Auditors under the provisions of 
Section 143 of the Act.

COST AUDITORS
The provisions of maintenance of Cost Records as specified 
by the Central Government under subsection (1) of Section 
148 of the Act are not applicable on the Company.
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MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the financial year 2024-2025, your Board of Directors have meet 23 (Twenty-Three) times. The details of meeting & 
attendance are given hereunder. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the prescribed period.

S. No. Date of Board Meeting No. of Directors eligible to attend No. of Directors attended meeting
1 29-04-2024 5 5
2 15-05-2024 5 5
3 10-06-2024 5 5
4 19-06-2024 5 5
5 02-07-2024 5 5
6 29-07-2024 5 5
7 11-07-2024 5 5
8 12-08-2024 5 5
9 02-09-2024 5 5
10 13-09-2024 5 5
11 16-09-2024 5 5
12 03-10-2024 5 5
13 11-10-2024 5 5
14 16-10-2024 5 5
15 05-11-2024 5 5
16 11-11-2024 5 5
17 04-12-2024 5 5
18 04-01-2025 5 5
19 25-01-2025 5 5
20 31-01-2025 5 5
21 25-02-2025 5 5
22 04-03-2025 5 5
23 19-03-2025 5 5

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Secretarial Standard -1 relating to Board 
Meeting issued by the Institute of Company secretaries of 
India, the independent directors shall conduct at least One 
(1) meeting in a Calendar Year to review the performance 
of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 
to review the performance of the Chairman and to assess 
the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information 
between the company management and the Board and its 
members that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 
reasonably perform their duties.

Accordingly, all Independent Directors of the Company 
has conducted a meeting dated 31 March 2025, without 
presence of non-independent director where they review the 
performance of all non-independent director of the company 
and the board as a whole, also review the performance of the 
Chairman of the company and assess the quality, quantity 
and timeliness of flow of information between the company 
management and the Board.

ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) (a) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, and Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the 

Company containing the particulars as prescribed under 
Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form MGT-7, is 
available on the Company’s website at the weblink https://
www.jeenasikho.com. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Company comes under the criteria as mentioned in 
section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e., Corporate Social 
Responsibility and accordingly the amount has been spent on 
CSR activities in the financial year 2024-2025 to comply with 
the requirements of necessary social expenditure which is ₹ 
100.31 Lakhs i.e. (2% of the average net profit of immediate 
preceding three (3) financial years). The constitution of CSR 
Committee was applicable for FY 2024-25, subsequently the 
CSR Committee is formulated and the composition is also 
given. The CSR Report is annexed as Annexure - 2.

The Board of Director of your Company has formulated and 
adopted a policy on CSR which can be accessed at https://
www.jeenasikho.com/policies 

The CSR Policy of your Company outlines the Company’s 
philosophy for undertaking socially useful programs for 
welfare and sustainable development of the community at 
large as part of its CSR Obligation.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=AdcU1xVRvlc
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=AdcU1xVRvlc
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9JNsoJzKBOA
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9JNsoJzKBOA
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FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION
The Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations 
contain provisions for the evaluation of the performance of:

(i) 	 the Board as a whole;

(ii) 	 various committees of the Board; and

(iii) 	 the individual directors (including independent directors 
and the Chairperson).

The Board of Directors carried out an annual evaluation of 
its own performance, Board Committees, and individual 
directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, and SEBI Listing Regulations.

The performance of the Board was evaluated based on 
inputs from the board members, the Board’s composition, 
the effectiveness of board processes, information and 
functioning, areas, and quality of the review, and the 
establishment and delineation of responsibilities to 
committees.

The performance of the individual directors was reviewed 
based on inputs from the board members, including input on 
the contribution of the individual directors to the board and 
committee meetings.

The performance of the Chairman was evaluated based on 
inputs from the board members regarding his leadership, 
stakeholder management, vision, and strategy.

The performance of the committees was evaluated 
based on inputs received from the committee members, 
covering the inputs on the composition of committees, 
effectiveness of committee meetings, degree of fulfilment 
of key responsibilities, committee dynamics, and quality of 
the relationship of the committee with the board and the 
management.

Pursuant to the requirements of Schedule IV to the 
Companies Act, 2013, and the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
a meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company 
was held on 31 March 2025, without the presence of non-
independent directors and members of the management. At 
this meeting, the Independent Directors, inter alia, reviewed 
the performance of the Non- Independent Directors, the 
Board as a whole, and the Chairman of the Company, taking 
into consideration the views of both Executive and Non-
Executive Directors.

They also assessed the quality, quantity, and timeliness of 
the flow of information between the Management and the 
Board, which is critical for the Board to effectively discharge 
its responsibilities. The observations and feedback of the 
Independent Directors were duly communicated to the 
Chairman of the Board as part of this evaluation process.

NATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in business of the Company.

Jeena Sikho has a diverse portfolio consisting of a number 
of brands and sub-brands including “Shuddhi”. The Company 
offers a variety of Ayurvedic Products and services through 
Shuddhi clinics and HIIMS, all over the Country. The Company 

has presence across various channels such as general 
groceries, chemists, organized retail and ecommerce. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
REPORT
A detailed review of operations, performance and future 
outlook of your company and its businesses is given in 
the Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the 
FY 2024-25, which forms part of this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
The details of loans and Investments and guarantees 
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are 
given in the Notes to the Financial Statements forming a part 
of Annual Report.

Current borrowings of the company are compliant with 
Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
During the year under review, all transactions entered by the 
Company with Related Parties as defined under the Act were 
in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length 
pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 
188 of the Act. All related party transactions are presented 
to the Audit Committee and the Board. Omnibus approval 
is obtained before the commencement of the new financial 
year, for the transactions which are repetitive in nature and 
also for the transactions which are not foreseen.

During the year, the Company did not enter into any related 
party transactions that had a conflict with that of the 
Company at large. Further, the Company did not enter into 
any material related party transactions, as specified in 
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, with any of its 
related parties. 

The details of related party transactions as entered into 
by the Company are disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements of the Company.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with rules framed thereunder, the 
disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements with 
related parties in Form AOC-2 is annexed to this Report as 
Annexure - 3.

In line with the requirements of the applicable laws, 
the Company has formulated a policy on related party 
transactions which is uploaded on the website of the 
Company at: https://www.jeenasikho.co.in/policies.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL 
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment 
at the workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention, 
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace 
in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6nrqY4o-OPk
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Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. As required under law, 
an Internal Compliance Committee has been constituted for 
reporting and conducting inquiry into the complaints made 
by the victim on the harassments at the workplace.

During the year the period under review, the Company has 
not received any sexual harassment complaints during the 
financial year nor any complaint is pending at the end of the 
financial year.

The Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment of the 
Company is available on the Company’s website at the web 
link https://jeenasikho.com/investors/.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING 
CONCERNS STATUS AND COMPANY₹S 
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE
There is no significant and material order passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and the Company’s operations in future.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
There have been no material changes and/or commitments 
affecting the financial position of the Company which 
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company and the date of the Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Pursuant to provisions of Section 134(3)(m) & Rule 8(3) of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the details of energy 
conservation, technology absorption and foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo has been given in Annexure - 4 to this 
report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND 
THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has a proper and robust system of internal 
controls geared towards achieving efficiency of business 
operations, safeguarding the Company’s assets and 
ensuring optimum utilization of resources. Such controls 
also ensure accuracy and promptness of financial reporting 
and compliance with statutory regulations. 

In the opinion of the Statutory Auditors of the Company, 
as expressed by them in their report, the Company has 
adequate internal control systems over financial reporting 
as at 31 March, 2025.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its 
most important assets. Your Company continuously invests 
in attraction, retention and development of talent on an 
ongoing basis. A number of programs that provide focused 
people attention are currently underway. Your Company’s 
thrust is on the promotion of talent internally through job 
rotation and job enlargement.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
In terms of the provisions of Section 197 (12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other 
details are provided in the Annexure - 5 to this Report.

Particulars of employee remuneration, as required under 
Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5 (2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
forms an integral part of this Annual Report. In terms of 
the provisions of the first proviso to Section 136 (1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report is being sent to 
Members, excluding the aforementioned information. Any 
Member interested in obtaining a copy of such statement 
may write to the Company Secretary of the Company at cs@
jeenasikho.com.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL 
STANDARDS
The Company complies with the applicable Secretarial 
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India and approved by the Central Government under Section 
118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND 
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT (“BRSR”)
In Compliance with Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Company is required to prepare a Business Responsibility 
and Sustainability Report on the environmental, social, and 
governance disclosures. The Business Responsibility and 
Sustainability Report of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31 March, 2025, is presented in the separate section 
and forms part of this Report.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
The Company maintained healthy, cordial and harmonious 
industrial relations at all levels. The enthusiasm and 
unstinting efforts of employees have enabled the Company 
to remain at the leadership position in the industry. It 
has taken various steps to improve productivity across 
organization.

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
During the year under review, Skyline Financial Services Pvt. 
Ltd. was the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERNITY 
BENEFIT ACT, 1961 
The Company has complied with the provisions of the 
Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, including all applicable 
amendments and rules framed thereunder. The Company 
is committed to ensuring a safe, inclusive, and supportive 
workplace for women employees. All eligible women 
employees are provided with maternity benefits as 
prescribed under the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, including 
paid maternity leave, nursing breaks, and protection from 
dismissal during maternity leave. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TX2twYUtyEo
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=XyX0FMOG3jI
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=XyX0FMOG3jI
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The Company also ensures that no discrimination is made 
in recruitment or service conditions on the grounds of 
maternity. Necessary internal systems and HR policies are 
in place to uphold the spirit and letter of the legislation.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the provisions under Section 134(5) of the Act, 
with respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, the 
Directors confirm:

a)	 That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed 
and no material departures have been made from the 
same;

b)	 That they had selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently, and made judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit and loss of the Company for that period;

c)	 That they had taken proper and sufficient care for 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

d)	 That they had prepared the annual accounts on a going 
concern basis;

e)	 That they had laid down internal financial controls to 
be followed by the company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively; and

f)	 That they had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

OTHER DISCLOSURES
There were no transactions on the following matters during 
the year and hence no reporting or disclosure is required:

•	 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to 
dividend, voting, or otherwise.

•	 Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to 
employees of the Company under any scheme save and 
except the Employees’ Stock Option Scheme referred to 
in this Report.

•	 There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

APPRECIATION
Your directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, 
shareholders, suppliers, bankers, business partners/
associates, and Central and State Governments for their 
consistent support and encouragement of the Company. We 
place on record our appreciation for the contribution made 
by our employees at all levels. Our consistent growth was 
made possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation, 
and support.

For and on behalf of Board 
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited 

Sd/-
Manish Grover
Managing Director
DIN: 07557886

Sd/-
Bhavna Grover

Whole Time Director
DIN: 07557913

Date: 27.08.2025
Place: Zirakpur, Punjab



76 Annual Report 2024-25JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED

Annexure - 1
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
Personnel) Rules, 2014)

For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 

To,
The Members
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited
Sco 11 First Floor, Kalgidhar Enclave, 
Mohali, Zirakpur, Punjab, India, 140604

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of 
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited (herein 
after referred as “company”). Secretarial Audit conducted 
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/Statutory Compliances 
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, 
Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its Officers, Agents and Authorised 
Representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I 
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on March 
31, 2025 has complied with the Statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board 
processes and Compliance mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

I have examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms 
and Returns filed and other Records maintained by the 
Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 
according to the provisions of:

1. 	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 
thereunder;

2. 	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

3. 	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Byelaws framed thereunder;

4. 	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (SEBI Act’):

a) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

b) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018;

d) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client;

e) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

f) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009. 

I have examined all the other applicable laws to the 
Company on the basis of the representations made by the 
Management. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses 
of the following:

a) 	 Secretarial Standards pursuant to section 118(10) of 
the Act, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India;

b) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Securities and Exchange Board of India and such other 
regulatory authorities for such acts, rules, regulations, 
standards etc. as mentioned above.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted 
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act.
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. Meetings which are convened 
at shorter notice and agenda/notes on agenda which are 
circulated less than the specified period, the necessary 
compliances under the Companies Act, 2013, Secretarial 
Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors and Listing 
Regulations are complied with.

During the year under review, the Board/Committee 
Meetings convened through Video Conferencing and the 
Directors/Members who have participated in the Board/
Committee meetings through Video Conferencing were in 
compliance with the provisions of Section 173 (2) of the 
Act read with Rule 3 of Companies (Meetings of Board and 
its Powers) Rules, 2014. Further, the Circulars, Regulations 
and Guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Securities and Exchange Board of India and other relevant 
regulatory authorities pertaining to Board/Committee 

meetings, General Meetings and other provisions of the 
Act, Rules and Regulations have been complied with by the 
Company.

All the decisions were carried out unanimously by the 
Members of the Board and Committees and the same were 
duly recorded in the Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of 
Directors and Committees of the Company.

I further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the company to commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

I further report that there were no instances of: 

i. 	 Public/Rights/Preferential issue of shares/debentures.

ii. 	 Buy-Back of securities.

iii. 	 Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction etc.

iv. 	 Foreign technical collaborations

For and on behalf of Rawal & Co. 
Company Secretaries

Vivek Rawal
Proprietor
Membership No.: A43231
C.P No.: 22687
UDIN: A043231G001094171

Date: 27.08.2025
Place: Gurugram
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ANNEXURE A

Our Secretarial Audit Report of event date issued to M/s. Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited (CIN: L52601PB2017PLC046545) is 
to be read along with this letter:

1. 	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. 	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

3. 	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial record and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. 	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. 	 The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. 	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For and on behalf of Rawal & Co. 
Company Secretaries

Vivek Rawal
Proprietor
Membership No.: A43231
C.P No.: 22687
UDIN: A043231G001094171

Date: 27.08.2025
Place: Gurugram



79Annual Report 2024-25 JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED

STATU
TO

R
Y R

EPO
R

T

Annexure - 2
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) REPORT

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. 	 A BRIEF OUTLINE OF THE COMPANY’S CSR POLICY.
	 The Company, through its Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives, shall strive to enrich the quality of life in different 

segments of the society.

2. 	 THE COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE.

Sl.  
No.

Name of Director Designation/Nature of 
Directorship

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee held 
during the year

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee attended 
during the year

1 Mr. Manish Grover Director 2 2
2 MINR Bhavna Grover Director 2 2
3 Mr. Karan Vir Bindra Independent Director 2 2

3. 	 PROVIDE THE WEB-LINK WHERE COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE, CSR POLICY AND 
CSR PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE BOARD ARE DISCLOSED ON THE WEBSITE OF THE 
COMPANY: 

	 https://jeenasikho.com/investors/

4.	 PROVIDE THE EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ALONG WITH WEB-LINK(S) OF IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT OF CSR PROJECTS CARRIED OUT IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF 
RULE 8, IF APPLICABLE.: 

	 Not Applicable

5. (a) Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): 5015.34 lakhs

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 100.31 lakhs

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 
years: 

Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: 100.31 lakhs

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): 101.64 lakhs

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: 101.64 lakhs

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year. 
(in ₹) 

Amount Unspent (in ₹)
Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

subsection (6) of section 135.

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub-section (5) 

of section 135
Amount Date of transfer Name of the 

fund
Amount Date of transfer

₹ 101.64 Lakhs - - - - -

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TX2twYUtyEo
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(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. 
No.

Particular Amount (in ₹)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 100.31 lakhs
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 101.64 lakhs
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 1.33 lakhs
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years, if any 
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 1.33 lakhs

7.	 DETAILS OF UNSPENT CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AMOUNT FOR THE 
PRECEDING THREE FINANCIAL YEARS:

Sr. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial 
Year

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under 
subsection 
(6) of 
section 135 
(in ₹)

Balance 
Amount in 
Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under 
subsection 
(6) of 
section 135 
(in ₹)

Amount 
Spent 
in the 
Financial 
Year (in ₹)

Amount transferred 
to a Fund as specified 
under Schedule VII as 
per second proviso to 

subsection (5) of section 
135, if any

Amount 
remaining 
to be 
spent in 
succeeding 
Financial 
Years (in ₹)

Deficiency, 
if any

Amount 
(in ₹)

Date of 
transfer

1 FY-1 - - - - - - -
2 FY-2 - - - - - - -
3 FY-3 - - - - - - -

8.	 WHETHER ANY CAPITAL ASSETS HAVE BEEN CREATED OR ACQUIRED THROUGH 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AMOUNT SPENT IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 

	 Not applicable

9.	 SPECIFY THE REASON(S), IF THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND TWO PER CENT OF 
THE AVERAGE NET PROFIT AS PER SUBSECTION (5) OF SECTION 135.: 

	 Not applicable

For and on behalf of Board 
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited 

Sd/-
Karan Vir Bindra
Chairman of CSR Committee and Independent Director
DIN: 09283623

Sd/- 
Manish Grover 

Managing Director 
DIN: 07557886 

Date: 27.08.2025
Place: Zirakpur, Punjab



81Annual Report 2024-25 JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED

STATU
TO

R
Y R

EPO
R

T

Annexure - 3
FORM NO. AOC. 2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in 
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. 	 DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARM’S 
LENGTH BASIS

S. No. Particular Amount
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

NA

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first 

proviso to section 188

S. No. Particular Amount
1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Shuddhi 

Lifecare 
Private Limited

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Sale/Purchase 
of Goods and 
Services & 
Rent

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: 5,56,56,886 & 

3,83,500
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NA

S. No. Particular Amount
1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Manish Grover
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Rent & 

Remuneration
(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: 11,00,000 & 

2,40,00,000.
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NA
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By Order of the Board of Directors
For Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited

Sd/- 
Manish Grover 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07557886 

Sd/- 
Bhavna Grover

Whole Time Director
DIN: 07557913

 
Date: 27.08.2025
Place: Zirakpur, Punjab

S. No. Particular Amount
1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Bhavna Grover
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Remuneration
(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: 1,80,00,000.
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NA

S. No. Particular Amount
1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Manish Grover 

HUF
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Rent
(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: 6,00,000.
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NA
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Annexure - 4 
INFORMATION RELATING TO ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT IN TERMS OF SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
READ WITH THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy
NA(ii) the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption

NA

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year):
(a) 	 the details of technology imported
(b) 	 the year of import
(c) 	 whether the technology been fully absorbed
(d) 	 if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year: 106.52 lakhs

The Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows: 58.05 lakhs

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited

Sd/- 
Manish Grover 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07557886 

Sd/- 
Bhavna Grover

Whole Time Director
DIN: 07557913

 
Date: 27.08.2025
Place: Zirakpur, Punjab
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Annexure - 5
EMPLOYEES DETAILS

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 5(1) & 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are 
mentioned below:

(A)	INFORMATION AS PER RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL RULES, 2014
1.	 Remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) along with particulars of increase in 

remuneration during the financial year, Ratio of remuneration of Directors to the Median Remuneration of employees.

Name of the 
Director/and 
KMP

Designation Remuneration 
(₹)  

2024-2025

Remuneration 
(₹)  

2023-2024

Increase (%) Ratio of 
Director’s 

Remuneration 
to Median 

remuneration*
Manish Grover Managing 

Director
2,40,00,000 2,40,00,000 0% 17.86

Bhavna Grover Whole Time 
Director

1,80,00,000 1,80,00,000 0% 13.40

Nanak Chand CFO 19,85,000 14,75,000 34.58% N.A.
Ms. Anshika 
Garg$

CS 3,00,000 2,49,167 - N.A.

* The median is calculated for per year remuneration. 

2.	 The median remuneration of the Company for all its employees is 1,11,938 per month for the financial year 2024-
2025.

3.	 The Percentage Increase/decrease in median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year: 54.52%

4.	 Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 3764 As on March 31, 2025.

5.	 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification 
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 
Average percentile increase in salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in comparison to last 
financial year 54.52 to increase in number of employees during the F.Y. 2024-25. However there is no change in 
remuneration of Managerial Personnel during the period.

6.	 We, hereby affirm that pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel is as per the remuneration 
policy of the Company.

(B)	 INFORMATION RELATING TO TOP 10 EMPLOYEES  

Name of 
Employee

Designation Nature of 
Employment

Qualification Age Experience Remuneration 
(₹)  

2024-2025

Relative of 
any director/

manager

Manish 
Grover

Managing 
Director

Permanent B.COM and 
Honorary 
Doctorate in 
Ayurveda & 
Naturopathy

50 29 Years 24000000 Yes

Bhavna 
Grover

Whole time 
Director

Permanent B.A. 49 23 Years 18000000 Yes

Sahil Jain IT Head Permanent MCA 35 15 Years 3750000 Yes

Gaurav 
Mohan Garg

Business 
Development 
Head

Permanent B.Com and 
Diploma in 
Software 
Engineering

46 25 Years 2400000 No
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Name of 
Employee

Designation Nature of 
Employment

Qualification Age Experience Remuneration 
(₹)  

2024-2025

Relative of 
any director/

manager

Kapil Dev Business 
Development 
Manager

Permanent Graduate 44 21 Years 2160000 NO

Nidhi Punia Doctor Permanent B.A.M.S Pgd 
Panchkarma

39 9 Years 2205903 NO

Akansha Jain HR Head Permanent MCA 36 12 Years 2100000 Yes

Suyash Pratap 
Singh

Doctor Permanent BAMS 32 10 Years 2072322 No

Raghuvendra Doctor Permanent B.Com 43 15 Years 1994057 No

Avira Gautam Doctor Permanent BAMS/MD 38 6 Years 2253812 No

(B)	 INFORMATION RELATING TO TOP 10 EMPLOYEES (Contd.)

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited

Sd/- 
Manish Grover 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07557886 

Sd/- 
Bhavna Grover

Whole Time Director
DIN: 07557913

 
Date: 27.08.2025
Place: Zirakpur, Punjab
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By Order of the Board of Directors
For Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited

Date: 27.08.2025
Place: Zirakpur, Punjab

Sd/- 
Manish Grover 

Managing Director 
DIN: 07557886  

Chairman’s Declaration on Code of Conduct
To, 
The Members of 
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited

This is to certify that the Company has laid down a Code of Conduct (the Code) for all Board Members and Senior Management 
Personnel of the Company and a copy of the Code is put on the website of the Company viz www.jeenasikho.com.

It is further confirmed that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code 
of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel, as approved by the Board, for the financial year ended 
on March 31, 2025.
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Certification by Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company
To 
The Board of Directors
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited

I, Nanak Chand, Chief Financial Officer of Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited, hereby certify that: 

a.	 I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 and that to the best 
of my knowledge and belief:

	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading; 

	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b.	 There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year that are 
fraudulent, illegal, or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

c.	 I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that I have evaluated 
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the 
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which I am 
aware and the steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.

d.	 I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial 
reporting during the year; significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and 
the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal 
control system over financial reporting.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited

Date: 27.08.2025
Place: Zirakpur, Punjab

Sd/- 
Nanak Chand 

Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 07557886  
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report
SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES
I. Details of the listed entity

1 Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity L52601PB2017PLC046545
2 Name of the Listed Entity JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED
3 Date of Incorporation 29-05-2017
4 Registered office address SCO 11 FIRST FLOOR, KALGIDHAR ENCLAVE, Mohali, 

ZIRAKPUR, Punjab, India, 140604
5 Corporate address SCO 11 FIRST FLOOR, KALGIDHAR ENCLAVE, Mohali, 

ZIRAKPUR, Punjab, India, 140604
6 E-mail divyaupchar.zk@gmail.com
7 Telephone 01762-513185
8 Website www.jeenasikho.com
9 Financial year for which reporting is being done Start date End date

Current Financial Year 01-04-2024 31-03-2025
Previous Financial Year 01-04-2023 31-03-2024
Prior to Previous Financial year 01-04-2022 31-03-2023

10 Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where  
shares are listed

NSE

11 Paid-up Capital (In ₹) 248601460.00
12 Name and contact details (telephone, email address) of 

the person who may be contacted in case of any queries 
on the BRSR report
Name ANSHIKA GARG
Contact 8376816902
E mail cs@jeenasikho.com

13 Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this 
report made on a standalone basis (i.e. only for the 
entity) or on a consolidated basis (i.e. for the entity and 
all the entities which form a part of its consolidated 
financial statements, taken together).

Standalone basis

14 Whether the company has undertaken assessment or 
assurance of the BRSR Core?

No

15 Name of assessment or assurance provider
16 Type of assessment or assurance obtained

II. Products/services
17. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover)

Sr. No. Description of Main Activity Description of Business Activity % of Turnover of the entity
1 Trade Retail Trading 46.00%
2 Hospital and Medical Care Other Hospital and Medical Care Activities 54.00%

18. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover)

Sr. No. Product/Service NIC Code % of total Turnover contributed
1 Retail Trading 4772 46.00%
2 Other Hospital and Medical Care Activities 8690 54.00%
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III. Operations
19. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated

Location Number of plants Number of offices Total
National 0 115 115
International 0 0 0

20. Markets served by the entity
A. Number of locations 

Locations Number
National (No. of States) 23
International (No. of Countries) 0

B. What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?
0.23%

C. A brief on types of customers
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited are envolved in offering ayurveda healthcare services and medicines to the Public via its own 
hospitals, clinics, dealers and Franchisees.

IV. Employees
21 Details as at the end of Financial Year
A. Employees and workers (including differently abled)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Total (A) Male Female Other
No. (B) % (B/A) No. (C) % (C/A) No. (H) % (H/A)

EMPLOYEES
1 Permanent (D) 3764 1938 51.49% 1826 48.51% 0 0.00%
2 Other than permanent (E) 1000 650 65.00% 350 35.00% 0 0.00%
3 Total employees (D + E) 4764 2588 54.32% 2176 45.68% 0 0.00%

WORKERS
4 Permanent (F) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
5 Other than permanent (G) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
6 Total workers (F + G) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

B. Differently abled Employees and workers:

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Total (A) Male Female Other
No. (B) % (B/A) No. (C) % (C/A) No. (H) % (H/A)

DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES
1 Permanent (D) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
2 Other than Permanent (E) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
3 Total differently abled 

employees (D + E)
0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS
4 Permanent (F) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
5 Other than Permanent (G) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
6 Total differently abled 

workers (F + G)
0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
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22. Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women

Total (A) No. and percentage of Females
No. (B) % (B/A)

Board of Directors 5 2 40.00%
Key Management Personnel 2 1 50.00%

23. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers

Turnover rate in  
current FY (2024-25)

Turnover rate in  
previous FY (2023-24)

Turnover rate in the year prior to the 
previous FY (2022-23)

Male Female Other Total Male Female Other Total Male Female Other Total

Permanent Employees 4.50% 6.50% 0.00% 11.00% 4.00% 6.00% 0.00% 10.00% 4.50% 6.50% 0.00% 11.00%

Permanent Workers 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)
24 (a) Names of holding/subsidiary/associate companies/joint ventures

Sr. 
No.

Name of the holding/
subsidiary/associate 
companies/joint 
ventures (A)

Indicate whether holding/
Subsidiary/Associate/
Joint Venture

% of shares held by 
listed entity

Does the entity indicated at column 
A, participate in the Business 
Responsibility initiatives of the 
listed entity? (Yes/No)

1 JEENA GREEN 
RESOURCES PRIVATE 
LIMITED

Subsidiary 51.00% No

VI.  CSR Details
25.
(i)	 Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013; (Yes/No): Yes

(ii)	 Turnover (in `): 3,24,40,89,148.86

(iii)	 Net worth (in `): 1,92,24,80,382.00

VII. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances
26 Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National 
Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct

Stakeholder 
group from 
whom 
complaint is 
received

Grievance 
Redressal 
Mechanism 
in Place 
(Yes/No/
NA)

(If Yes, then 
provide web-link 
for grievance 
redress policy)

FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24) (If NA, 
then 
provide 
the 
reason)

Number of 
complaints 
filed during 

the year

Number of 
complaints 

pending 
resolution at 
close of the 

year

Remarks Number of 
complaints 
filed during 

the year

Number of 
complaints 

pending 
resolution at 
close of the 

year

Remarks

Communities No 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Investors 
(other than 
shareholders)

Yes https://jeenasikho.
com/investor-
grievance/

0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Shareholders Yes https://jeenasikho.
com/investor-
grievance/

0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Employees 
and workers

Yes https://jeenasikho.
com/investor-
grievance/

0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Customers Yes https://jeenasikho.
com/investor-
grievance/

0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Value Chain 
Partners

Yes https://jeenasikho.
com/investor-
grievance/

0 0 NA 0 0 NA

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Me3HSdDOI4U
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES
Disclosure Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
Policy and management processes
1. a. Whether your entity’s 

policy/policies cover each 
principle and its core 
elements of the NGRBCs. 
(Yes/No/NA)

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

b. Has the policy been 
approved by the Board?  
(Yes/No/NA)

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

c. Web Link of the Policies, if 
available

https://jeenasikho.com/investors/

2. Whether the entity has 
translated the policy into 
procedures. (Yes/No/NA)

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

3. Do the enlisted policies 
extend to your value chain 
partners? (Yes/No/NA)

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

4. Name of the national 
and international codes/
certifications/labels/
standards (e.g. Forest 
Stewardship Council, 
Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance, 
Trustee) standards (e.g. 
SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, BIS) 
adopted by your entity and 
mapped to each principle.

5. Specific commitments, goals 
and targets set by the entity 
with defined timelines, if any.

6. Performance of the entity 
against the specific 
commitments, goals and 
targets along-with reasons in 
case the same are not met.

Governance, leadership and 
oversight
7. Statement by director 

responsible for the business 
responsibility report, 
highlighting ESG related 
challenges, targets and 
achievements (listed entity 
has flexibility regarding the 
placement of this disclosure)

Jeena Sikho believes in environmental transparency and dsiclosing its activities’ 
economic, environmental, and social impacts through sustainability reports. It has 
published Six sustainability reports accredited by the global Reporting Initiative 
guidelines. The Company engaged third-party assurance provider to review the 
contents and accuracy of our sustainability reporting.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TX2twYUtyEo
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

Disclosure Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

8. Details of the highest 
authority responsible for 
implementation and oversight 
of the Business Responsibility 
policy (ies).

 Manish Grover DIN:07557886

9. Does the entity have a 
specified Committee of the 
Board/Director responsible 
for decision making on 
sustainability related issues? 
(Yes/No/NA).

Yes

If yes, provide details. The Company’s CSR committee is responsible for decision making on sustainability 
related issues.

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company

Subject for Review Indicate whether review was undertaken by 
Director/Committee of the Board/Any other 

Committee

Frequency (Annually/Half yearly/Quarterly/
Any other-please specify)

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9 P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

Performance against above policies 
and follow up action

Committee of the Board Any other

Description of other committee for 
performance against above policies and 
follow up action

All the policies of the Company are approved 
by the Board and reviewed periodically or 
on a need basis by the CSR Committee as 
a part of ESG review. During the review, the 
effectiveness of the Policies is evaluated 
and necessary amendments to Policies and 
procedures are implemented.

Compliance with statutory requirements 
of relevance to the principles and 
rectification of any non-compliances

Committee of the Board Any other

Description of other committee for 
compliance with statutory requirements 
of relevance to the principles and 
rectification

The Company complies with the extant 
regulations and principles as are applicable.

Subject for Review P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
11. Has the entity carried out 

independent assessment/
evaluation of the working of 
its policies by an external 
agency? (Yes/No).

No No No No No No No No No

If Yes, Provide name of the 
agency
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12. If answer to question (1) above is “No” i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:	

Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
The entity does not consider the 
Principles material to its business 
(Yes/No)
The entity is not at a stage where 
it is in a position to formulate and 
implement the policies on specified 
principles (Yes/No)
The entity does not have the 
financial or/human and technical 
resources available for the task 
(Yes/No)
It is planned to be done in the next 
financial year (Yes/No)
Any other reason (please specify)

SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE					   
This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the Principles and Core Elements with 
key processes and decisions. The information sought is categorized as “Essential” and “Leadership”. While the essential 
indicators are expected to be disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership indicators may be 
voluntarily disclosed by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to be socially, environmentally and 
ethically responsible.					   

PRINCIPLE 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a 
manner that is Ethical, Transparent and Accountable.
Essential Indicators
1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during 
the financial year:

Segment Total number 
of training and 
awareness 
programmes held

Topics/principles covered under the training 
and its impact

%age of persons in 
respective category 
covered by the awareness 
programmes

Board of Directors 0 Business, strategy, risk and update of laws 100.00%
Key Managerial 
Personnel

5 Health and Safety, Cyber Security, Upskilling, 
Clinical Upskilling, Patient Safety, POSH, 
Occupational Health and Safety, Internal Control 
devloping

100.00%

Employees other 
than BoD and 
KMPs

4764 Health and Safety, POSH, Occupational Health 
and Safety and Human Rights and Internal 
Control Implementation

100.00%

Workers 0 labour laws policies, POSH, Occupational SOP 100.00%

2. Details of fines/penalties/punishment/award/compounding fees/settlement amount paid in 
proceedings (by the entity or by directors/KMPs) with regulators/law enforcement agencies/
judicial institutions, in the financial year, in the following format (Note: the entity shall 
make disclosures on the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the entity’s 
website):

Monetary
Particulars NGRBC 

Principle
Name of the regulatory/
enforcement agencies/
judicial institutions

Amount (In 
INR)

Brief of the Case Has an appeal 
been preferred? 
(Yes/No)

Penalty/Fine
Settlement
Compounding fee
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Non-Monetary
Particulars NGRBC 

Principle
Name of the regulatory/
enforcement agencies/ 
judicial institutions

Brief of the Case Has an appeal been 
preferred? (Yes/No)

Imprisonment
Punishment

3. Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/Revision preferred in 
cases where monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed				  

Particulars Case Details Name of the regulatory/enforcement 
agencies/judicial institutions

4. Does the entity have anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy?
Yes, The Company has ‘zero tolerance’ of any practice that may be classified as corruption, bribery or giving or receipt of 
bribes. The Code of Conduct of the Company serves as a guide for all Executive Directors, Senior Management Personnel and 
Functional Heads including Members of the core Management Team for ensuring compliance with applicable anti-bribery 
laws, rules and regulations.

Provide a web-link if the entity has anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy	
https://jeenasikho.com/investors/

5. Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken 
by any law enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/corruption:

Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Directors 0 0
KMPs 0 0
Employees 0 0
Workers 0 0

6. Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Number Remarks Number Remarks

Number of complaints received in relation to issues of 
Conflict of Interest of the Directors

0 NA 0 NA

Number of complaints received in relation to issues of 
Conflict of Interest of the KMPs

0 NA 0 NA

7. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines/
penalties/action taken by regulators/law enforcement agencies/judicial institutions, on cases 
of corruption and conflicts of interest.
NA

8. Number of days of accounts payables		

Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
i) Accounts payable x 365 days 34659582035.00 16271027352.00
ii) Cost of goods/services procured 356189855.00 246488918.80
iii) Number of days of accounts payables 97 66
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9. Open-ness of business - Provide details of concentration of purchases and sales with trading 
houses, dealers, and related parties along-with loans and advances & investments, with related 
parties, in the following format

Particulars Metrics FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Concentration of 
Purchases

a.      i)	 Purchases from trading houses
ii)	 Total purchases
iii)	 Purchases from trading houses as % 

of total purchases
b.	 Number of trading houses where 

purchases are made
c.      i)	 Purchases from top 10 trading 

houses
ii)	 Total purchases from trading houses
iii)	 Purchases from top 10 trading 

houses as % of total purchases from 
trading houses

Concentration of 
Sales

a.      i)	 Sales to dealer/distributors 291886332.00 498836090.23
ii)	 Total Sales 4690718512.19 3244089148.53
iii)	 Sales to dealer/distributors as % of 

total sales
6.22% 15.38%

b.	 Number of  dealers/distributors to whom 
sales are made

63 78

c.      i)	 Sales to top 10 dealers/distributors 123450763.00 218352615.60
ii)	 Total Sales to dealer/distributors 291886332.00 498836090.23
iii)	 Sales to top 10 dealers/distributors 

as % of total sales to dealer/
distributors

42.29% 43.77%

Share of RPTs in a.      i)	 Purchases (Purchases with related 
parties)

0.00 0.00

ii)	 Total Purchases 356189855.22 246488918.80
iii)	 Purchases (Purchases with related 

parties as % of Total Purchases)
0.00% 0.00%

b.      i) 	 Sales (Sales to related parties) 49814258.86 44190125.79
ii)	 Total Sales 4690718512.19 3244089148.53
iii)	 Sales (Sales to related parties as % of 

Total Sales)
1.06% 1.36%

c.      i)	 Loans & advances given to related 
parties

0.00 20448767.00

ii)	 Total loans & advances 96365762.00 273773689.58
iii)	 Loans & advances given to related 

parties as % of Total loans & 
advances

0.00% 7.47%

d.      i)	 Investments in related parties 0.00 0.00
ii)	 Total Investments made 29500000.00 41400000.00
iii)	 Investments in related parties as % of 

Total Investments made
0.00% 0.00%

Leadership Indicators
1. Awareness programmes conducted for value chain partners on any of the Principles during 
the financial year
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2. Does the entity have processes in place to avoid/manage conflict of interests involving 
members of the Board?

Sr. No. Total number of 
awareness programmes 
held

Topics/principles covered 
under the training

Percentage of value chain partners covered 
(by value of business done with such partners) 
under the awareness programmes

PRINCIPLE 2: Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable 
and safe
Essential Indicators
1. Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to 
improve the environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and 
capex investments made by the entity, respectively.

Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24) Details of 
improvements in 

environmental and 
social impacts

R&D 0.00% 0.00% 0
Capex 0.00% 0.00% 0

2. a. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No)	
No

b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

3. Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and 
disposing at the end of life, for

(a) Plastics (including packaging): Not Applicable
(b) E-waste: Not Applicable
(c) Hazardous waste: Not Applicable- Waste generated in Hospitals is handed over for safe disposal through third party.
(d) other waste Not: Not Applicable

4. Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities (Yes/No).
No

If yes, whether the waste collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution 
Control Boards?

If not, provide steps taken to address the same.

Leadership Indicators
1. Has the entity conducted Life Cycle Perspective/Assessments (LCA) for any of its products 
(for manufacturing industry) or for its services (for service industry)?
No

2. If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising from 
production or disposal of your products/services, as identified in the Life Cycle Perspective/
Assessments (LCA) or through any other means, briefly describe the same along-with action 
taken to mitigate the same.

Sr. No. Name of Product/Service Description of the risk/
concern

Action Taken
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3. Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in 
production (for manufacturing industry) or providing services (for service industry).

Sr. No. Indicate input material Recycled or re-used input  
material to total material

FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)

4. Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric 
tonnes) reused, recycled, and safely disposed, as per the following format:

Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Re-Used Recycled Safely 

Disposed
Re-Used Recycled Safely 

Disposed
Plastics (including 
packaging)
E waste
Hazardous waste
Other waste

Notes:

5. Reclaimed products and their packaging materials (as percentage of products sold) for each 
product category

Sr. No. Indicate product category Reclaimed products and their packaging materials as 
Percentage of total products sold in respective category

PRINCIPLE 3: Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, 
including those in their value chains
Essential Indicators	
1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:	

Category % of employees covered by

Total 
(A) 

Health insurance Accident insurance Maternity benefits Paternity Benefits Day Care facilities

Number 
(B)

% (B/A) Number 
(C)

% (C/A) Number 
(D)

% (D/A) Number 
(E)

% (E/A) Number 
(F)

% (F/A)

Permanent employees

Male 1938 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 1826 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1592 87.19% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Total 3764 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1592 42.30% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other than permanent employees

Male 650 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 350 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Total 1000 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
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b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:

Category % of workers covered by

Total 
(A)

Health insurance Accident insurance Maternity benefits Paternity Benefits Day Care facilities

Number 
(B)

% (B/A) Number 
(C)

% (C/A) Number 
(D)

% (D/A) Number 
(E)

% (E/A) Number 
(F)

% (F/A)

Permanent workers

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Total 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other than permanent workers

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Total 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

C. Spending on measures towards well-being of employees and workers (including permanent and 
other than permanent) in the following format:

Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
i)	 Cost incurred on wellbeing measures (well-being measures means 

well-being of employees and workers (including male, female, 
permanent and other than permanent employees and workers)

6378642.02 5789461.07

ii)	 Total revenue of the company 4754807600.45 3308486595.58
iii)	 Cost incurred on wellbeing measures as a % of total revenue of the 

company
0.13% 0.17%

2. Details of retirement benefits

Benefits FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
No.of 

employees 
covered as 
a % of total 
employees

No.of 
workers 

covered as 
a % of total 

workers

Deducted and 
deposited 
with the 
authority 

(Y/N/N.A.)

No.of 
employees 
covered as 
a % of total 
employees

No.of 
workers 

covered as 
a % of total 

workers

Deducted and 
deposited 
with the 
authority 

(Y/N/N.A.)
PF 75.65% 0.00% Yes 70.80% 0.00% Yes
Gratuity 100.00% 0.00% Yes 0.00% 0.00% NA
ESI 68.86% 0.00% Yes 74.60% 0.00% Yes

3. Accessibility of workplaces
Are the premises/offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the requirements of the 
Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? 

Yes

If not, whether any steps are being taken by the entity in this regard.

4. Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with 
Disabilities Act, 2016?
Yes

If so, provide a web-link to the policy.
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5. Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental 
leave.

Gender Permanent employees Permanent workers
Return to work rate Retention rate Return to work rate Retention rate

Male 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
Female 85.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 93.00 100.00 0.00 0.00

6. Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories 
of employees and worker?
Yes

If yes, give details of the mechanism in 
brief.

Yes/No (If Yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief)

Permanent Workers No
Other than Permanent Workers No
Permanent Employees Yes
Other than Permanent Employees No

7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the listed 
entity:

Category FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Total 

employees/
workers in 
respective 

category (A)

No.of employees/
workers in 

respective category, 
who are part of 

association(s) or 
Union (B)

% (B/A) Total 
employees/
workers in 
respective 

category (C)

No.of employees/
workers in respective 
category,who are part 
of association(s) or 

Union (D)

% (D/C)

Total 
Permanent 
Employees

3764 0 0.00% 2558 0 0.00%

Male 1938 0 0.00% 1272 0 0.00%
Female 1826 0 0.00% 1286 0 0.00%
Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total 
Permanent 
Workers

0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

8. Details of training given to employees and workers:

Category FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)

Total (A) On Health and safety 
measures

On Skill upgradation Total (D) On Health and safety 
measures

On Skill upgradation

No.(B) % (B/A) No.(C) % (C/A) No. (E) % (E/D) No. (F) % (F/D)
Employees

Male 1938 1938 100.00% 1938 100.00% 1272 1272 100.00% 1272 100.00%
Female 1826 1826 100.00% 1826 100.00% 1286 1286 100.00% 1286 100.00%
Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Total 3764 3764 100.00% 3764 100.00% 2558 2558 100.00% 2558 100.00%

Workers
Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Total 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
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9. Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:

Category FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Total (A) No. (B) % (B/A) Total (D) No. (E) % (E/D)

Employees
Male 1938 1938 100.00% 1272 1272 100.00%
Female 1826 1826 100.00% 1286 1286 100.00%
Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total 3764 3764 100.00% 2558 2558 100.00%

Workers
Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

10. Health and safety management system:

a.	 Whether an occupational health and safety management system 
has been implemented by the entity? (Yes/No/NA).

	 If yes, the coverage such system?

Yes,
We provide first aid facility at the office premises 
& we do have ambulance facility available 24*7 
for critical cases.

b.	 What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and 
assess risks on a routine and non-routine basis by the entity?

We identify work-related hazards and assess 
risks by conducting workplace inspections, 
reviewing procedures (routine and non-routine) 
analyzing incident reports and consulting 
employees. Risks are assessed based on 
likelihood and severity. prioritized and mitigated 
using the hierarchy of controls (elimination, 
substitution, engineering, administrative and 
PPE). Regular reviews ensure updates for 
changes in tasks, equipment or incidents.

c.	 Whether you have processes for workers to report the work related 
hazards and to remove themselves from such risks?

Yes

d.	 Do the employees/worker of the entity have access to non-
occupational medical and healthcare services?

NA

11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:			 

Safety Incident/Number Category* FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) 
(per one million-person hours worked)

Employees 0.00 0.00
Workers 0.00 0.00

Total recordable work-related injuries Employees 0 0
Workers 0 0

No. of fatalities Employees 0 0
Workers 0 0

High consequence work related injury or 
ill-health (excluding fatalities)

Employees 0 0
Workers 0 0

12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited ensures a safe and healthy workplace by maintaining high standards of hygiene and sanitation 
across all facilities. Regular health check-ups and wellness programs are conducted to monitor and enhance employee 
well-being. The organization provides necessary safety equipment for employees in high-risk areas and conducts routine 
training sessions to educate staff on workplace safety protocols and emergency preparedness. Mental health support, 
including counseling and stress management initiatives, is also offered to promote emotional well-being. By adhering to 
workplace safety regulations and conducting regular audits, Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited fosters a culture of safety and care, 
encouraging open communication to address any concerns promptly.
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13. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Filed during 

the year
Pending 

resolution at 
the end of year

Remarks Filed during 
the year

Pending 
resolution at 

the end of year

Remarks

Working Conditions 0 0 0 0
Health & Safety 0 0 0 0

14. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed  
(by entity or statutory authorities or third parties)

Health and safety practices 0.00%
Working Conditions 0.00%

15. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related 
incidents (if any) and on significant risks/concerns arising from assessments of health & 
safety practices and working conditions.
Incident Response- Immediate actions taken (e.g., first-aid, area secured, incident logged). Preventive Measures- Safety 
training, updated procedures and new safety equipment implemented.

Leadership Indicators
1. Does the entity extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of 

(A) Employees (Y/N) No
(B) Workers (Y/N). No

2. Provide the measures undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory dues have been 
deducted and deposited by the value chain partners.

3. Provide the number of employees/workers having suffered high consequence work related 
injury/ill-health/fatalities (as reported in Q11 of Essential Indicators above), who have been are 
rehabilitated and placed in suitable employment or whose family members have been placed in 
suitable employment:

Particulars Total no. of affected 
employees/workers

No. of employees/workers that 
are rehabilitated and placed in 
suitable employment or whose 

family members have been 
placed in suitable employment

FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24) FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Employees 0 0 0 0
Workers 0 0 0 0

4. Does the entity provide transition assistance programs to facilitate continued employability 
and the management of career endings resulting from retirement or termination of 
employment? (Yes/No/NA)

5. Details on assessment of value chain partners: 

% of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) 
that were assessed

Health and safety practices
Working Conditions

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks/
concerns arising from assessments of health and safety practices and working conditions of 
value chain partners.
No
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PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its 
stakeholders
Essential Indicators
1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.

2. List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement 
with each stakeholder group.

Sr. 
No.

Stakeholder 
Group

Whether 
identified as 
Vulnerable & 
Marginalized 
Group

Channels of 
communication

Details of Other 
Channels of 
communication

Frequency of 
engagement

Details 
of Other 
Frequency of 
engagement

Purpose and scope of engagement 
including key topics and concerns 
raised during such engagement

1 Investor/ 
Shareholders

Yes Other * Email, Newspaper, 
Website, Investor and 
Analyst Meetings/
Conferences * One-toone 
Meetings (Physical 
and Virtual), * Earnings 
Call with Analysts and 
Investors * Annual 
General Meeting * 
Press Releases * Stock 
Exchange Filings

Others 
– please 
specify

Annually/
Half yearly/
Quarterly/
Ongoing

To ensure transparent and effective 
communication of business 
performance * To provide insights 
into Company’s strategy and 
sustainability initiatives * To 
address investor/analyst queries 
and concerns * To ensure sound 
corporate governance mechanisms 
* To enhance Company reputation

2 Patients/ 
Customers

Yes Other * Listening to patients 
posts via email, SMS, 
website, feedback App, 
social media platforms, 
verbal, patient feedback 
surveys, complaint 
box, etc. * Patient 
communication by 
the hospital: email, 
meetings/telephonic/
verbal

Others 
– please 
specify

Ongoing * Establishing an effective 
mechanism for promptly 
recognising and resolving 
concerns and complaints raised 
by patients and their attendants 
* Enhancing the provision of 
highquality healthcare services and 
safeguarding patient health and 
safety through thorough review, 
investigation, tracking and trend 
analysis of complaints * Ensuring 
immediate responses to patient 
and attendant complaints and 
grievances in realtime.

Leadership Indicators
1. Provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on economic, environmental, and social topics 
or if consultation is delegated, how is feedback from such consultations provided to the Board.

2.Whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the identification and management of environmental, and social topics.

If so, provide details of instances as to how the inputs received from stakeholders on these topics were incorporated into 
policies and activities of the entity.	

3. Provide details of instances of engagement with, and actions taken to, address the concerns of vulnerable/marginalized 
stakeholder groups.

PRINCIPLE 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights
Essential Indicators
1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and 
policy(ies) of the entity, in the following format:

Category FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Total (A) No. of 

employees/
workers 

covered (B)

% (B/A) Total (C) No. of 
employees/

workers 
covered (D)

% (D/C)

Employees
Permanent 3764 3764 100.00% 2558 2558 100.00%
Other than permanent 1000 0 0.00% 384 0 0.00%
Total Employees 4764 3764 79.01% 2942 2558 86.95%

Workers
Permanent 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Other than permanent 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Workers 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
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2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:

Category FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)

Total (A) Equal to M inimum 
Wage

More than Minimum 
Wage

Total (D) Equal to Minimum 
Wage

More than Minimum 
Wage

No. (B) % (B/A) No.(C) % (C/A) No. (E) % (E/D) No. (F) % (F/D)

Employees

Permanent 3764 870 23.11% 2894 76.89% 2558 1100 43.00% 1458 57.00%

Male 1938 325 16.77% 1613 83.23% 1272 432 33.96% 840 66.04%

Female 1826 545 29.85% 1281 70.15% 1286 668 51.94% 618 48.06%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other than 
Permanent

1000 1000 100.00% 0 0.00% 384 384 100.00% 0 0.00%

Male 650 650 100.00% 0 0.00% 294 294 100.00% 0 0.00%

Female 350 350 100.00% 0 0.00% 90 90 100.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Workers

Permanent 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other than 
Permanent

0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

3. Details of remuneration/salary/wages, in the following format:
a. Median remuneration/wages:

Male Female Other

Number Median 
remuneration/

salary/wages of 
respective category

Number Median 
remuneration/

salary/wages of 
respective category

Number Median 
remuneration/

salary/wages of 
respective category

Board of Directors (BoD) 1 24000000 1 18000000 0 0

Key Managerial 
Personnel

1 1985000 1 300000 0 0

Employees other than 
BoD and KMP

1936 483538611 1824 380957219 0 0

Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0

b. Gross wages paid to females:

Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Gross wages paid to females 399257219.00 264440136.00
Total wages 908780830.00 616739363.00
Gross wages paid to females 
(Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages)

43.93% 42.88%

4. Do you have a focal point (Individual/Committee) responsible for addressing human rights 
impacts or issues caused or contributed to by the business?
Yes

5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights 
issues.
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6. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Filed during 

the year
Pending 

resolution at 
the end of year

Remarks Filed during 
the year

Pending 
resolution at 

the end of year

Remarks

Sexual Harassment 0 0 No 0 0 No
Discrimination at 
workplace

0 0 No 0 0 No

Child Labour 0 0 No 0 0 No
Forced Labour/Involuntary 
Labour

0 0 No 0 0 No

Wages 0 0 No 0 0 No
Other human rights related 
issues

0 0 No 0 0 No

7. Complaints filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, in the following format:

Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
i) Total Complaints reported under Sexual Harassment on of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH)
ii) Average number of female employees/workers at the beginning of 
the year and as at end of the year
iii) Complaints on POSH as a % of female employees/workers
iv) Complaints on POSH upheld

8. Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and 
harassment cases.

9. Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? (Yes/
No/NA)
No

10. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory 
authorities or third parties)

Child labour 0.00%
Forced/involuntary labour 0.00%
Sexual harassment 0.00%
Discrimination at workplace 0.00%
Wages 0.00%

11. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks/
concerns arising from the assessments at Question 10 above.
NA

Leadership Indicators
1. Details of a business process being modified/introduced as a result of addressing human 
rights grievances/complaints. 
No

2. Details of the scope and coverage of any Human rights due-diligence conducted 

3. Is the premise/office of the entity accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the 
requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? 
Yes
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4. Details on assessment of value chain partners:

% of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) 
that were assessed

Sexual harassment 0.00%
Discrimination at workplace 0.00%
Child Labour 0.00%
Forced Labour/Involuntary Labour 0.00%
Wages 0.00%
Others – please specify

5. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks/
concerns arising from the assessments at Question 4 above.
NA

PRINCIPLE 6: Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the 
environment
Essential Indicators
1. Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the 
following format:

Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Revenue from operations (in ₹) 4690718512.19 3244089148.86

Parameter Units FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
From renewable sources
Total electricity consumption (A) Joule (J) 0.00 0.00
Total fuel consumption (B) Joule (J) 0.00 0.00
Energy consumption through other sources (C) Joule (J) 0.00 0.00
Total energy consumed from renewable sources (A+B+C) Joule (J) 0.00 0.00
From non-renewable sources
Total electricity consumption (D) Joule (J) 0.00 0.00
Total fuel consumption (E) Joule (J) 0.00 0.00
Energy consumption through other sources (F) Joule (J) 0.00 0.00
Total energy consumed from non-renewable sources 
(D+E+F)

Joule (J) 0.00 0.00

Total energy consumed (A+B+C+D+E+F) Joule (J) 0.00 0.00
Energy intensity per rupee of turnover (Total energy 
consumed/Revenue from operations)

Joule (J)/₹ 0.00 0.00

Energy intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted 
for Purchasing Power Parity (PPP) (Total energy 
consumed/Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)

Joule (J)/₹ 0.00 0.00

Energy intensity in terms of physical Output Joule (J) 0.00 0.00
Energy intensity (optional) – the relevant metric may be 
selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N)

No

If yes, name of the external agency.

2. Does the entity have any sites/facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the 
Performance, Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India?
No

If yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme have been achieved. In case targets have not been achieved, 
provide the remedial action taken, if any.
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3. Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

Parameter FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)
(i) Surface water 0.00 0.00
(ii) Groundwater 0.00 0.00
(iii) Third party water 43580.00 24662.00
(iv) Seawater/desalinated water 0.00 0.00
(v) Others 0.00 0.00
Total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres) (i + ii + iii + iv + v) 43580.00 24662.00
Total volume of water consumption (in kilolitres) 0.00 0.00
Water intensity per rupee of turnover (Total water consumption/
Revenue from operations)

0.00 0.00

Water intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power 
Parity (PPP) (Total water consumption/Revenue from operations 
adjusted for PPP)"

0.00 0.00

Water intensity in terms of physical output 0.00 0.00
Water intensity (optional) – the relevant metric may be selected by the 
entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?

No

If yes, name of the external agency.	

4. Provide the following details related to water discharged:

Parameter FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in kilolitres)
(i) To Surface water 0.00 0.00
No treatment 0.00 0.00
With treatment – please specify level of treatment 0.00 0.00
(ii) To Groundwater 0.00 0.00
No treatment 0.00 0.00
With treatment – please specify level of treatment 0.00 0.00
(iii) To Seawater 0.00 0.00
No treatment 0.00 0.00
With treatment – please specify level of treatment 0.00 0.00
(iv) Sent to third-parties 0.00 0.00
No treatment 0.00 0.00
With treatment – please specify level of treatment 0.00 0.00
(v) Others 0.00 0.00
No treatment 0.00 0.00
With treatment – please specify level of treatment 0.00 0.00
Total water discharged (in kilolitres) 0.00 0.00

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N)
No

If yes, name of the external agency.

5. Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge?
No

If yes, provide details of its coverage and implementation.
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6. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the 
following format:
Whether air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity is applicable to the company?
No

Parameter Please specify unit FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
NOx
SOx
Particulate matter (PM)
Persistent organic pollutants (POP)
Volatile organic compounds (VOC)
Hazardous air pollutants (HAP)

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N)

If yes, name of the external agency.

7. Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in 
the following format:
Whether greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity is applicable to the 
company?
No

Parameter Unit FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Total Scope 1 emissions (Break-up of the GHG 
into CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, PFCs, SF6, NF3, if 
available)
Total Scope 2 emissions (Break-up of the GHG 
into CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, PFCs, SF6, NF3, if 
available)
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity 
per rupee of turnover (Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 
GHG emissions/Revenue from operations)
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity per 
rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power 
Parity (PPP) (Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 GHG 
emissions/Revenue from operations adjusted for 
PPP)"
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity in 
terms of physical output
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity 
(optional) – the relevant metric may be selected 
by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N)

If yes, name of the external agency.

8. Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? 
No

If Yes, then provide details.	
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9. Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)
Plastic waste (A) 0.00 0.00
E-waste (B) 0.00 0.00
Bio-medical waste (C) 7.56 4.82
Construction and demolition waste (D) 0.00 0.00
Battery waste (E) 0.00 0.00
Radioactive waste (F) 0.00 0.00
Other Hazardous waste. Please specify, if any. (G) 83.64 61.72
Other Non-hazardous waste generated (H). Please specify, if any. 
(Break-up by composition i.e. by materials relevant to the sector)

0.00 0.00

Total (A+B + C + D + E + F + G + H) 91.20 66.54
"Waste intensity per rupee of turnover 
(Total waste generated/Revenue from operations)"

0.0000000194 0.0000000205

"Waste intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power 
Parity (PPP) 
(Total waste generated/Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)"

0.00 0.00

Waste intensity in terms of physical output 0.00 0.00
Waste intensity (optional) – the relevant metric may be selected by the 
entity

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or other recovery operations  
(in metric tonnes)

Category of waste
(i) Recycled 0.00 0.00
(ii) Re-used 0.00 0.00
(iii) Other recovery operations 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00

For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method (in metric tonnes)
Category of waste
(i) Incineration 0.00 0.00
(ii) Landfilling 0.00 0.00
(iii) Other disposal operations 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N)

No

If yes, name of the external agency.	

10. Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe 
the strategy adopted by your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in 
your products and processes and the practices adopted to manage such wastes.
No
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11. If the entity has operations/offices in/around ecologically sensitive areas (such as national 
parks, wildlife sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal 
regulation zones etc.) where environmental approvals/clearances are required, please specify 
details in the following format:

Sr. No. Name of other parameter Unit FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)

12. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on 
applicable laws, in the current financial year:

Sr. 
No.

Name and 
brief details 
of project

EIA 
Notification 
No.

Date Whether conducted by 
independent external 
agency (Yes/No)

Results 
communicated 
in public domain 
(Yes/No)

Relevant Web link

13. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/regulations/guidelines 
in India; such as the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and 
Control of Pollution) Act, Environment protection act and rules thereunder (Y/N/NA).
NA

If not, provide details of all such non-compliances, in the following format:		

Leadership Indicators
1. Water withdrawal, consumption and discharge in areas of water stress (in kilolitres):
For each facility/plant located in areas of water stress, provide the following information:

Sr. No. Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
1 Name of the area 
2 Nature of operations 
3 Water withdrawal, consumption and discharge in the  

following format:
Parameter
Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)
(i) Surface water
(ii) Groundwater
(iii) Third party water
(iv) Seawater/desalinated water
(v) Others
"Total volume of water withdrawal 
(in kilolitres)"
Total volume of water consumption (in kilolitres)
Water intensity per rupee of turnover (Water consumed/
turnover)
Water intensity (optional) – the relevant metric may be 
selected by the entity
Water discharge by destination and level of treatment  
(in kilolitres)
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For each facility/plant located in areas of water stress, provide the following information: (Contd.)

Sr. No. Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)

(i) Into Surface water
No treatment
With treatment – please specify level of treatment
(ii) Into Groundwater
No treatment
With treatment – please specify level of treatment
(iii) Into Seawater
No treatment
With treatment – please specify level of treatment
(iv) Sent to third-parties
No treatment
With treatment – please specify level of treatment
(v) Others
No treatment
With treatment – please specify level of treatment
Total water discharged (in kilolitres)

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N)

If yes, name of the external agency.

2. Please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity, in the following format:
Whether total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity is applicable to the company?
No

Particulars Unit FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Total Scope 3 emissions (Break-up of the GHG 
into CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, PFCs, SF6, NF3, if 
available)
Total Scope 3 emissions per rupee of turnover
Total Scope 3 emission intensity (optional) – the 
relevant metric may be selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N)

If yes, name of the external agency.	

3. With respect to the ecologically sensitive areas reported at Question 10 of Essential 
Indicators above, provide details of significant direct & indirect impact of the entity on 
biodiversity in such areas along-with prevention and remediation activities.

4. If the entity has undertaken any specific initiatives or used innovative technology or 
solutions to improve resource efficiency, or reduce impact due to emissions/effluent 
discharge/waste generated, please provide details of the same as well as outcome of such 
initiatives, as per the following format:

Sr. No. Initiative undertaken Details of the initiative (Web-link, if any, may 
be provided along-with summary)

Outcome of the 
initiative

Corrective action 
taken, if any
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5. Does the entity have a business continuity and disaster management plan?
No

Details of entity at which business continuity and disaster management plan is placed or weblink.	

6. Disclose any significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of 
the entity. What mitigation or adaptation measures have been taken by the entity in this regard.

7. Percentage of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were 
assessed for environmental impacts.

8. How many Green Credits have been generated or procured:
a. By the listed entity

b. By the top ten (in terms of value of purchases and sales, respectively) value chain partners

PRINCIPLE 7: Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, 
should do so in a manner that is responsible and transparent
Essential Indicators
1. a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/associations. 2

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/associations (determined based on the total 
members of such body) the entity is a member of/affiliated to

Sr. No. Name of the trade and industry chambers/associations Reach of trade and industry chambers/
associations (State/National/International)

1 NABH National

2 AYURVEDA FEDERATION OF INDIA National
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti- 
competitive conduct by the entity, based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities.

Sr. No. Name of authority Brief of the case Corrective action taken

Leadership Indicators
1. Details of public policy positions advocated by the entity:

Sr. 
No.

Public policy 
advocated

Method resorted for 
such advocacy

Whether information 
available in public 
domain? (Yes/No)

Frequency of Review 
by Board

Web Link,  
if available
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PRINCIPLE 8: Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development
Essential Indicators	
1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on 
applicable laws, in the current financial year.

Sr. 
No.

Name and brief 
details of project

SIA 
Notification 
No.

Date of 
notification

Whether conducted 
by independent 
external agency

Results 
communicated in 
public domain

Relevant Web 
link

2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement 
(R&R) is being undertaken by your entity, in the following format:

"Sr. 
No."

Name of Project 
for which R&R is 
ongoing

State District No. of Project 
Affected Families 
(PAFs)

% of PAFs covered 
by R&R

Amounts paid 
to PAFs in the 
FY (In INR)

3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community.

4. Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:

Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Directly sourced from MSMEs/small producers 100.00% 100.00%
Sourced directly from within the district and neighbouring districts 100.00% 100.00%

5. Job creation in smaller towns - Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees 
or workers employed on a permanent or non-permanent/on contract basis) in the following 
locations, as % of total wage cost:	

Particulars FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
1. Rural
i)	 Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees or 

workers employed on a permanent or non-permanent/on contract 
basis)

ii)	 Total Wage Cost
iii)	 % of Job creation in Rural areas
2. Semi-urban
i)	 Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees or 

workers employed on a permanent or non-permanent/on contract 
basis)

ii)	 Total Wage Cost
iii)	 % of Job creation in Semi-Urban areas
3. Urban
i)	 Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees or 

workers employed on a permanent or non-permanent/on contract 
basis)

908780830.00 673429266.58

ii)	 Total Wage Cost 908780830.00 673429266.58
iii)	 % of Job creation in Urban areas 100.00% 100.00%
4. Metropolitan
i)	 Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees or 

workers employed on a permanent or non-permanent/on contract 
basis)

ii)	 Total Wage Cost
iii)	 % of of Job creation in Metropolitan area
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Leadership Indicators
1. Provide details of actions taken to mitigate any negative social impacts identified in the 
Social Impact Assessments (Reference: Question 1 of Essential Indicators above): 

Sr. No. Details of negative social impact identified Corrective action taken

2. Provide the following information on CSR projects undertaken by your entity in designated 
aspirational districts as identified by government bodies:

Sr. No. State Aspirational District Amount spent (In INR)

3. (a) Do you have a preferential procurement policy where you give preference to purchase from suppliers comprising 
marginalized/vulnerable groups? (Yes/No/NA)

(b) From which marginalized/vulnerable groups do you procure?

(c) What percentage of total procurement (by value) does it constitute?

4. Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual properties owned or 
acquired by your entity (in the current financial year), based on traditional knowledge:

Sr.No. Intellectual Property 
based on traditional 
knowledge

Owned/Acquired  
(Yes/No)

Benefit shared  
(Yes/No)

Basis of calculating 
benefit share

5. Details of corrective actions taken or underway, based on any adverse order in intellectual 
property related disputes wherein usage of traditional knowledge is involved.

Sr.No. Name of authority Brief of the Case Corrective action taken

6. Details of beneficiaries of CSR Projects:

Sr. No. CSR Project No. of persons benefitted 
from CSR Projects

% of beneficiaries from vulnerable and 
marginalized groups

1 Sahakar Bharti 150 100.00%

2 Kamdhenu Gaushala 20 100.00%
3 Omkar Jankalyan Samaj Seva Kelvani 

Mandal Trust
90 100.00%
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PRINCIPLE 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a 
responsible manner	
Essential Indicators
1. Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and 
feedback.

2. Turnover of products and/services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service 
that carry information about

Sr. No. As a percentage to total turnover
Environmental and social parameters relevant to the product 100.00%

Safe and responsible usage 0.00%
Recycling and/or safe disposal 0.00%

3. Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following

FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Received 
during the 

year

Pending 
resolution at 
end of year

Remarks Received 
during the 

year

Pending 
resolution at 
end of year

Remarks

Data privacy 128 5 Not 
Applicable

212 2 Not 
Applicable

Advertising 0 0 Not 
Applicable

0 0 Not 
Applicable

Cyber-security 0 0 Not 
Applicable

0 0 Not 
Applicable

Delivery of essential 
services

3850 0 Not 
Applicable

376 0 Not 
Applicable

Restrictive Trade Practices 0 0 Not 
Applicable

0 0 Not 
Applicable

Unfair Trade Practices 0 0 Not 
Applicable

146 0 Not 
Applicable

Other 8650 20 Not 
Applicable

1845 6 Not 
Applicable

4. Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues

Sr. No. Number Reasons for recall
Voluntary recalls 0 No Calls received 

Forced recalls 0 No Calls received 

5. Does the entity have a framework/policy on cyber security and risks related to data 
privacy?	
Yes

If available, provide a web-link of the policy	

Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited has a robust framework and policy in place to ensure the security of its digital infrastructure and 
protect the privacy of customer data. Our policy outlines: Measures to safeguard customer data from unauthorized access or 
breaches. Protocols for secure handling, storage, and sharing of personal information. Regular audits and updates to ensure 
compliance with the latest cybersecurity standards. Employee training programs to promote awareness of data privacy 
practices. For further details, please refer to our Cyber Security and Data Privacy Policy available at: https://jeenasikho.com/
privacy-policy/



115Annual Report 2024-25 JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED

STATU
TO

R
Y R

EPO
R

T

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to 
advertising, and delivery of essential services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-
occurrence of instances of product recalls; penalty/action taken by regulatory authorities 
on safety of products/services.
Advertising We ensure all advertisements strictly comply with regulatory guidelines and ethical standards. Any concerns 
raised about advertising practices are promptly reviewed, and necessary corrections are implemented. Regular monitoring and 
audits are conducted to ensure advertisements convey accurate and transparent information. Delivery of Essential Services 
Steps have been taken to strengthen supply chain management to minimize delays or disruptions. Enhanced communication 
mechanisms ensure that customers are informed promptly in case of any service disruptions and provided with alternative 
solutions. Cyber Security and Data Privacy We have implemented advanced cybersecurity measures, such as firewalls, 
data encryption, and multi-factor authentication, to safeguard customer data. In case of any potential breach, our response 
team takes immediate action to mitigate risks and notify affected customers if necessary. Regular risk assessments are 
conducted to prevent reoccurrence of issues. Product Recalls To date, there have been no significant instances of product 
recalls. However, in the event of a product safety concern, a recall protocol is in place to ensure prompt action, including 
customer notifications and safe disposal/replacement of the product. Regulatory Penalties or Actions We adhere strictly 
to all regulatory guidelines for product safety and service delivery. Any regulatory observations are addressed immediately, 
with corrective measures implemented to prevent recurrence. Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited is committed to maintaining the 
highest standards of transparency, compliance, and customer satisfaction across all its operations.

7. Provide the following information relating to data breaches:

a. Number of instances of data breaches along-with impact 0
b. Percentage of data breaches involving personally identifiable information of customers 0.00%
c. Impact, if any, of the data breaches NA

Leadership Indicators
1. Channels/platforms where information on products and services of the entity can be 
accessed (provide web link, if available). 

2. Steps taken to inform and educate consumers about safe and responsible usage of products 
and/or services. 

3. Mechanisms in place to inform consumers of any risk of disruption/discontinuation of 
essential services. 

4. Does the entity display product information on the product over and above what is 
mandated as per local laws? 
No

If yes, provide details in brief.

Did your entity carry out any survey with regard to consumer satisfaction relating to the major products/services of the entity, 
significant locations of operation of the entity or the entity as a whole? 

Yes, Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited conducts regular consumer satisfaction surveys to gather insights and feedback regarding 
its major products, services, and operations across significant locations. These surveys are integral to our commitment to 
improving customer experience and ensuring high-quality service delivery. Key Aspects of the Surveys: Scope of Surveys 
Feedback on the effectiveness of our products and their benefits. Evaluation of services offered at clinics, hospitals, and 
other operational locations. Customer satisfaction with delivery timelines, call center assistance, and overall support. Survey 
Methodology Online Feedback Forms: Sent to customers via email, WhatsApp, and SMS to collect quantitative and qualitative 
feedback. In-Person Surveys: Conducted at our clinics and hospitals to capture insights from walk-in customers. Call Center 
Interactions: Feedback is collected during follow-up calls by our health counselors. Significant Locations Surveys are 
conducted across all major locations where Jeena Sikho operates, including HIIMS hospitals, Shuddhi Clinics, and wellness 
centers. Results and Action Plans The feedback gathered is analyzed to identify areas of improvement. Corrective actions 
are implemented to address concerns raised by customers. The insights are also used to develop new products and refine 
existing services. These surveys enable us to maintain strong relationships with our customers, understand their needs better, 
and continuously enhance our products and services.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

OPINION
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED (“the Company”), which 
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the statement of profit and loss, and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid  financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 
31, 2025, and its Profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Revenue Recognition

As the Company revenue is from trading of ayurvedic 
medicine consisting of large number of sales orders and 
from providing ayurvedic therapies, there are risks related to 
completeness of revenue, improper sales cut off, timing of 
recognitions, out of period sales etc.

•	 Cut off procedures performed for year ended 31st March 
2025.

•	 Substantive verification of sales transactions.

•	 Analytical review of sales transactions.

•	 Trade Receivables analysis to ensure that all sales 
reversal are recognized appropriately. 

•	 Review that the revenue has been recognized in 
accordance with the revenue recognition policy of the 
Company.

•	 Review sales booked by Company for unusual items, if 
any.

•	 Verification of existence and operating effectiveness of 
internal controls related to sales transactions.

•	 Verification of Trade Receivables to determine any 
provisioning requirement for bad and doubtful debts.
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The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company has acquired a business in the form of five 
branches of Ayurvedic Therapy centres from another 
Company. As acquisition involved substantial payment of 
cash consideration we have identified it as a key audit matter.

•	 Review the agreement entered into with the seller.

•	 Ensuring that the appropriate valuation report by a 
valuer is in place before making such acquisition.

•	 Ensuring that the balance sheet for all the five 
branches acquired is audited till the date of purchase 
by an independent auditor and whether the auditor has 
provided unmodified opinion on the same.

•	 Assessed the methodical approach in identifying 
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the 
acquisition date,

•	 verification of identified net assets acquired on the 
purchase.

•	 Ensuring that the amortization of goodwill arising on 
such purchase is made basis the period over which 
the economic benefits are expected to accrue to the 
Company.

•	 Carrying impairment testing for the goodwill as at 
31.03.2025 to determine if there are any impairment 
requirements. 

•	 examined the disclosures on the acquisition made 
in the notes in accordance with the requirements of 
applicable accounting standard.

OTHER INFORMATION
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available 
to us after the date of this auditor’s report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we will not express any form of 
assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information identified 
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we will read the annual report, if we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with governance 
and take appropriate actions as applicable under the relevant 
laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE 
AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit. 

b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

c.	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

d.	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e.	 On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 
from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f.	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in  
“Annexure B”. 
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g.	 With respect to the matter to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: 

	 In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for 
the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid by 
the Company to its directors in accordance with 
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule 
V to the Act;

h.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in 
its Financial Statements – Refer Note 42 to 
the Financial Statements. 

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses. 

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company.

iv.     (a)	 The Management has represented that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have 
been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the Company to or in 
any other person or entity, including 
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries;

(b) 	 The Management has represented, 
that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material 
either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been received by the Company 
from any person or entity, including 
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) 	 Based on the audit procedures that 
have been considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that 
has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) 
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under 
(a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement.

v.	 As stated in Note 43 (i) to the Financial 
Statements, the Board of Directors of the 
Company have proposed final dividend for 
the year which is subject to the approval 
of the members at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. The dividend proposed is in 
accordance with section 123 of the Act.

vi.	 Based on our examination, which included 
test checks, the Company has used 
accounting software for maintaining its 
books of account which have a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and 
that has operated throughout the year for all 
relevant transactions recorded in accounting 
software. During the course of performing our 
procedures we did not notice any instance 
of audit trail feature being tampered with 
and the audit trail has been preserved by the 
Company as per the statutory requirements 
for record retention.

For KRA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 020266N

Saurabh Garg
Partner
M.No. 510541
UDIN: 25510541BMJJMJ9863

Place: Delhi
Date: May 16, 2025
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTOF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS Of JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even 
date)

(i)        (a)       (A)	 The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 

(B) 	 The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets.

(b) 	 In accordance with the phased programme for 
verification of Property, Plant and Equipment, 
certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment 
were physically verified by the management 
during the year and no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification.

(c)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the title deeds 
of all the immovable properties (other than 
properties where the company is the lessee 
and the lease agreements are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial 
statements are held in the name of the 
company

(d)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not revalued any Property, Plant and 
Equipment during the year. Consequently, 
clause (i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

(e)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, no proceedings 
have been initiated or are pending against the 
company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder, if so. Consequently, clause (i)(e) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii)       (a)	 The management has conducted physical 
verification of inventories at reasonable 
interval during the year and no material 
discrepancies (10% or more in the aggregate 
for each class of inventory) were noticed on 
physical verification of inventories. In our 
opinion the coverage and procedure of such 
verification by the management is appropriate. 

(b) 	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the company 
has not been sanctioned with any working 
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in 
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions 

on the basis of security of current assets. 
Consequently, clause (ii)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(iii)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the company has made 
investments in, granted loans and advances in the 
nature of loan to companies and LLP. 

(a)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the company 
has granted loans and advances in the nature 
of loan to companies.

A.	 The Company does not have any 
subsidiary, joint venture or associates. 
Consequently, clause (iii)(a)(A) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

B.	 The aggregate amount of such loan 
granted to parties other than subsidiary, 
joint venture and associates is ₹ 100.00 
Lakhs and the balance outstanding at the 
Balance Sheet date as at 31.03.2025 is  
₹ 312.00 Lakhs. 

(b)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the investment 
made and the terms and conditions of the grant 
of all loans and advances in the nature of loans 
are not prejudicial to the company’s interest 
except for the grant of interest free loan of  
₹ 212.00 Lacs granted to erstwhile subsidiary 
company Shuddhi Charcoal Private Limited. 

(c)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the loan is 
repayable on demand. Consequently, clause 
(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

(d)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there is no 
amount overdue for this loan.

(e)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no loan 
or advance in the nature of loan granted which 
has fallen due during the year and has been 
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to 
settle the overdue of existing loans given to the 
same parties. Consequently, clause (iii)(e) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(f)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the company 
has granted loans or advances in the nature of 
loans repayable on demand to companies. The 
aggregate amount of such loans outstanding 
at the Balance Sheet date as at 31.03.2025 is 
₹ 312.00 Lakhs. This represents 100% of the 
loans granted. The aggregate amount of these 
loans granted and outstanding to the related 
parties is Nil. 

(iv)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, 
making investments and providing guarantees and 
securities, as applicable.

(v)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not accepted any 
deposit during the year. Consequently, clause (v) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company is not required 
to maintain cost records under section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Consequently, clause (vi) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, in respect of statutory dues:

(a)	 The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, value 
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, during the year, with the appropriate authorities and there are no 
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable.

(b) 	 The Dues of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service 
Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues which have not been deposited 
as on March 31, 2025, on account of disputes with the related authorities are as follows:

Nature of 
Statute

Nature of Dues Forum where 
dispute is 
pending

Period for 
which the 
amount relates

Amount 
Involved  

(In ₹ Lacs)

Amount Unpaid 
(In ₹ Lacs)

Goods and 
Service Tax Act

Demand on 
Completion of 
Search 

The Company is 
preparing to file 
writ petition with 
the Hon'ble High 
Court of Punjab 
and Haryana

Search 
conducted on 
13.04.2018

507.99 507.99

(viii) 	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, there are no transactions 
which are not recorded in the books of account and 
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during 
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

(ix)      (a)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to 
financial institutions or banks.

(b)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not been declared wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not availed any term loan during the period. 

Consequently, clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(d)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the funds raised 
on short term basis have not been utilized for 
long term purposes. Consequently, clause 
(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

(e)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the company 
does not have any subsidiary or associates. 
Consequently, clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(f)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the company 
does not have any subsidiary or associates. 
Consequently, clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.
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(x)       (a) 	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not raised any money during the year by the 
way of Initial Public Offer (IPO). Consequently, 
clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

(b) 	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures during the year. Consequently, 
clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

(xi)      (a) 	 To the best of our knowledge and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, 
no material fraud by the Company or on the 
Company has been noticed or reported during 
the year.

(b) 	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no report under sub-section (12) 
of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed by the auditor in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) 	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no whistle blower complaints has 
been received during the year. Consequently, 
clause (xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

(xii)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Consequently, clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company.

(xiii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, all transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with section 177 
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013, and corresponding 
details have been disclosed in the financial statements, 
as required by the applicable Accounting Standards.

(xiv)    (a) 	 In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has 
an internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and nature of its business 

(b) 	 The report of the Internal Auditor for the year 
were considered by us for statutory audit 
purposes.

(xv)	 In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors 
or persons connected with him.

(xvi)	 The Company is not required to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Consequently, clause (xvi)(a), (b), (c) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(xvii)	 The Company has not incurred any cash losses in 
the financial year and in the immediately preceding 
financial year.

(xviii)	 There is no resignation of the Statutory Auditor during 
the year. Consequently, clause (xviii) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(xix)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements, 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans and based on our examination 
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing 
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of 
the audit report that the Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by 
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, The Company has fully 
spent the required amount towards Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR 
amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund 
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or 
special account in compliance with the provision 
of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. 
Consequently, clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

For KRA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 020266N

Saurabh Garg
Partner
M.No. 510541
UDIN: 25510541BMJJMJ9863

Place: Delhi
Date: May 16, 2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED
(Referred to in Paragraph 2 point (f) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report 
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as at March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our 
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company, considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on 
Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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OPINION
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For KRA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 020266N

Saurabh Garg
Partner
M.No. 510541
UDIN: 25510541BMJJMJ9863

Place: Delhi
Date: May 16, 2025
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Balance Sheet 
As at March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note  
No.

As at  
31 March, 2025

As at  
31 March, 2024 

A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ funds

(a) 	 Equity Share capital 3  2,486.01  2,486.01 
(b) 	 Reserves and surplus 4  24,815.52  16,738.78 

2 Non-current liabilities
(a) 	 Long-term borrowings 5  42.92  32.16 
(b) 	 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6  -    40.42 
(c) 	 Long-term provisions 7  259.23  14.95 

3 Current liabilities
(a) 	 Short-term borrowings 8  1,030.40  21.79 
(b)	 Trade payables 9

(i) 	 total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises; and

 238.29  35.48 

(ii) 	 total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 711.28  410.30 

(c) 	 Other current liabilities 10  3,082.34  1,876.30 
(d) 	 Short-term provisions 11  164.57  396.67 
TOTAL  32,830.56  22,052.86 

B ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) 	 Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
(i) 	 Property, Plant and Equipment 12  9,234.42  6,682.52 
(ii) 	 Intangible assets 13  2.67  2.13 
(iii) 	 Capital work in progress 14  1,123.31  349.84 
(iv) 	 Intangible asset under development 15  224.28  43.68 

(b) 	 Goodwill 16  6,028.18  -   
(c) 	 Non current investments 17  64.00  64.00 
(d) 	 Deferred tax assets (net) 6  0.63  -   
(e) 	 Other non-current assets 18  937.11  476.70 

2 Current assets
(a) 	 Current investments 19  295.00  350.00 
(b) 	 Inventories 20  1,154.58  718.87 
(c) 	 Trade receivables 21  9,763.04  4,118.51 
(d) 	 Cash and cash equivalents 22  2,596.00  6,200.74 
(e) 	 Short-term loans and advances 23  963.64  2,737.74 
(f) 	 Other current assets 24  443.70  308.13 
TOTAL  32,830.56  22,052.86 

The accompanying notes are integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date

For KRA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.: 020266N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited

Saurabh Garg
Partner
M.No. 510541
UDIN: 25510541BMJJMJ9863

Manish Grover
Managing Director

DIN: 07557886

Bhavna Grover
Whole Time Director

DIN: 07557913

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 16, 2025

Nanak Chand
Chief Financial Officer

Anshika Garg
Company Secretary

M No.: A34503
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Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As per our report of even date

For KRA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.: 020266N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited

Saurabh Garg
Partner
M.No. 510541
UDIN: 25510541BMJJMJ9863

Manish Grover
Managing Director

DIN: 07557886

Bhavna Grover
Whole Time Director

DIN: 07557913

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 16, 2025

Nanak Chand
Chief Financial Officer

Anshika Garg
Company Secretary

M No.: A34503

Particulars Note 
No.

 For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

 For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

I Revenue from Operations 25  46,907.19  32,440.89 
II Other Income 26  640.89  643.98 
III Total Income (I + II)  47,548.08  33,084.87 
IV Expenses

(a) Purchases of stock-in-trade 27  3,561.90  2,464.89 
(b) Change in inventories of stock-in-trade 28  (435.71)  (308.41)
(c) Employee benefits expenses 29  10,048.87  6,591.11 
(d) Finance costs 30  50.60  41.14 
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 31  870.80  509.90 
(f) Other expenses 32  21,244.91  14,394.53 
Total expenses  35,341.37  23,693.16 

V Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax  
(III - IV)

 12,206.71  9,391.71 

VI Exceptional items & Extraordinary items  -    -   
VII Profit before tax  (V + VI)  12,206.71  9,391.71 
VIII Tax expense:

(a) Current tax  3,153.33  2,353.85 
(b) Taxation for earlier years  21.54  33.08 
(c) Deferred tax  (41.05)  84.15 
Total tax expense  3,133.82  2,471.08 

IX Profit for the year (VII - VIII)  9,072.89  6,920.63 
X Earnings per share (of ₹ 10 each):

(a) Basic 33  36.50  27.84 
(b) Diluted 33  36.47  27.84 

The accompanying notes are integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

 For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Profit before tax  12,206.71  9,391.71 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & amortization expense  870.80  509.90 
Net (gain)/loss on sale of Property Plant & Equipment (233.37) (115.20)
Net (gain)/loss on sale of Investments (100.95) (66.45)
Finance cost  50.60  41.14 
Liability written back (8.22) (111.60)
Employee stock option 43.00 0.43
Interest income (239.02) (314.34)
Operating Profit before working capital changes  12,589.55  9,335.59 
Movement in working capital:
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 140.78 59.38
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 485.15 (161.38)
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 1,179.06 625.98
Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances 1,822.23 (1,497.69)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables (5,000.08) (1,911.33)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories (397.76) (308.41)
Decrease/(increase) in other non current assets (460.40) 139.75
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets (192.23) (105.13)
Cash generated from operations 10,166.30 6,176.76
Income taxes refunded/(paid) (3,303.62) (2,507.83)
Net cash flow from operations (A) 6,862.68 3,668.93
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment and Intangible assets (4,182.63) (1,553.80)
(Increase)/Decrease in capital advances  -   607.82
Sale of property, plant & equipment 323.05 168.09
Purchase of business in slump sale (7,000.00)  -   
Investment in mutual funds and other securities (1,466.00) (359.00)
Sale of investment in mutual fund 1,621.95 466.24
Movement in earmarked/restricted fixed deposits held with bank 64.48 (137.85)
Movement in other fixed deposits held with bank 3,306.66 (1,304.04)
Interest received 295.68 307.93
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (7,036.81) (1,804.61)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 1,008.61 (5.06)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings 10.76 (21.79)
Dividend paid (1,038.10) (276.22)
Finance cost paid (50.41) (41.32)
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C) (69.14) (344.39)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (243.27) 1,519.93
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,531.47 1,011.54
Cash and cash equivalents at the closing of the year 2,288.20 2,531.47



128 Annual Report 2024-25JEENA SIKHO LIFECARE LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flow (Contd.)

For the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCLUDED IN CASH FLOW STATEMENT COMPRISE OF 
FOLLOWING (REFER NOTE 22):

Particulars  For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

 For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Cash in hand  543.11  324.09 
Balances with banks
          Current Account With Banks  1,754.75  1,707.38 
Bank deposits with maturity less than three months maturity  500.00 
Less: cash acquired on slump purchase  (9.66)  -   

 2,288.20  2,531.47 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date

For KRA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.: 020266N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited

Saurabh Garg
Partner
M.No. 510541
UDIN: 25510541BMJJMJ9863

Manish Grover
Managing Director

DIN: 07557886

Bhavna Grover
Whole Time Director

DIN: 07557913

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 16, 2025

Nanak Chand
Chief Financial Officer

Anshika Garg
Company Secretary

M No.: A34503
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Notes to Financial Statement 
For the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Jeena Sikho Lifecare limited was incorporated in 2017. The 
company deals in trading of Ayurvedic Medicines across the 
PAN India basis and providing ayurvedic therapies through 
its hospital network.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS (SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES & OTHER EXPLANATORY NOTES)
2.1 Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared 
in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in India (Indian GAAP), including the Accounting 
Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.  The financial statements have been prepared on 
accrual basis under the historical cost convention. 

2.2 Current versus non-current 
classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance 
sheet based on current/non- current classification. An asset 
is treated as current when it is:

- 	 Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or 
consumed in normal operating cycle;

- 	 Held primarily for purpose of trading;

- 	 Expected to be realized within twelve months after the 
reporting period; or

- 	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being 
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- 	 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- 	 It is held primarily for purpose of trading;

- 	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the 
reporting period; or

- 	 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
All other liabilities are classified as non current.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified 
as non- current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of 
assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash 
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as 
its operating cycle.

2.3 Use of estimates
The preparation  of the financial statements  requires 
the Management to make estimates and assumptions 
considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
(including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and 
expenses during the year. The Management believes that the 
estimates used in preparation of the financial statements 
are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due 
to these estimates and the differences between the actual 
results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in 
which the results are known/materialise.

2.4 Inventories
The inventory are valued at lower of cost or net realizable 
value. The inventory costs are based on first in first out 
method. Cost includes all charges in bringing the goods to 
the point of sale, including octroi and other levies, transit 
insurance and receiving charges.

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise 
of cash at bank and in hand and short term investments 
with an original maturity of three months or less. Earmarked 
balances with bank, margin money or security against 
borrowings, guarantees and other commitments, if any shall 
be treated separately from cash and cash equivalent.

2.6 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby 
profit/(loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities of the Company are segregated based 
on the available information.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in 
progress are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost 
comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and 
other incidental expenses directly attributable and related 
to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets 
and are further adjusted by the amount of input tax credit 
availed wherever applicable. Subsequent costs are included 
in asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 
benefit associated with the item will flow to the Company 
and the cost of item can be measured reliably. 
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Notes to Financial Statement (Contd.)

For the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2.8 Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided 
on prorate basis on straight line method using the useful 
lives of the assets estimated by the management and in 
the manner prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies  
Act 2013. The estimated life of various assets is as follows:

Building 30 Years
Motor Cycle 10 Years
Electrical equipment's 10 Years
Furniture and Fixture 10 Years
Motor Car 8 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Computer and Software 3 Years

2.9 Intangible assets
Separately acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated 
intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are 
not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected 
in statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the 
expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price 
and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use.

Internally Generated intangible assets
The cost of an internally generated intangible asset 
comprises all expenditure that can be directly attributed, or 
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis, to creating, 
producing and making the asset ready for its intended 
use. No cost incurred in the Research Phase of the asset 
is recognized. The cost incurred in the development phase 
is recognized only if the company can demonstrate the 
following conditions: 

(a) 	 the technical feasibility of completing the intangible 
asset so that it will be available for use;

(b) 	 its intention to complete the intangible asset and use or 
sell it;

(c) 	 its ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) 	 how the intangible asset will generate probable future 
economic benefits. Among other things, the company 
should demonstrate the existence of a market for the 
output of the intangible asset or the intangible asset 
itself or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of 
the intangible asset;

(e) 	 the availability of adequate technical, financial and 
other resources to complete the development and to 
use or sell the intangible asset; and

(f) 	 its ability to measure the expenditure attributable to the 
intangible asset during its development reliably.

Goodwill
Goodwill acquired on the purchase of business is recognized 
as a difference between the purchase consideration and the 
value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill is amortized over 
the period over which the economic benefits are expected to 
accrue to the Company. 

2.10 Revenue recognition
Sale of goods
Sales are recognised, net of returns and trade discounts, on 
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the 
buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods 
to customers. Sales exclude GST. The company follows 
the mercantile system of accounting and recognizes the 
income and expenditures on accrual basis except in case of 
significant uncertainties. 

Sale of service
Sales of services are recognized when the services are 
rendered.

2.11 Other income
Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis. 
Rental income is recognized on accrual basis.

2.12 Foreign currency transactions and 
translations
Initial recognition
Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the 
Company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing 
on the date of the transaction or at rates that closely 
approximate the rate at the date of the transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency monetary 
items at the Balance Sheet date
Foreign currency monetary items (other than derivative 
contracts) of the Company outstanding at the Balance Sheet 
date are restated at the year-end rates.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.13 Investments
Long-term investments, are carried individually at cost 
less provision for diminution, other than temporary, in the 
value of such investments. Current investments are carried 
individually, at the lower of cost and fair value. Cost of 
investments include acquisition charges such as brokerage, 
fees and duties. 
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2.14 Employee benefits
The Company has adopted the Accounting Standard 
15- Employee Benefits prescribed under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. ‘Employee benefits 
include provident fund, bonus and gratuity benefits. The 
Company’s obligation towards various employee benefits 
has been recognized as follows:

Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months 
of rendering the service are short-term employee benefits. 
Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus wages, etc, are 
recognized in the Profit and Loss statement in the period in 
which the employee renders the related service.

Defined contribution plans
The Company’s contribution to provident fund are considered 
as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense 
as they fall due based on the amount of contribution required 
to be made.

Defined benefits plans
(i) 	 For defined-benefit plans, the amount recognised in 

the Balance Sheet is the present value of the defined-
benefit obligation less the fair value of any plan assets 
and any past service costs not yet recognised. The 
present value of the defined-benefit obligation is the 
present value of expected future payments required to 
settle the obligation resulting from employee service 
in the current and prior periods. The discount rate 
used is the market yields on government bonds at the 
Balance Sheet date with remaining terms to maturity 
approximating those of the Company’s obligations.

(ii) 	 Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post 
employment and other long-term benefits are charged 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee Stock Options
The Company measures compensation cost relating to 
employee stock options using the Fair Value Method. 
Compensation expense is amortised over the vesting period 
of the option on a straight line basis.

2.15 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary 
costs incurred and exchange differences arising from 
foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded 
as an adjustment to the interest cost. Costs in connection 
with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related 
to the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan. 
Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying 
assets, pertaining to the period from commencement 
of activities relating to construction/development of the 
qualifying asset up to the date of capitalisation of such 
asset is added to the cost of the assets.

Borrowing cost attributable to the fixed assets during 
construction/exploration, renovation and modernization are 
capitalized. Such borrowing costs are apportioned on the 
average balance of capital work in progress for the year. 
Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the 
period in which they are incurred.

2.16 Segment reporting
The Company identifies primary segments based on the 
dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal 
organisation and management structure. The operating 
segments are the segments for which separate financial 
information is available and for which operating profit/loss 
amounts are evaluated regularly by the executive. 

2.17 Taxes on income
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current 
income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid 
to the tax authorities in accordance with Income Tax Act, 
1961. Deferred income tax reflects the impact of current year 
timing differences between taxable income that originates 
in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods.

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the 
differences between the taxable income and the accounting 
income that originate in one period and are capable of 
reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is 
measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or 
substantially enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax 
liabilities are recognised for all timing differences. Deferred 
tax assets in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry 
forward of losses are recognised only if there is virtual 
certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income 
available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised for timing differences of other items only to the 
extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which these can be 
realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such 
items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing 
tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right 
for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
Balance Sheet date for their realisability. 

2.18 Impairment of assets
The carrying values of assets/cash generating units are 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for impairment. If any 
indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of 
such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised if the 
carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net 
selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at 
by discounting the future cash flows to their present value 
based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is 
indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset 
in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have 
decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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2.19 Provisions and contingencies
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present 
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in 
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions 
(excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their 
present value and are determined based on the best estimate 
required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. 
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is disclosed where, as a result of past 
events, there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of 
resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of 
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

2.20 Leases
a) Finance lease
i)	 Assets taken on finance lease are capitalised at 

fair value or net present value of the minimum lease 
payments, whichever is less.

ii)	 Lease payments are apportioned between the finance 
charges and outstanding liability in respect of assets 
taken on lease.

b) Operating lease
i)	 Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially 

all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased 
term are classified as operating lease. Lease rent are 
recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

2.21 Earning per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net 
profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are 
treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they 
were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully 
paid equity share during the reporting year. For the purpose 
of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or 
loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and 
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during 
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.
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NOTE 3: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

(a) Authorised Share Capital:
Equity shares of ₹ 10 each: 2,50,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 1,50,00,000)  2,500.00  2,500.00 
Total Authorised Share Capital
(b) Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up Shares:
Equity shares of ₹ 10 each: 2,48,60,146 (March 31, 2024: 2,48,60,146)  2,486.01  2,486.01 
Total Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up Shares

 2,486.01  2,486.01 

(c) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Particulars As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024 
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Equity shares
Balance at the beginning of the year  2,48,60,146  24,86,01,460  1,38,11,192  13,81,11,920 
Add: Bonus share issued  -    -    1,10,48,954  11,04,89,540 
Balance at the end of the reporting year  2,48,60,146  24,86,01,460  2,48,60,146  24,86,01,460 

(d) Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares:
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled 
to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the Equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the 
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(e) Bonus shares issued:
In the year ended 31.03.2022, the company has issued bonus shares totalling to 1,00,00,080 equity shares on 25.08.2021  
(90 equity shares for every one share held). 

In the previous year ended 31.03.2024, the company has issued bonus shares totalling to 1,10,48,954 equity shares on 
03.11.2023 (4 equity shares for every 5 share held).  

(f) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Name of Shareholder As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024 
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding

Equity shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid-up
Manish Grover  1,57,28,238 63.27%  1,66,52,448 66.98%
Sixteenth Street Asian Gems Fund  14,06,610 5.66%  -   0.00%
Oregano Life Private Limited  14,43,045 5.80%  15,04,245 6.05%

(g) Details of Promoter shareholding:

Name of Shareholder As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024 
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding

Equity shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid-up
Manish Grover  1,57,28,238 63.27%  1,66,52,448 66.98%
Bhavna Grover  48,600 0.20%  1,92,600 0.77%

% change during the year/period
Manish Grover -3.72% -23.55%
Bhavna Grover -0.58% -0.24%
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NOTE 4: RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

(a) Security Premium
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  5,330.79  5,330.79 
Add: received during the year  -    -   
Total  5,330.79  5,330.79 

(b) Share Options Outstanding Account
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  0.43 
Add: Addition during the year  43.00  0.43 
Total  43.43  0.43 

(c) Statement of Profit and Loss 
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  11,407.56  5,868.05 
Add: Profit for the year  9,072.89  6,920.63 
Less: Bonus shares issued during the year  -    1,104.90 
Less: Dividend paid  1,039.15  276.22 
Total  19,441.30  11,407.56 

Total  24,815.52  16,738.78 

NOTE 5: LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

(a) Vehicles Loan - Secured
Loan from banks  42.92  32.16 

Total  42.92  32.16 

Vehicle loan from Banks is for a total of 3 vehicles (Loan from HDFC Bank for Ambulance and Toyota Fortuner Car and loan 
from Axis Bank for Jaguar Land Rover Car). The loans are secured by hypothecation of the vehicles. These vehicle loans 
carries an interest rate from 8.74% to 9.25% p.a. The loans are repayable in 5 years EMI.

NOTE 6: DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Deferred tax liability
Property Plant and Equipment  110.61  77.07 
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability  110.61  77.07 
Deferred tax asset
Employee benefits  72.11  36.65 
Provision for bad and doubtful debts  39.13  -   
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets  111.24  36.65 
Net deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (0.63) 40.42
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Impact on Statement of Profit & Loss

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Property Plant and Equipment  33.54  99.10 
Employee benefits  (35.46)  (14.95)
Provision of bad and doubtful debts  (39.13)  -   
Deferred tax expense/(credit) charged in profit and loss  (41.05)  84.15 

NOTE 7: LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Provision for Employee benefits  259.23  14.95 
Total  259.23  14.95 

NOTE 8: SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Secured
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 
Vehicle loan #  30.40  21.79 
Unsecured
Repayable on demand
Loan from directors ##  1,000.00  -   
Total  1,030.40  21.79 

# Refer Note 5 above for the term and condition of vehicle loan.

## The loan from directors is interest free and is repayable on demand.

NOTE 9: TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

(i) 	 Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  238.29  35.48 
(ii) 	 Total outstanding dues for creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises
 711.28  410.30 

Total  949.57  445.78 

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Undisputed
Due to MSME
Less than one year  238.29  35.48 
1-2 years  -    -   
2-3 years  -    -   
More than 3 years  -    -   
Total  238.29  35.48 
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Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Other
Less than one year  657.24  340.14 
1-2 years  50.25  54.37 
2-3 years  3.79  2.15 
More than 3 years  -    13.64 
Total  711.28  410.30 

* There are no disputed dues for trade payable.

** There are certain vendors who have confirmed that they are covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Disclosures 
relating to dues of Micro and Small enterprises under section 22 of ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, are given below:

Principal amount and Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier  238.29  35.48 
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the 
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

 -    -   

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

 -    -   

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid during the accounting 
year.

 0.50  -   

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006.

 -    -   

NOTE 10: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Salary & Bonus Payable  833.98  525.68 
Director's Remuneration Payable  13.64  -   
Statutory dues  329.71  270.05 
Interest accrued and not due on secured borrowings  0.40  0.21 
Expense payable  646.92  372.08 
Advance from Customers  673.47  366.60 
Payable to Rajasthan Government Health Scheme (RGHS) *  93.27  -   
Security deposit for clinic  221.38  227.43 
Other security deposit  267.24  112.97 
Dividend payable  2.33  1.28 
Total  3,082.34  1,876.30 

* Refer Note no. 42 on contingent liability.

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule (Contd.)
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NOTE 11: SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Provision for Income Tax (Net of advance tax)  137.27  266.02 
Provision for employee benefits  27.30  130.65 
Total  164.57  396.67 

NOTE 12: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Particulars Freehold 
Land

Building Furniture 
& Fixtures

Office 
Equipment's

Computers Electrical 
Installation

Motor 
Vehicles

Total

Gross Block

As at March 31, 2023 1,752.71 2,391.51 1,204.14 778.54 499.40 102.26 311.02 7,039.58

Addition - 0.48 650.73 335.57 33.20 6.86 244.81 1,271.65

Deletion 44.55 - 4.62 7.10 48.65 6.25 - 111.17

As at March 31, 2024 1,708.16 2,391.99 1,850.25 1,107.01 483.95 102.87 555.83 8,200.06

Addition - 439.43 1,348.59 914.69 163.04 41.58 319.24 3,226.57

Addition on slump 
purchase #

- - 66.65 53.71 18.54 - 21.73 160.63

Deletion 89.18 - - 8.32 1.71 - - 99.21

As at March 31, 2025 1,618.98 2,831.42 3,265.49 2,067.09 663.82 144.45 896.80 11,488.05

Accumulated Depreciation

As at March 31, 2023 - 60.65 234.37 253.77 417.03 46.79 57.75 1,070.35

Addition - 75.81 147.84 168.66 45.96 14.99 52.21 505.47

Deletion - - 2.70 3.42 46.22 5.94 - 58.28

As at March 31, 2024 - 136.46 379.51 419.01 416.77 55.84 109.96 1,517.54

Addition - 82.08 223.11 254.74 47.71 18.40 91.16 717.20

Addition on slump 
purchase #

- - 3.51 7.14 13.08 - 4.69 28.42

Deletion - - - 7.90 1.63 - - 9.53

As at March 31, 2025 - 218.54 606.13 672.99 475.93 74.24 205.81 2,253.63

As at March 31, 2024 1,708.16 2,255.53 1,470.74 688.00 67.18 47.03 445.87 6,682.52

As at March 31, 2025 1,618.98 2,612.88 2,659.36 1,394.10 187.89 70.21 690.99 9,234.42

NOTE 13: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Particulars Software Total
Gross Block
As at March 31, 2023 36.60 36.60
Addition 1.31 1.31
Deletion - -
As at March 31, 2024 37.91 37.91
Addition 2.00 2.00
Addition on slump purchase # - -
Deletion - -
As at March 31, 2025 39.91 39.91
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Particulars Software Total

Accumulated Depreciation
As at March 31, 2023 31.35 31.35
Addition 4.43 4.43
Deletion - -
As at March 31, 2024 35.78 35.78
Addition 1.46 1.46
Addition on slump purchase # - -
Deletion - -
As at March 31, 2025 37.24 37.24
As at March 31, 2024 2.13 2.13
As at March 31, 2025 2.67 2.67

# Addition on slump purchase represent gross block and accumulated depreciation value of fixed assets acquired on slump purchase.

NOTE 14: CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Capital work in progress  1,123.31  349.84 
 1,123.31  349.84 

Capital work in progress  ageing schedule

Particulars  Less than  
1 year 

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than  
3 years 

 Total 

CWIP
31.03.2025
Project in progress  1,119.55  3.76  -    -    1,123.31 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   
31.03.2024
Project in progress  237.16  112.68  -    -    349.84 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

NOTE 15: INTANGIBLE ASSET UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Intangible asset under development  224.28  43.68 
 224.28  43.68 

Intangible asset under development ageing schedule

Particulars  Less than  
1 year 

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than  
3 years 

 Total 

Intangible asset under development
31.03.2025
Project in progress  180.60  43.68  -    -    224.28 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

NOTE 13: INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Contd.)
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Particulars  Less than  
1 year 

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than  
3 years 

 Total 

31.03.2024
Project in progress  43.68  -    -    -    43.68 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

NOTE 16: GOODWILL

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Goodwill on acquisition of business  6,180.32  -   
Less: Amortization of goodwill  (152.14)  -   
Total  6,028.18  -   

Note:

1. 	 The Company acquired five branches consisting of Ayurvedic Therapy Centres from another Company named Oregano 
Life Private Limited in a Slump Sale for a consolidated price of ₹ 70 crores. The date of acquisition was 03.10.2024.

2. 	 The five branch acquired are at location Kishan Kunj & Mayur Vihar (Delhi), Jothwara, Alwar & Sanganer (Rajasthan). 

3.	 The net assets acquired by the Company in this acquisition are as follows:

Particulars Amount  
(In ₹ Lakhs)

Fixed asset  132.21 
Inventory  37.96 
Trade Receivable  644.43 
Cash  9.66 
Loans and advances  48.15 
Gratuity Liability  (0.14)
Trade payable  (26.87)
Expense payable  (25.72)
Net identifiable assets acquired (A)  819.68 
Purchase consideration (B)  7,000.00 
Goodwill on acquisition (B) - (A)  6,180.32 

4. 	 The goodwill arising on this purchase will be amortized over the future years basis the economic benefit that accrue to 
the Company. The estimated amortization period on the date of acquisition is 16 years.

NOTE 17: NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Non-trade investments  -   
Investments in LLP (Unquoted) #  -   
Dupon Clean Biofuel LLP (5% partnership share)
Fixed capital  5.00  5.00 
Floating capital  59.00  59.00 
Total  64.00  64.00 

Intangible asset under development ageing schedule (Contd.)
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# Details of LLP

Name of LLP Dupon Clean 
Biofuel LLP

Date of LLP Agreement 05.12.2022
Total capital 1,00,00,000
Partners details and their profitability ratio
Dugar Growth Fund Private Limited 5%
Nitin Jain 30%
Paramjeet Singh Sehra 10%
Sucha Singh Sehra 20%
Manish Grover 30%
Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited 5%

NOTE 18: OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Unsecured
Security Deposit  937.11  476.70 
Total  937.11  476.70 

NOTE 19: CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Non-trade investments
Investments in portfolio management scheme (PMS) (Unquoted)
Investment in portfolio management scheme (PMS) of AcePro Advisors 
Private Limited

 100.00  50.00 

Mutual Funds investment (Quoted)
ICICI Prudential Saving Fund  
(Unit: 31.03.2025: 36,636.78; 31.03.2024: Nil)

 195.00  -   

Bandhan Sterling Value Fund  
(Unit: 31.03.2025: Nil; 31.03.2024: 2,34,004.962)

 -    300.00 

Total  295.00  350.00 
Cost of quoted investments  195.00  300.00 
Market value of quoted investments  195.10  308.88 
Cost of unquoted investments  100.00  50.00 

NOTE 20: INVENTORIES

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Valued at lower of cost or net realizable value
Stock in trade and consumables  1,154.58  718.87 
Total  1,154.58  718.87 
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NOTE 21: TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

(a) Secured, considered good  -    -   
(b) Unsecured, considered good  9,763.04  4,118.51 
(c) Doubtful  205.47  155.47 

Less: Provision for doubtful debts  (205.47)  (155.47)
Total  9,763.04  4,118.51 

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule*

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Undisputed trade receivable (considered good)
Less than six months  6,609.24  2,227.80 
6 months - 1 year  1,294.22  588.64 
1-2 years  987.84  1,272.24 
2-3 years  785.12  12.97 
More than 3 years  86.62  16.85 
Total  9,763.04  4,118.51 
Undisputed trade receivable (considered doubtful)**
Less than six months  -    -   
6 months - 1 year  -    -   
1-2 years  -    155.47 
2-3 years  205.47  -   
More than 3 years  -    -   
Total  205.47  155.47 

* There are no disputed trade receivables. 

** Company has a large amount of trade receivable from the Government Panel. As at 31.03.2025, The amount of provision created by the Company against these 
Government Panel debtor is ₹ 205.47 Lakhs (PY: ₹ 155.47 Lakhs).

NOTE 22: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Cash in hand  543.11  324.09 
Balances with banks

Current Account With Banks  1,754.75  1,707.38 
Bank deposits with maturity less than 3 Months  -    500.00 
Bank deposits with maturity less than one year  147.39  3,454.04 
Earmarked/restricted fixed deposit with bank #  150.75  215.23 
Total  2,596.00  6,200.74 

# These deposits have been kept against bank guarantee provided to various government authorities for empanelment of Company’s Ayurvedic Treatments 
Centres.
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NOTE 23: SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Unsecured, considered good:
Advance to suppliers  513.58  941.22 
Advance to Staff  29.37  263.08 
Advance to Others  420.69  1,533.44 
Total  963.64  2,737.74 
Loans and Advance to the related party  -    204.49 
Percentage to the total loans and advances  -    0.13 

NOTE 24: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

Unbilled revenue  69.56  -   
Prepaid Expenses  263.14  192.20 
Balance with government authority  60.82  36.27 
Imprest Paid to Staff  37.54  10.36 
Accrued interest  12.64  69.30 
Total  443.70  308.13 

NOTE 25: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Sale of products  21,535.59  18,574.80 
Sale of Services (including ayurvedic therapies)  25,371.60  13,866.09 
Total  46,907.19  32,440.89 

NOTE 26: OTHER INCOME

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Interest Income  239.02  314.34 
Rental Income  3.25  1.09 
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  233.37  115.20 
Profit on Sale of Investment  100.95  66.45 
Commission income  -    21.14 
Other Misc. Income  49.72  9.94 
Liability written back  8.22  111.60 
Discount Income  6.36  4.22 
Total  640.89  643.98 
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NOTE 27: PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE 

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Purchase of Stock in trade  3,561.90  2,464.89 
Total  3,561.90  2,464.89 

The purchase of stock in trade primarily consist of ayurvedic medicine thus, there is only one broad head i.e. Ayurvedic 
Medicine.

NOTE 28: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Inventories at the end of the year
Stock in trade and consumables  1,154.58  718.87 

 1,154.58  718.87 
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Stock in trade and consumables  718.87  410.46 

 718.87  410.46 
Net (increase)/decrease in inventories of stock-in-trade  (435.71)  (308.41)

NOTE 29: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Salaries and wages  9,316.15  6,167.39 
Contribution to provident and other funds  467.62  306.00 
Gratuity Expenses  141.81  59.40 
Employee stock option  43.00  0.43 
Staff Welfare Expenses  80.29  57.89 
Total  10,048.87  6,591.11 

NOTE 30: FINANCE COSTS

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

(a) Interest expense:  -   
(i)    Borrowings from Banks  3.36  4.92 

(b) Other borrowing costs  47.24  36.22 
Total  50.60  41.14 

NOTE 31: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment  717.20  505.47 
Depreciation on Intangible Assets  1.46  4.43 
Amortization of goodwill  152.14  -   
Total  870.80  509.90 
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NOTE 32: OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Payments to the auditors *  14.62  15.27 
Advertisement and business promotion expense  5,801.20  4,288.01 
Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer Note 36)  101.64  55.30 
Consumable Expenses  2,296.09  967.25 
Packing Material Expenses  8.44  19.02 
Business Support Services  100.01  84.95 
Freight Expenses  46.65  45.19 
Annual Maintenance Charges  18.63  10.94 
Call Centre Expenses  652.02  601.49 
Discount Expenses  1.74  11.82 
Telephone Expenses  111.08  116.30 
Postage & Courier  388.31  411.25 
Printing and stationery  139.60  107.16 
Office Maintenance Expenses  878.61  704.09 
Donation  9.85  6.63 
Diwali Expenses  46.86  66.17 
Bad debts and advances written off  115.03  -   
Provision for doubtful debts  50.00  -   
Computer Expenses  143.39  85.44 
Commission & Brokerage  780.39  1,128.17 
Rent Expenses  3,182.90  1,743.59 
Legal & Professional Charges  981.79  784.29 
Insurance expenses  14.61  8.59 
Rate Fees & Taxes  192.45  86.86 
Interest and penalties  45.95  2.18 
Security and Manpower Expenses  1,511.48  800.38 
Uniform Expense  40.52  15.84 
Hiring Charges  16.15  6.69 
Repair & Maintenance  482.62  470.23 
Subscription  40.63  17.14 
Food & Kitchen Expenses  576.50  394.25 
Cleaning expenses  12.82  8.22 
Recovery payable to RGHS  93.27  -   
Vehicle Running & Maintenance  140.81  173.25 
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses  374.72  215.36 
Ineligible Input written off  936.17  437.60 
Water and Electricity Charges  862.81  476.46 
Miscellaneous Expenses  34.55  29.15 
Total  21,244.91  14,394.53 
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* Payments to the auditors comprises:

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

For Statutory audit  12.00  12.00 
For Tax Audit  2.00  2.00 
Out of pocket expenses  0.62  1.27 
Total  14.62  15.27 

NOTE 33: EARNING PER SHARE
(A) Reconciliation Of Basic And Diluted Shares Used In Computing Earning Per Share

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Basic earnings per equity share - weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding (Nos) - Opening

 2,48,60,146  1,38,11,192 

Add: Bonus shares issued on 03.11.2024  -    1,10,48,954 
Basic earnings per equity share - weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding (Nos) - Closing

 2,48,60,146  2,48,60,146 

Add/(Less): Effect of dilutive shares (Nos)  18,368.00  664.00 
Diluted earnings per equity share - weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding (Nos)

 2,48,78,514  2,48,60,810 

(B) Computation of basic and diluted earning per share

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Basic earning per share (Basic EPS)
Profit after tax  9,072.89  6,920.63 
Weighted average number of shares (For Basic EPS)  2,48,60,146  2,48,60,146 
Basic EPS (Face value per share: ₹ 10)  36.50  27.84 
Diluted earning per share  (Dilutive EPS)
Profit after tax  9,072.89  6,920.63 
Add/(less): Effect of dilution on profit  -    -   
Revised profit after tax  9,072.89  6,920.63 
Weighted average number of shares (For Diluted EPS)  2,48,78,514  2,48,60,810 
Diluted EPS (Face value per share: ₹ 10)  36.47  27.84 

NOTE 34: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN
(A) Defined benefit Plan
The defined benefit plan operated by the Company is as below:
Retiring gratuity
The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan 
provides for a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of 
employment of an amount equivalent to 26 days salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon 
completion of five years of service. The Company does not make any contributions to gratuity funds and the plan is unfunded. 
The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.
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The defined benefit plans expose the Company to a number of actuarial risks as below:
(a) 	 Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

(b) 	 Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan 
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

(c) 	 Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the 
mortality of plan participants. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The following table sets out the amounts recognised in the financial statements in respect of 
retiring gratuity plan:
(i) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) during the year

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Present value of DBO at the beginning of the year  145.60  86.20 
Transfer in/(out) obligation  0.14  -   
Current service cost  101.11  50.60 
Interest cost  5.70  3.48 
Actuarial (gain)/loss  35.00  5.32 
Benefits paid  (1.02)  -   
Present value of DBO at the end of the year  286.53  145.60 

(ii) Change in fair value of plant assets during the year

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  -    -   
Interest income  -    -   
Employer contributions  -    -   
Benefits paid  -    -   
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  -    -   

(iii) Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Present value of DBO at the end of the year  286.53  145.60 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  -    -   
Net Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet  286.53  145.60 

(iv) Components of employer expense

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Current service cost  101.11  50.60 
Interest cost  5.70  3.48 
Actuarial (gain)/loss  35.00  5.32 
Expense recognised in Statement of Profit t and Loss  141.81  59.40 
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(v) Nature and extent of investment details of the plan assets

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

State and Central Securities 0% 0%
Bonds 0% 0%
Special deposits 0% 0%
Insurer managed funds 0% 0%

(vi) Assumptions

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Discount Rate 6.65% 7.10%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets NA NA
Withdrawal rates
Service band
   - 4 Years and below 41.45% 90%
   - 4 to 10 Years 11.55% 90%
   - 4 to 15 Years 11.55% 90%
   - 15 Years and above 11.55% 90%

(B) Defined Contribution Plan
Provident fund and pension
In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the 
Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees 
and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions, 
as specified under the law, are made to the employee provident fund organization (EPFO). 

The total expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the year on account of defined contribution plans 
amounted to ₹ 321.28 Lakhs (PY: ₹ 221.09 Lakhs).

NOTE 35: SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
Employee Stock Option Plans
(i)	 Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited has recognised share based payment expenses for the years ended 31 March 2025 based 

on fair value as on the grant date calculated as per option pricing model. The grants represent equity-settled options 
under the Employee Stock Option Plans.

	 The Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited has granted ESOPs under one plans viz., Employees Stock Option Scheme 2024 to 
its employees on an equity-settled basis as tabulated below. The ESOPs provide a right to its holders (i.e., Jeena Sikho 
Lifecare Limited employees) to purchase one share for each option at a pre-determined strike price on the expiry of the 
vesting period. The ESOP hence represents an call option that provides a right but not an obligation to the employees of 
the Jeena Sikho Lifecare Limited to exercise the option by paying the strike price on completion of the vesting period. 
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(ii)	 The Company has granted stock options to employees of the Company on an equity-settled basis as tabulated below:

Particular ESOP 2024
Date of grant 28.03.2024
Option Type Equity settled
No. of outstanding options at 31 March 2024  61,275 
No. of outstanding options at 31 March 2025  48,050 
No. of Equity shares represented by an option 1 share for 1 option
Fair Value per option (₹) 833.25 to 834.59
Exercise Price (₹) 10
Vesting Period (Years) 2.5 - 5
Vesting Conditions Service

(iii)	 The vesting of options is subject to the employee’s continued employment with the Company. The ESOPs shall vest as 
follows:

Particular ESOP 2024
2.5 years from the grant date 25%
5 years from the grant date 75%

(iv)	 Share based payments: Employee Stock Option Plans
	 Movement of number of Options (Number)

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Outstanding at the start of the year  61,275  -   
Granted during the year  -    61,275 
Exercised during the year  -    -   
Lapsed/cancelled during the year  13,225  -   
Outstanding at the end of the year  48,050  61,275 
Exercisable at the end of the year  -    -   

	 Weighted Average Exercise Price (₹)

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Outstanding at the start of the year  10  -   
Granted during the year  -    10.00 
Exercised during the year  -    -   
Lapsed/cancelled during the year  10.00  -   
Outstanding at the end of the year  10.00  10.00 
Exercisable at the end of the year  NA  NA 
Weighted Average Share price at the exercise date  NA  NA 

	 Outstanding Options

Particulars  As at  
31 March, 2025 

 As at  
31 March, 2024 

Number of options outstanding (Number)  48,050 61275
Weighted average strike price (₹) 10 10
Weighted average remaining lifetime of options (in years) 3.38 years 4.38 years
Number of employees covered under the scheme (Number) 574 766
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	 Options granted during the year

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Number of options granted (Number) NA 61275
Weighted average strike price (₹) NA 10
Weighted average remaining lifetime of options (in years) NA 4.38 years
Number of employees covered under the scheme (Number) NA 766
Weighted Average Fair value per option NA 834.26

	 Assumptions for Fair Value

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Weighted average share price NA 842
Weighted average strike price NA 10
Weighted average remaining lifetime of options NA 4.38 years
Expected volatility NA 46.83% - 50.79%
Risk-free discount rate NA 6.94% - 6.97%

NOTE 36: CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENSES

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

a) 	 Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  100.31  55.30 
b) 	 Gross amount provided for CSR activities  101.64  55.30 
c) 	 Amount spent during the year  101.64  55.30 
d) 	 Shortfall at the end of the year  -    -   
e) 	 Total of previous years shortfall,  -    -   
f) 	 Reason for shortfall NA NA
g) 	 Nature of CSR activities,
Eradicating Hunger, Poverty & Malnutrition, Promoting preventive health 
care, education and sanitation and making available safe drinking water

NOTE 37: SEGMENT REPORTING
The company operates only in one business segment viz “Trading of Ayurvedic Medicines and providing Ayurvedic therapie.  
“Accordingly, there are no separate reporting segments as per Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting”.

NOTE 38: DISCLOSURES FOR LEASES UNDER AS 19 – “LEASES”.

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Rental Expenses  3,182.90  1,743.59 
Minimum Lease payment
Less than one year  2,638.04  1,607.86 
one to five year  2,287.78  1,585.99 
More than 5 years  -    -   
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NOTE 39: EXPENDITURE AND INCOME IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024 

Foreign Currency Income - Export Sale 106.52 44.82
Foreign Currency Expenses - Professional and other expense 58.05 44.97

NOTE 40: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

Description of relationship Names of related parties
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Manish Grover (Managing Director)

Bhavna Grover (Whole-time Director)
Relative of KMP Akansha Jain (Sister of KMP)

Ashish Grover (Brother of KMP)
Entities in which KMP/Relatives of KMP can exercise 
significant influence

1. 	 Shuddhi Lifecare Private Limited  
(formerly Divya Upchar Sansthan)

2. 	 Manish Grover HUF

B) Transactions with related parties are as follows:

Particular Key 
Management 

Personnel 
(KMP)

Entities in which 
KMP/Relatives 

of KMP can 
exercise 

significant 
influence

Relative of 
KMP

Total

(i) Salary, allowances and bonus
March 31, 2025  420.00  -    37.50  457.50 
March 31, 2024  420.00  -    20.16  440.16 
(ii) Sale of goods
March 31, 2025  -    498.14  -    498.14 
March 31, 2024  -    441.90  -    441.90 
(iii) Receiving of services
March 31, 2025  11.00  6.00  -    17.00 
March 31, 2024  15.00  6.00  -    21.00 
(iv) Other income
March 31, 2025  -    12.18  12.18 
March 31, 2024  -    41.67  41.67 
(v) Loans and advances (given)/received back
March 31, 2025  -    212.53  212.53 
March 31, 2024  -    115.53  115.53 
(vi) Borrowings received/(repaid) - Net
March 31, 2025  1,000.00  -    1,000.00 
March 31, 2024  -    -    -   
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C) Balances outstanding are as follows:

Particular Key 
Management 

Personnel 
(KMP)

Entities in which 
KMP/Relatives 

of KMP can 
exercise 

significant 
influence

Relative of 
KMP

Total

(i) Salary, allowances, bonus and imprest 
payable/(Receivable)
March 31, 2025  (12.15)  -    -    (12.15)
March 31, 2024  (168.89)  -    -    (168.89)
(ii) Expenses payable
March 31, 2025  -    2.45  -    2.45 
March 31, 2024  -    0.45  -    0.45 
(iii) Trade receivable
March 31, 2025  -    6.04  -    6.04 
March 31, 2024  -    270.41  -    270.41 
(iv) Loans and advances
March 31, 2025  -    -    -    -   
March 31, 2024  -    204.49  -    204.49 
(v) Borrowings
March 31, 2025  1,000.00  -    -    1,000.00 
March 31, 2024  -    -    -    -   

NOTE 41: DISCLOSURE ON SIGNIFICANT RATIOS

As at  
31 March, 2025 

As at  
31 March, 2024 

 % Change 

Current Ratio  2.91  5.27 -45%
Debt-Equity Ratio  0.04  0.00 1252%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio  246.78  226.03 9%
Return on Equity Ratio  0.33  0.36 -8%
Inventory turnover ratio  3.09  3.43 -10%
Trade Receivables turnover ratio  4.80  7.88 -39%
Trade payables turnover ratio  3.75  5.53 -32%
Net capital turnover ratio  4.70  2.77 69%
Net profit ratio 19.34% 21.33% -9%
Return on Capital employed 40.94% 45.59% -10%

Reason for changes in ratio (more than 10%):
1. 	 Debt Equity ratio - Due to debt being taken from director for ₹ 10 crores to meet the working capital requirements of the 

Company.

2. 	 Trade Receivables turnover ratio - This has reduced due to increase in amount due from the Government Panel Debtor

3. 	 Trade payables turnover ratio - This has reduced due to reduction in creditor payment cycle.

4. 	 Net capital turnover ratio - This has increase because of reduction in Company net working capital position (Current 
Asset - Current Liability).
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Methodology:
1. 	 Current Ratio = Current Asset/Current Liability

2. 	 Debt-Equity Ration = Total Debt/(Total Debt + Equity)

3. 	 Debt Service Coverage Ratio = EBITDA/Finance Cost

4. 	 Return on Equity Ratio = Profit After Tax/Total Equity

5. 	 Inventory Turnover Ratio = Purchase/Inventory

6. 	 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio = Revenue from 
Operations/Trade Receivable

7. 	 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio = Purchase/Trade 
Payable

8. 	 Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Revenue from Operations/
(Current Asset - Current Liability)

9. 	 Net Profit Ratio = Profit After Tax/Revenue from 
Operations

10. 	 Return on Capital Employed = EBIT/(Total Debt + Equity)

NOTE 42: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND 
COMMITMENT
(i)	 Director General of GST Intelligence conducted search 

on the Company premises (along with other Companies 
owned by the same promoters) on 13.04.2018. On 
03.02.2025, the GST department has issued an Order 
under section 74(9) of the Central Goods and Service 
Tax Act 2017, imposing a demand for ₹ 507.99 Lakhs 
(Inclusive of penalty of ₹ 253.99 Lakhs). The GST 
department has alleged that the Company has been 
involved in the suppression of turnover and have sold 
the goods under incorrect classification. The Company 
is preparing to file writ petition against this Order with 
the Hon’ble High Court of Punjab and Haryana. The 
Company is expected to get the favourable opinion 
from the Hon’ble Hight Court and hence the amount 
has been disclosed as a contingent liability.

(ii)	 The Company has given Bank Guarantees amounting to 
₹ 1.29 crores to  CGHS, RGHS, NDMC, ECHS and State 
Insurance etc. for empanelment of hospital.

(iii)	 The Company received five demand notices, each 
dated 27.02.2025, from Rajasthan Government Health 
Scheme (RGHS) alleging that the Company has been 
paid an excess amount of ₹ 93.28 lacs by RGHS panel 
because of various reasons such as unnecessary 
therapies, treatment not justify etc. The RGHS has also 
levied a penalty of ₹ 186.55 Lacs on the Company and 
has raised a consolidated demand notice for ₹ 279.82 
Lacs. The Company has already paid an amount of  
₹ 93.28 Lacs to RGHS in the month of April/May 2025 

and have also recognized a provision for this amount in 
the financial statement. However, the penalty amount 
of ₹ 186.55 Lacs has been considered as a contingent 
liability as the Company is pursuing the matter with 
RGHS and has a positive opinion that the penalty 
amount will be dropped off by the RGHS. 

NOTE 43: OTHER NOTES
(i)	 The board of directors in their meeting held on 

16.05.2024 has recommended a dividend of ₹ 5.47 of 
the face value of ₹ 10 each for the FY 2024-25 subject to 
approval of the shareholder in ensuing Annual General 
Meeting of the Company.

(ii)	 Figures for the previous year have been re-grouped/
rearranged/restated wherever necessary to make them 
comparable with those of the current year.

(iii)	 In the opinion of the Board of Directors and Management, 
all the assets other than, Property, Plant and Equipment, 
Intangible assets and non-current investments have a 
value on realisation in the ordinary course of business 
which is at least equal to the amount at which they are 
stated.

(iv)	 The Company does not have any immovable property 
whose title deed is not held in name of the company.

(v)	 The company does not have any Benami property, 
where any proceeding has been initiated or pending 
against the company for holding any Benami property.

(vi)	 The company does not have borrowings from the bank 
or financial institutions where quarterly returns or 
statement of current assets to be filed with such bank/
financial institution.

(vii)	 The company has not done any transactions with 
companies struck off under section 248 of the 
companies Act 2013 or section 560 of companies Act 
1956.

(viii)	The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction 
which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period.

(ix)	 The Company has complied with the number of layers 
for its holding in downstream companies prescribed 
under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number 
of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(x)	 Company has not advanced or loaned or invested 
funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including 
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding 
that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
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(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, 
security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.

(xi)	 The Company has not received any fund from any 
person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities 
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(xii)	 The Company does not have any transaction which is 
not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year 
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(xiii)	The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto 
currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
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